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GENERAL INFORMATION 

All appellants not in proper person must complete this docketing statement. NRAP 14(a). The 
purpose of the docketing statement is to assist the Supreme Court in screening jurisdiction, 
classifying cases for en banc, panel, or expedited treatment, compiling statistical information 
and identifying parties and their counsel. 

WARNING 

This statement must be completed fully, accurately and on time. NRAP 14(c). The Supreme 
Court may impose sanctions on counsel or appellant if it appears that the information provided 
is incomplete or inaccurate. Id. Failure to fill out the statement completely or to file it in a 
timely manner constitutes grounds for the imposition of sanctions, including a fine and/or 
dismissal of the appeal. 

A complete list of the documents that must be attached appears as Question 26 on this docketing 
statement. Failure to attach all required documents will result in the delay of your appeal and 
may result in the imposition of sanctions. 

This court has noted that when attorneys do not take seriously their obligations under NRAP 14 
to complete the docketing statement properly and conscientiously, they waste the valuable 
judicial resources of this court, making the imposition of sanctions appropriate. See KDI Sylvan  
Pools v. Workman,  107 Nev. 340, 344, 810 P.2d 1217, 1220 (1991). Please use tab dividers to 
separate any attached documents. 
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1. Judicial District Eighth 	 Department Q 

County Clark Judge Bryce Duckworth 

   

District Ct. Case No. D443611 

   

2. Attorney filing this docketing statement: 

  

Attorney Robert L. Eisenberg, Esq. 

 

Telephone 775-786-6868 

Firm Lemons, Grundy & Eisenberg 

Address 6005 Plumas St., Third Floor 
Reno NV 89509 

   

Client(s) Kirk Ross Harrison 

If this is a joint statement by multiple appellants, add the names and addresses of other counsel and 
the names of their clients on an additional sheet accompanied by a certification that they concur in the 
filing of this statement. 

3. Attorney(s) representing respondents(s): 

Attorney Radford Smith, Esq. 

Firm Radford J. Smith, Chartered 

Address 64 North Pecos Road, Suite 700 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89074 

Telephone 702-990-6448  

  

Client(s) Vivian Marie Lee Harrison 

Attorney Gary Silverman Telephone 775-322-3223 

   

Firm Silverman, Decaria & Kattelma.n, Chtd. 

Address 6140 Plumas Street, Suite 200 
Reno, Nevada 89519 

Client(s) Vivian Marie Lee Harrison 

(List additional counsel on separate sheet if necessary) 



4. Nature of disposition below (check all that apply): 

0 Judgment after bench trial 

O Judgment after jury verdict 

O Summary judgment 

0 Default judgment 

O Grant/Denial of NRCP 60(b) relief 

• Grant/Denial of injunction 

O Grant/Denial of declaratory relief 

O Review of agency determination 

0 Dismissal: 

O Lack of jurisdiction 

O Failure to state a claim 

O Failure to prosecute 

O Other (specify): 

Divorce Decree: 

ig Original 
	

Modification 

Other disposition (specify): order on motion 

5. Does this appeal raise issues concerning any of the following? 

O Child Custody 

0 Venue 

O Termination of parental rights 

6. Pending and prior proceedings in this court. List the case name and docket number 
of all appeals or original proceedings presently or previously pending before this court which 
are related to this appeal: 

Kirk Ross Harrison v. Vivian Marie Lee Harrison (Custody) 
Supreme Court No. 66157 

7. Pending and prior proceedings in other courts. List the case name, number and 
court of all pending and prior proceedings in other courts which are related to this appeal 
(e.g., bankruptcy, consolidated or bifurcated proceedings) and their dates of disposition: 

None 



8. Nature of the action. Briefly describe the nature of the action and the result below: 

This is a divorce action involving custody of minor children and financial issues. A Decree of 
Divorce was entered by the District Court on October 31, 2013, followed by post-decree 
motions. This appeal docket does not involve custody. 

9. Issues on appeal. State concisely the principal issue(s) in this appeal (attach separate 
sheets as necessary): 

Whether the district court erred in its rulings dealing with attorneys' fee awards. 

10. Pending proceedings in this court raising the same or similar issues. If you are 
aware of any proceedings presently pending before this court which raises the same or 
similar issues raised in this appeal, list the case name and docket numbers and identify the 
same or similar issue raised: 

None. 



11. Constitutional issues. If this appeal challenges the constitutionality of a statute, and 
the state, any state agency, or any officer or employee thereof is not a party to this appeal, 
have you notified the clerk of this court and the attorney general in accordance with NRAP 44 
and NRS 30.130? 

N/A 

O Yes 

O No 

If not, explain: 

12. Other issues. Does this appeal involve any of the following issues? 

O Reversal of well-settled Nevada precedent (identify the case(s)) 

0 An issue arising under the United States and/or Nevada Constitutions 

El A substantial issue of first impression 

X An issue of public policy 

An issue where en banc consideration is necessary to maintain uniformity of this 
court's decisions 

0 A ballot question 

If so, explain: Public policy reflected in the "American Rule" limits attorneys' fee 
awards. The award in this case was not supported by any statute or 
rule, giving rise to a public policy issue, particularly regarding family 
law cases. 

13. Trial. If this action proceeded to trial, how many days did the trial last? 0 

Was it a bench or jury trial? N/A 

14. Judicial Disqualification. Do you intend to file a motion to disqualify or have a 
justice recuse him/herself from participation in this appeal? If so, which Justice? 

No. 



TIMELINESS OF NOTICE OF APPEAL 

15. Date of entry of written judgment or order appealed from Feb 10, 2014 

If no written judgment or order was filed in the district court, explain the basis for 
seeking appellate review: 

October 31, 2013: Decree of Divorce 
November 14, 2013: Motion to Alter, Amend, Correct and Clarify Judgment 
February 10, 2014: Order appealed in this docket 
June 13, 2014: Order on tolling motion (notice of entry served June 16, 2014) 
July 7, 2014: Notice of Appeal 
Winston Products v. DeBoer, 122 Nev. 517, 526, 134 P.3d 726, 732 (2006)(tolling motion 
tolls time to appeal from special order after final judgment) 

16. Date written notice of entry of judgment or order was served  10/31/13 (divorce) 

Was service by: 

• Delivery 

E Mail/electronic/fax 

17. If the time for filing the notice of appeal was tolled by a post-judgment motion 
(NRCP 50(b), 52(b), or 59) 

(a) Specify the type of motion, the date and method of service of the motion, and 
the date of filing. 

O NRCP 50(b) 

NRCP 52(b) 

NRCP 59 

Date of filing 

Date of filing Nov 14, 2013 

Date of filing Nov 14, 2013 

NOTE: Motions made pursuant to NRCP 60 or motions for rehearing or reconsideration may toll the 
time for filing a notice of appeal. See AA Primo Builders v. Washington,  126 Nev. 	, 245 
P.3d 1190 (2010). 

(b) Date of entry of written order resolving tolling motion  6/13/14 

(c) Date written notice of entry of order resolving tolling motion was served  6/16/14 

Was service by: 
D Delivery 

Mail 



18. Date notice of appeal filed Jul 7, 2014 

If more than one party has appealed from the judgment or order, list the date each 
notice of appeal was filed and identify by name the party filing the notice of appeal: 
Notice of Cross Appeal was filed by Respondent, Vivian Marie Lee Harrison, on 7/21/14. 

19. Specify statute or rule governing the time limit for filing the notice of appeal, 
e.g., NRAP 4(a) or other 

NRAP 4(a)(1) and (4) 

SUBSTANTIVE APPEALABILITY 

20. Specify the statute or other authority granting this court jurisdiction to review 
the judgment or order appealed from: 
(a) 

o NRAP 3A(b)(1) 
	

O NRS 38.205 

O NRAP 3A(b)(2) 
	

O NRS 233B.150 

• NRAP 3A(b)(3) 
	

O NRS 703.376 

El Other (specify) NRAP 3A(b)(8) 

(b) Explain how each authority provides a basis for appeal from the judgment or order: 

A post-judgment order awarding attorneys' fees is an appealable special order after 
final judgment. Winston Products v. DeBoer, 122 Nev. 517, 525, 134 P.3d 726, 731 (2006); 
Lee v. GNLV Corp., 116 Nev. 424, 426, 996 P.2d 416, 417 (2000). 



21. List all parties involved in the action or consolidated actions in the district court: 
(a) Parties: 

Plaintiff, Kirk Ross Harrison 
Defendant, Vivian Marie Lee Harrison 

(b) If all parties in the district court are not parties to this appeal, explain in detail why 
those parties are not involved in this appeal, e.g., formally dismissed, not served, or 
other: 

N/A 

22. Give a brief description (3 to 5 words) of each party's separate claims, 
counterclaims, cross-claims, or third-party claims and the date of formal 
disposition of each claim. 

There were multiple claims and issues in the divorce, but this appeal docket 
only deals with the post-decree claim for attorneys' fees. 

23. Did the judgment or order appealed from adjudicate ALL the claims alleged 
below and the rights and liabilities of ALL the parties to the action or consolidated 
actions below? 

Yes 

fl No 

24. If you answered "No" to question 23, complete the following: 

(a) Specify the claims remaining pending below: 



(b) Specify the parties remaining below: 

• (c) Did the district court certify the judgment or order appealed from as a final judgment 
pursuant to NRCP 54(b)? 

D Yes 

0 No 

(d) Did the district court make an express determination, pursuant to NRCP 54(b), that 
there is no just reason for delay and an express direction for the entry of judgment? 

D Yes 

fl No 

25. If you answered "No" to any part of question 24, explain the basis for seeking 
appellate review (e.g., order is independently appealable under NRAP 3A(b)): 

26. Attach file-stamped copies of the following documents: 
• The latest-filed complaint, counterclaims, cross-claims, and third-party claims 
• Any tolling motion(s) and order(s) resolving tolling motion(s) 
• Orders of NRCP 41(a) dismissals formally resolving each claim, counterclaims, cross-

claims and/or third-party claims asserted in the action or consolidated action below, 
even if not at issue on appeal 

• Any other order challenged on appeal 
• Notices of entry for each attached order 



Kirk Ross Harrison Robert L. Eisenberg, Esq. 
Name of appellant Name of counsel of record 

Aug 18, 2014 
Date Signature of counsel of record 

VERIFICATION 

I declare under penalty of perjury that I have read this docketing statement, that 
the information provided in this docketing statement is true and complete to the 
best of my knowledge, information and belief, and that I have attached all required 
documents to this docketing statement. 

Nevada, Washoe County 
State and county where signed 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that on the 18th 	 day of August ,2014 	, I served a copy of this 

  

completed docketing statement upon all counsel of record: 

0 By personally serving it upon him/her; or 

El By mailing it by first class mail with sufficient postage prepaid to the following 
address(es): (NOTE: If all names and addresses cannot fit below, please list names 
below and attach a separate sheet with the addresses.) 

See attached sheet 

Dated this 18th 	 day of August ,2014 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
(Attachment) 

Radford J. Smith, Esq. 
Radford J. Smith, Chtd. 
64 North Pecos Road, Suite 700 
Las Vegas, NV 89074 

Gary Silverman, Esq. 
Silverman, Decaria & Kattelman, Chtd. 
6140 Plumas Street, Suite 200 
Reno, NV 89519 

Lansford Levitt, Esq. 
4747 Caughlin Parkway, Suite 6 
Reno, NV 89519 

Edward L. Kainen, Esq. 
Kainen Law Group 
10091 Park Run Drive, Suite 110 
Las Vegas, NV 89145-8868 

• 



Harrison v. Harrison; No. 66072 

List of attachments for Docketing Statement question 26 

1. Complaint filed March 18, 2011 
2. Answer/Counterclaim filed November 23, 2011 
3. Decree of Divorce filed October 31, 2013 
4. Motion (to alter or amend; no exhibits) filed November 14, 2013 
5. Findings, Conclusions and Orders (no exhibits)filed February 10, 2014 
6. Notice of Entry of February 10, 2014 order 
7. Order from hearing (on motion to alter or amend) filed June 13, 2014 
8. Notice of Entry of June 13, 2014 order, served June 16, 2014 



• 

Docketing Statement Attachment No. 1 



S. 

CLERK OF THE COURT 

Iliklectronically Filed 
0311812011 09:44:48 AM 

COND 
1 Howard Ecker, Esq. 

Nevada Bar No. 1207 
2 Andrew L. Kynaston, Esq. 

Nevada Bar No. 8147 
ECKER & KAINEN, CHARTERED 
300 S. Fourth St., Suite 901 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
(702) 384-1700 
(702) 384-8150 (Fax) 
adminstration@eckerkainen.com  
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

5 
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VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, 

14 
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Defendant. 	 ) 
) 
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I. 

That Plaintiff is a resident of the State of Nevada, and 

for a period of more than six weeks before commencement of this 

action has resided and been physically present and domiciled 

therein, and during all of said period of time, Plaintiff has had, 

and still has, the intent to make said State of Nevada, his home, 

residence and domicile for an indefinite period of time. 
26 

27 

8 

9 

10 KIRK ROSS HARRISON, 

) 

) 

CASE No.D-11-4 43 611-D 
DEPT NO. 

Date of Hearing: N/A 
Time of Hearing: N/A 

15 

16 
COMPLAINT FOR DIVORCE  

COMES NOW, Plaintiff-, KIRK ROSS HARRISON, and states his 

cause of action against Defendant, VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, as 

follows: 
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That Plaintiff and Defendant were intermarried in the 
2 

3 
City of Las Vegas, State of Nevada, on or about November 5, 1982, 

and are husband and wife. 
4 

5 
That there are two (2) minor children the issue of said 

marriage, to wit: EMMA BROOKE HARRISON, born June 26, 1999; and 
7 

RYLEE MARIE HARRISON, born January 24, 20-0.3. The paLLies also 
8 

have three (3) adult children. 
9 
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IV.  

That the parties are fit and proper persons to have the 

joint legal custody of said minor children. 

V.  

That Plaintiff be awarded the primary physical care, 

custody and control of the minor children herein. 

VI.  

That the Court should retain jurisdiction to make an 

appropriate award of child support. 

VII.  

That such child support shall be payable through wage 

assignment pursuant to NRS Chapter 31A, should any child support 

obligation become over thirty (30) days delinquent, to the extent 

such child support is ordered. 

VIII.  

That Plaintiff will maintain the cost of major medical 

insurance coverage for the minor children herein, with the parties 

equally dividing all medical, dental (including orthodontic), 

psychological and optical expenses of said minor children not 

2 



covered by insurance, until such time as each child, respectively, 

(1) becomes emancipated, or (2) attains the age of eighteen (18) 

years, the age of majority, unless each child is still attending 

secondary education when each child reaches eighteen (18) years of 

age, in which event said medical coverage shall continue until 

each child, respectively, graduates from high school, or attains 

the age of nineteen (19) years, whichever event first occurs. 

IX. 

That neither party is entitled to alimony from the other 

party herein. Fa
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X. 

That there is community property of the parties herein 

z 
6% 13 

to be adjudicated by the Court, the full nature and extent of 

which is unknown to Plaintiff at this time, and Plaintiff prays 
g g 14 

leave of the Court to amend this Complaint when additional a 
015 

information becomes available. 
16 

XI. 2 ; 
tb 17 

That there are no community debts of the parties herein 

§ 18 to be adjudicated by the Court. 
19 

XII. 
"4 20 

g 21 
	 That there exists separate property of the parties to be 

F.-- 

 22 confirmed to each party, the full nature and extent of which is 

unknown to Plaintiff at this time, and Plaintiff prays leave of 
23 

the Court to amend this Complaint when additional information 

becomes available. 

XIII. 

That Defendant has engaged in an individual act or 

'course of actions which, individually or together, have 
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constituted marital waste, and therefore Plaintiff should be 

compensated for the loss and enjoyment of said wasted community 

asset(s). 

XIV.  

That Plaintiff requests this Court to jointly restrain 

the parties herein in accordance with the terms of the Joint 

Preliminary Injunction issued herewith. 

XV.  

That Plaintiff has been required to retain the services 

of ECKER & KAINEN, CHARTERED, to prosecute this action, and is 

therefore entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and costs of 

suit. 
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XVI. 

That the parties hereto are incompatible in marriage. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays judgment as follows: 

1. That the bonds of matrimony now and heretofore 

1  existing between Plaintiff and Defendant be dissolved; that Plaintiff be granted an absolute Decree of Divorce; and that each 

of the parties hereto be restored to the status of a single, 

unmarried person; 

2. That the parties be awarded joint legal custody of 

the minor children herein; 

3. That Plaintiff be awarded the primary physical 

care, custody and control of the minor children herein; 

4. That the Court retain jurisdiction to enter an 

appropriate award of child support. 

5. That child support be paid through wage assignment 

pursuant to NRS Chapter 31A, should payment of any child support 

4 
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10 

obligation be thirty (30) days delinquent, to the extent child 

support is ordered; 

6. That Plaintiff be ordered to provide the cost of 

major medical insurance coverage for the minor children herein, 

with the parties equally dividing all medical, dental (including 

orthodontic), psychological or optical expenses of said minor 

children not covered by insurance, until such time as each child, 

respectively, (1)- becomes emancipated, or (2.)- attains the age of

eighteen (18) years, the age of majority, unless each child is 

still attending secondary education when each child reaches 

eighteen (18) years of age, in which event said medical coverage 

and payment of the children's noncovered medical expenses shall 

continue until each child, respectively, graduates from high 

school, or attains the age of nineteen (19) years, whichever event 

first occurs; 

7. That neither party be required to pay the other 

spousal support; 

8. That this Court make an equitable division of the 

community assets; 

9. That this Court confirm to each party his or her 

separate property; 

10. That Defendant reimburse Plaintiff for one-half of 

the amounts and/or values of all community and jointly held 

property which she has wasted and/or dissipated; 

11. That this Court issue its Joint Preliminary 

Injunction enjoining the parties pursuant to the terms stated 

therein; 
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ECKER & KAI CUARTERED 

By: 

12. That Defendant be ordered to pay a reasonable sum 

to Plaintiff's counsel as and for attorney's fees, 

the cost of bringing this action; 

13. For such other and further relief as the Court may 

deem just and proper in the premises. 
sattr- 

DATED this  fe —  day of March, 2011 

3 

4 

5 

together with 

6 

Wa

aa 

CD 

12 

14 

19 

EDWARD L. KAINEN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No 5029 
300 S. Fourth Street, #901 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

Fa
x  

(7
02

)  
38

4-
81

5
0 

7 

8 

9 

10 

20 
CO 

0 21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

6 



23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Te
l (

70
2)

  3
84

- 1
70

0 19 

20 

21 

22 

16 

AND SWORN to before me 
y of March, 2011. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
H.D. MAGALIANES 

NOTARN P 
oun 

STATE OF NEVADA COUNTY OF CLARK 
MY APPOINTMENT EXP. FEBRUARY 19, 2012 

No: 00=604274 
11110101111111MOMO 

in and for said 
State 

SUBSCRI 
this 

VERIFICATION 

STATE OF NEVADA ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF CLARK ) 

KIRK ROSS HARRISON, being first duly sworn, deposes and 

says: 

That I am the Plaintiff herein; that I have read the 

foregoing Complaint for Divorce and the same is true of my own 

knowledge, except for those matters which are therein stated upon 

information and belief, and as to those matters, I believe them to 

be true. Fa
x  

(7
02

)  
38

4-
8

15
0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

0 

7 



Docketing Statement Attachment No. 2 



ANSW 
RADFORD J. SMITH, CHARTERED 
RADFORD J. SMITH, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 002791 
64 N. Pecos Road, Suite 700 
Henderson, Nevada 89074 
Telephone: (702) 990-6448 
Facsimile: (702) 990-6456 
rsmith@radfordsmith.com  

FILE COPY 
NOV 2 8 2011 

GARY R. SILVERMAN, ESQ. 
SILVERMAN, DECARIA, & KATTLEMAN 
Nevada State Bar No, 000409 
6140 Plumas St. #200 
Reno, NV 89519 
Telephone: (775) 322-3223 
Facsimile: (775) 322-3649 
Email: silverman@silverman-decaria.corn  

Attorneys for Defendant/Counterclaimant 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

KIRK ROSS HARRISON, 

Plaintiff/ 
Counterdefendant, 

V. 

VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, 

Defendant/ 
Counterclaimant 

CASE NO.: D-11-443611-D 
DEPT NO.: Q 

FAMILY DIVISION 

ANSWER TO COMPLAINT FOR DIVORCE 
AND COUNTERCLAIM FOR DIVORCE  

COMES NOW, Defendant/Counterclaimant, VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, by and 

through her attorneys RADFORD I SMITH, ESQ., of the law offices of RADFORD J. SMITH, 

CHARIERED, and GARY R. SILVERMAN, ESQ., of the law offices of SILVERMAN, DECARIA, & 



KATTLEMAN, and sets forth her Answer to the Complaint for Divorce of Plaintiff, and he 

Counterclaim for Divorce as follows: 

ANSWER TO COMPLAINT FOR DIVORCE 

1. 	Defendant denies all material allegations not specifically admitted herein. 

2. 	Defendant admits all material allegations contained in Paragraphs I, II, III, IV, VI, VII 

VIII, XIV and XVI of the Complaint for Divorce. 

3. 	Defendaiit denies the allegations contained in Paragraphs V, IX, XI, XIII and XV of th 

Complaint. 

4. 	Answering Paragraph X, Defendant admits that there is community property of th 

12 parties herein to be adjudicated by the Court, but denies all remaining allegations contained in sal 

13 paragraph. 

14 
5. 	Answering Paragraph XII, Defendant is without sufficient information and knowledge t 

15 

16 
form a belief as to those allegations and on this basis, denies the same. 

17 
	 COUNTERCLAIM FOR DIVORCE  

18 	1. 	For more than six weeks immediately preceding the commencement of this action 

19 
Defendant/Counterclaimant has been, and now is, a resident of the County of Clark, State of Nevada. 

20 
2. 	That Defendant/Counterclaimant and Plaintiff/Counterdefendant were married in the City 

21 

22 
of Las Vegas, State of Nevada, on or about November 5, 1982, and have ever since been husband and 

23 wife. 

24 
	

3. 	The parties have two minor children born the issue of this marriage, namely, EMM 

25 
BROOKE HARRISON, born June 26, 1999; and RYLEE MARIE HARRISON, born January 24, 2003. 

26 

The parties also have three adult children. The parties have not adopted any children, and VIVIAN is no 
27 

28 pregnant. 
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4. 	That the parties should be awarded joint legal custody of the minor children.. 

	

5. 	That Defendant/Counterclaimant should be awarded primary physical custody of th 

minor children, subject to the rights of specific visitation of Plaintiff/Counterdefendant. 

	

6. 	That Plaintiff/Counterdefendant should be ordered to pay child support for the mino 

6 children, pursuant to NRS 125B.070 et. seq., until such time as each child, respectively, reaches the ag 

7 of eighteen (18) years, graduates from high school, or otherwise emancipates, whichever occurs later 

8 
but in any event no later than the age of nineteen (19) years. 

9 

	

7. 	That Plaintiff/Counterdefendant should be ordered to provide • medical and denta 
10 

11 insurance for the minor children, with the parties equally dividing all deductibles and other expenses no 

12 reimbursed by insurance, until such time as each child, respectively, reaches the age of eighteen (18 

13 years, graduates from high school, or otherwise emancipates, whichever occurs later, but in any event n 

14 
later than the age of nineteen (19) years. 

15 

2 
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5 

8. That there is community property of the parties to be equitably divided by this court, th 

full value and extent of which has not been determined at this time. 

9. That there are community debts and/or obligations of the parties to be equitably divide 

by this Court, the full extent of which has not been determined at this time. 

10. That there is separate property belonging to the Defendant/Counterclaimant, whic 

property should be confirmed to Defendant/Counterclaimant as her separate property. 

11. That there are separate debts and/or obligations of the Plaintif0Counterdefendant, whic 

debts and/or obligations should be confirmed to Plaintiff/Counterdefendant as his separate debt. 

12. That Defendant/Counterclaimant is entitled to receive, and Plaintiff/Counterdefendant i 

capable of paying, alimony and/or spousal support in a reasonable amount and for a reasonable period. 
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13. 	That Defendant/Counterclaimant has been required to retain the services of counsel i 
2 

this matter, and Is therefore entitled to an award of attorney's fees and costs incurred as a result. 
3 

14. 	That the parties are now incompatible in marriage, such that their likes, dislikes, an 
4 

5 
tastes have become so widely divergent that they can no longer live together as husband and wife. 

	

6 
	• WHEREFORE, Defendant/Counterclaimant prays judgment as follows: 

	

7 
	

1. 	That Plaintiff/Counterdefendant take nothing by way of his Complaint for Divorce; 

	

8 	
• 2. 	That the bonds of matrimony now and previously existing between Plaintiff/Counter 

9 

defendant and Defendant/Counterclaimant be forever and completely dissolved, and that each party b 
10 

11 restored to the status of an unmarried person; 

	

12 
	

3. 	That the parties be awarded joint legal custody of the minor children, EMMA BROOK 

13 HARRISON, born June 26, 1999; and RYLEE MARIE HARRISON, born January 24, 2003; 
14 

4. 	That Defendant/Counterclaimant be awarded primary physical custody of the mino 
15 

16 
children, subject to the rights of specific visitation of Plaintiff/Counterdefendant; 

	

17 
	 5. 	That Plaintiff/Counterdefendant be ordered to pay child support for the minor children 

18 pursuant to NRS 125B.070 et. seq., until such time as each child, respectively, reaches the age o 

19 eighteen (18) years, graduates from high school, or otherwise emancipates, whichever occurs later, bu 
20 

in any event no later than the age of nineteen (19) years; 
21 

	

22 
	 6. 	That Plaintiff/Counterdefendant should be ordered to provide medical and denta 

23 insurance for the minor children, with the parties equally dividing all deductibles and other expenses no 

24 reimbursed by insurance, until such time as each child, respectively, reaches the age of eighteen (18) 
25 

years, graduates from high school, or otherwise emancipates, whichever occurs later, but in any event n 
26 

later than the age of nineteen (19) years. 
27 

	

28 
	 7. 	For an equitable division of community property of the parties; 
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15 

16 

8. For an equitable division of the community debts and/or obligations of the parties; 

9. That Defendant/Counterclaimant's separate property be confirmed to her, free of all 

claims by Plaintiff/Counterdefendant; 

10. That Plaintiff/Counterdefendant's separate debt be confirmed to him and that Plaintiff/ 

Counterdefendant be required to indemnify and hold Defendant/Counterclaimant harmless from those 

obligations; 

11. For an award of alimony and/or spousal support in a reasonable amount and for 

reasonable duration; 

12. For an award of Defendant/Counterclaimant's attorney's fees and costs incurred herein; 

13. For such other and further relief as the court finds just in the premises. 

Dated this 	day of November, 2011. 

RADFORD J. SMITH, CHARTERED 
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10 

11 

12 

13 
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18 

RADFORD SMITH, ESQ. 
17 Nevada St, iati-Bar No. 002791 

64 N. Pecos Road, Suite 700 
Henderson, Nevada 89074 

19 Attorney for Defendant/ 
Counterclaimant 
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26 

27 

28 
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15 

NOTAkY PUBLIC in and forti s  
the State of Nevada 

1(6,,  

17 

VERIFICATION 

STATE OF NEVADA 
ss: 

COUNTY OF CLARK 

VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, having been duly sworn, deposes and says; 

That I am the Defendant/Counterclaimant in the above referenced matter; that I have read the 

foregoing Answer to Complaint for Divorce and Counterclaim for Divorce, and that the same is true and 

correct to the best of my own knowledge, except for those matters stated upon information and belief, 

and for those matters, I believe them to be true. 

• ," 

Afidp - 	• .,(.4/ Aea  
VIVIAN ARM LE ARRISON 

Subscribed and Sworn before me 
this7 day of November, 2011. 
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27 

28 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Radford J. Smith, Chartered ("the Firm"). I am ove 

the age of 18 and not a party to the within action. I am readily familiar with the Finn's practice o 

collection and processing correspondence for mailing. Under the Firm's practice, mail is to be deposite 

with the U.S. Postal Service on the same day as stated below, with postage thereon fully prepaid. 

I served the foregoing document described as "ANSWER TO COMPLAINT FOR DIVORC 

AND COUNTERCLAIM FOR DIVORCE" on this day of November, 2011, to all interested 

parties as follows: 

M BY MAIL: Pursuant To NRCP 5(b), I placed a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed envelop 
addressed as follows; 

D BY FACSIMILE: Pursuant to EDCR 7.26, I transmitted a copy of the foregoing document thi 
date via telecopier to the facsimile number shown below; 

14 
15‹ BY ELECTRONIC MAIL: Pursuant to EDCR 7.26, I transmitted a copy of the foregoin 

15 	document this date via electronic mail to the electronic mail address shown below; 

16 
	

IJ BY CERTIFIED MAIL: I placed a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope, retur 
17 
	receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6' 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Thomas J. Standish, Esq. 
Jolley, Urga, Wirth, Woodbury & Standish 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 166  Floor 
Las Vegas, NV 89169 
tjs@juww.com   

Edward L. Kainen, Esq. 
Kainen Law Group, PLLC 
10091 Park Run Drive, Suite 110 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 
ed@kainenlawgroup.com  

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

• 	25 

26 

An employee of Radford J. Smith, Chartered 
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CLERK OF THE COURT 

3 
DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

• 16 

17 

ME C. DUCKNORTH 
DISTRICT JUDGE 

I(IRK ROSS HARRISON, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, 

Defendant. 

DECREE  

The above-entitled cause having come on regularly for hearing on the 3r d  day 0 

December, 2012, before the above-entitled Court, Plaintiff, KIRK ROSS HARRISO 

("Kirk") appearing in person and through his attorneys, THOMAS J. ST.ANDISH, ESQ :  

of the law firm of JOLLEY, URGA, WIRTH, WOODBURY ST.. STANDISH, an 

EDWARD L. KAINEN, ESQ., of the KAINEN LAW GROUP, PLLC, and Defendant 

VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON ("Vivian") appearing in person and through he 

attorney, RADFORD J. SMITH, ESQ., of RADFORD J. SMITH, CHARTERED 

Vivian's Answer having been entered, and the parties having waived the making, filing 

and service of Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, and the giving of any and al 

notices required by law or rules of the District Court; the Court having heard thi 

testimony of witnesses sworn and examined in open Court, the cause having beer 

submitted for decision and judgment, and the Court being fully advised, finds: 

CASE NO. D-11 -443611-D 
DEPT NO. Q 

) 

) 

VIILY DIVISJON. DEPT- Q 
I VEGAS, NEVADA 89101 



That the Court has jurisdiction in the premises, both as to the subject matter 

thereof as well as the parties thereto; that Kirk has been domiciled in this State for more 

than six weeks preceding the commencement of this action, and that Kirk is now 

5 domiciled in and is an actual, bona fide resident of the State of Nevada; that the Kirk 

is entitled to an absolute Decree of Divorce on the grounds set forth in Kirk's Complaint 

The Court further finds that there are two minor children the issue of this 

marriage, to-wit: EMMA BROOKE HARRISON ("Brooke"), born June 26, 1999, an 

MEE MARIE HARRISON ("Rylee"), born January 24, 2003, There are no adopte 

children of the parties and to the best of her knowledge, Vivian is not currently 

pregnant. 

The Court further finds that the child custody, support and related issue 

regarding the parties' two minor children previously were resolved by way of the 

Stipulation and Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues entered into between the parties, 

and filed on July 11, 2012. 

The Court further finds that each party has warranted that the property 

adjudicated in this Decree of Divorce constitutes all property belonging to the parties, 

and there is no other property (inclusive of any ventures and/or enterprises that might 

come to fruition at a later time), income, claims, or intangible rights owed or belonging 

to either party not set forth herein. The Court further finds that the adjudication o 

property herein is based on the agreement of the parties as reflected in the record made 

by the parties at the hearing on December 3, 2012, as well as the common terms set 

forth in their proposed Decrees submitted to the Court. The Court further finds that, 
ME O. DUCKWORTH 

DISTRICT JUDGE 
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based on representations made to the Court (and excluding the equalizing division o 

retirement accounts to be effectuated by entry of a QDRO), the parties have effectuate 

the equal division of the, financial accounts adjudicated in this Decree. Further, an 

equalizing payment previously was made to equalize the division of assets pursuant to 

NRS 125.150, including the division of real and personal property. This Court furthe 

finds that, except for those child-related accounts specifically referenced herein, no othe 

account for which a child of the parties is an intended beneficiary is adjudicated herein. 

This Court further finds that each party hereto has represented and warranted t 

the other party that he or she has made full and fair disclosure of the property an 

interests in property owned or believed to be owned by him and/or her, either direct! 

or indirectly. The parties have acknowledged that they are aware that each has method: 

of discovery available to him or her in the prosecution of their divorce action t 

investigate the community and separate assets of the other. Both have acknowledge 

that they are entering this settlement without performing any additional discovery, an 

that they have instructed their counsel to forego such additional discovery. 

This Court further finds that each party has admitted and agreed that they ea 

have had the opportunity to discuss and consult with independent tax counselors, othe 

than the attorneys of record in the divorce action between the parties, concerning th 

income tax and estate tax implications and consequences with respect to the agreed upo 

division of the properties and indebtedness herein, and that Jolley, Urga, Wirth, 

Woodbury & Standish, Kainen Law Group, PLLC, Radford J. Smith, Chartered, an 
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1 Silverman, Decaria & Kattelman were not expected to provide and, in fact, did not 
2 

3 
provide tax advice concerning this Decree of Divorce. 

4 	Based on the foregoing findings, and good cause appearing therefore, 

5 	IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the bonds o 

6  matrimony heretofore and now existing between Kirk and Vivian be, and the same are 
7 

8 
hereby wholly dissolved, and an absolute Decree of Divorce is hereby granted to th 

9 parties, and each of the parties hereto is hereby restored to the status of a single 

10 unmarried person. 

11 	IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the terms an 
12 

13 
provisions of the Stipulation and Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues entered int 

14 between the parties, and filed on July 11, 2012, are hereby incorporated by reference a 

15 if fully stated herein. 

16 	
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that both parties  

17 

18 
complete the seminar for separating parents as required by EDCR 5.07 within 30 day 

19 from the date of entry of this Decree. 

20 	IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that, should eithe 
21 

22 
party intend to move his or her residence to a place outside the State of Nevada, an 

23 take the mihor children with him or her, said party must, as soon as possible, and befor 

24 the planned move, attempt to obtain the written consent of the other party to move th 

25 minor children from the State. If the other party refuses to give that consent, the part 
26 

27 
planning the move shall, before he or she leaves the State with the minor children 

28 petition the Eighth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, in and for the Count 
WM C. DUCKWORTH 

DISTRICT JUDGE 
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1 of Clark, for permission to move the children. The failure of the party planning the 
2 

3 
move to comply with this provision may be considered as a factor if a change of custody 

4 is requested by the other party. This provision does not apply to vacations planned by 

5 either party outside the State of Nevada. 

6 	IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that. the parties are 
7 

8 
subject to the provision of NRS 125.510(6) for violation of the Court's Order: 

PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ORDER: 
The abduction, concealment or detention of a child in violation of 

this Order is punishable as a category D felony as provided in NRS 
193.130. NRS 200.359 provides that every person having a limited right 
of custody to a child or any parent having no right to the child who 
willfully detains, conceals or removes the child from a parent, guardian or 
other person having lawful custody or a right of visitation of the child in 
violation of an order of this court, or removes the child from the 
jurisdiction of the court without the consent of either the court or all 
persons who have the right to custody or visitation is subject to being 
punished for a category D felony as provided in NRS 193.130. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that, pursuant to 

NRS 125,510(7) and (8), the terms of the Hague Convention of October 25, 1980, 

adopted by the 14th Session of the Hague Conference on Private International Law are 

applicable to the parties: 

"Section 8. If a parent of the child lives in a foreign country or has 
significant commitments in a foreign country: 

(a) The parties may agree, and the Court shall include in 
the Order for custody of the child, that the United States is the country of 
habitual residence of the child for the purposes of applying the terms of the 
Hague Convention as set forth in Subsection 7. 

(b) Upon motion of the parties, the Court may order the 
parent to post a bond if the Court determines that the parent poses an 
imminent risk of wrongfully removing or concealing the child outside the 
country of habitual residence. The bond must be in an amount 
determined by the Court and may be used only to pay for the cost of 
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locating the child and returning him to his habitual residence if the child 
is wrongfully removed from or concealed outside the country of habitual 
residence. The fact that a parent has significant commitments in a foreign 
country does not create a presumption that the parent poses an imminent 
risk of wrongfully removing or concealing the child." 

The State of Nevada is the habitual residence of the minor children herein. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that, based upo 

the current financial condition of the parties, and the fact that neither party currentl 

engages in full-time employment, neither party shall be required to pay child support t 

the other. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that a paren 

responsible for paying child support is subject to wage assignment with their employe 

pursuant to NRS 31A.025 to 31A.190, inclusive, should they become thirty (30) day 

delinquent in their child support payments. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the amount o 

child support in this matter shall be reviewed every three (3) years pursuant to N 

125B.145. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the provision 

regarding child support in this matter conform to the statutory guidelines as set forth i 

NRS 125B, as applied in Wright v. Osburn, 114 Nev. 1367, 970 P.2d 1071 (1998) an 

Wesky v. Foster, 119 Nev. 110, 65 P.3d 251 (2003). 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGE D AND DECREED that each party sh 

submit the information required in NRS 12511055, NRS 125,130 and NRS 125.2300 

a separate form to the Court and the Welfare Division of the Department of Hum 
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1 Resources within ten days from the date this Decree is filed. Such information shall be 
2 

3 
maintained by the Clerk in a confidential manner and not part of the public record. 

4  Each party shall update the information filed with the Court and the Welfare Division 

5 of the Department of Human Resources within ten days should any of that information 

6 become inaccurate. 
7 

8 
	IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that, pursuant to 

9 the agreement placed on the record before this Court, each party hereby irrevocably 

10 waives, releases and relinquishes any rights which either party may have acquired by 

11 
virtue of their marriage, to any alimony or spousal support of any kind, including lump 

12 

13 
sum alimony or periodic payments, or to any other Court-ordered compensation or 

14 support intended to act as or supplant alimony or spousal support. Each party herei 

15 irrevocably waives and releases to the other party all claims, rights and demands of eve 
16 

character or description with respect to alimony or spousal support of any type, now 
17 

18 hereafter, based on any and all circumstances in the present or future, whethe 

19 foreseeable or unforeseeable. 

20 	IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Vivian shal 
21 

22 
have confirmed to her as her sole and separate property, free of any claims by Kirk, th 

23 sole ownership in and to the following: 

24 
	

1. 	A one-half interest in the income and distributions of Kirk's busines 

25 	 interest in the Tobacco Contract, which Kirk has warranted an 
26 

27 1 
	 represented is the only asset of the business known as Harrison, Kemp 

28 
	 Jones Chartered. Kirk shall pay to Vivian one-half of all net income an 

Yu C. DUCKWORTH 
DISTRICT JUDGE 
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distributions therefrom, net of the maximum tax rate. To the extent the 

actual taxes attributable to the income and distributions are less than the 

maximum tax rate, Kirk shall refund to Vivian the corresponding amount 

associated with her one -half interest. There shall be an annual accountin3 

of said income and distributions to determine the extent of any refund. 

2. The prior balance in the business account associated with Harris or 

Dispute Resolution at Bank of America ending in 4668 was previous13 

equally divided between the parties whereby each party receive( 

$115,836.47 on or about December 24, 2012. 

3. A twelve and one-half percent (12.5%) interest in The Measo Associates 

a Nevada General Partnership, currently held in Kirk's sole name. Tht 

parties currently have a 25% interest in The Measo Associates. Followini 

the entry of the Decree of Divorce, the interest shall be equally divided 

allocating 12.5% to each party as his or her respective sole and separat( 

property, 

4. The approximate nine percent (9% ) interest in Geothermic Solution, LLC 

currently held in Kirks sole name, shall be placed in a trust whereby Kirk 

and Vivian shall each receive any and all rights or benefits to one-half 01 

said interest. If, for any reason, it is illegal, will jeopardize the legal sotw 

of the LLC, or is otherwise impermissible under the organizational 

documents of Geothermic Solution, LLC, to transfer the interest into o 

trust, then the parties agree to work with one another so that Vivian 
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equitably entitled to one-half of the approximate 9% interest in 
2 

3 
	 Geothermic Solution, LLC, either directly or by control of any and all 

4 	 rights or benefits arising from that interest, 

5 	5. 	One-half of the balance in the Boulder Dam Credit Union savings account 

6  ending in 9005, as of September 11, 2012. Said account is currently in 

Vivian's name. Following the equal division of the balance contained in 

the account, Vivian shall retain this account. 

6. One-half of the balance in the Boulder Dam Credit Union DDA account 

ending in 9005, as of September 11, 2012. Said account is currently in 

Vivia-n's name. Following the equal division of the balance contained in 

the account, Vivian shall retain this account. 

7. One-half of the balance in the Bank of America DDA account ending i 

1400, as of September 11, 2012. Said account is currently in Vivian' 

name. Following the equal division of the balance contained in th 

account, Vivian shall retain this account. 

8. The prior balance in the Bank of America money market account endin 

in 5111 was previously equally divided between the parties, whereby eac 

party received $124,809.55 on or about December 24, 2012. 

9. One-half of the balance in the Bank of America checking account endin 

in 4040, with a balance of $36,346.02 as of February 5, 2013. 

10. One-half of the balance in the Bank of America account ending in 8682, 

with a balance of $6,638.54 as of January 7,2013. 
VC5 C. DUCKWORTH 
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• 
11. One-half of the balance in the Nevada Bank &.. Trust account ending in 

2713, with a balance of $740.42 as of February 4, 2013. 

12. One-half of the balance in the Nevada Bank St Trust account ending in 

1275 (Certificate of Deposit), with a balance of $16,360.45 as of February 

5, 2013. 

13. One-half of the balance in the Wells Fargo account ending in 8032 

(Certificate of Deposit), with a balance of $28,809.58 as of February 

2013. 

14. One-half of the balance of the Bank of America account ending in 8278 

with a balance of $46,622.74 as of February 14, 2013. 

15. The prior balance in the UBS RMA account ending in 7066 was previously 

equally divided between the parties, whereby each party received 

$455,727.35 on or about September 14, 2012. 

16. The prior balance in the UBS RMA account ending in 3201 was previously 

equally divided between the parties, whereby each party received 

$51,458.17 on or about September 11,2012. 

17. The prior balance in the Vanguard account ending in 4530/3952 wa., 

previously equally divided between the parties, whereby each party 

received, on or about September 27, 2012, the following: S365,071.73 

one thousand shares of GLD, $37,500.00 par value Missouri Stat 

Water Pollution Control municipal bonds, and $37,500.00 par value Elgin 

Texas School District municipal bonds. 
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18. The prior balance in the Charles Schwab account ending in 4245 was 

previously equally divided between the parties, whereby each party 
3 

4 	 received $386,293.42 on or about September 11, 2012. 

5 	19. With respect to the Legacy Treasury Direct account ending in 6330, this 

account previously had a balance of $4,200,000.00. Of this amount, 

$3,200,00.00 was equally divided by the parties whereby each part 

received $1,600,000.00 on or about September 17, 2012. Following the 

settlement between the parties and after the division of assets wa 

memorialized on the record during the hearing before the Court o 

December 3, 2012, the then remaining balance of the Legacy Treasu 

Direct account ending in 6330, which was "reserved to equalize th 

division of assets," was utilized to equalize the division of assets betwee 

the parties with Vivian receiving $470,800.00 and IGrk receivin 

$529,200.00 on or about December 20, 2012, Said distributions full 

liquidated the Legacy Treasury Direct account ending in 6330 and it n 

longer exists. 

20. The entire balance in Vivian's Charles Schwab IRA account ending i 

2759. Said account is in Vivian's name and Vivian shall retain di 

aCCOUrit. 

21. A portion of Kirk's UBS Profit Sharing Plan account ending in 3354, wi 

a balance of $797,335.53 as of December 31, 2012, which shall be utilize 

to equalize the difference between the combined total of Kirk's UBS I 
CZ C. DUCKWORTH 
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account ending 3211 and UBS KJ&C Pooled account ending 722-140 with 

Vivian's Charles Schwab IRA account ending 2759. Following entry of the 

Decree of Divorce a Qualified Domestic Relations Order ("QDRO") shall 

be utilized for the division of this account. A QDRO has been prepared, 

circulated, and is in the process of being finalized. This Court shall ret 

jurisdiction to enter said qualified order. 

22. One.half of the gold and silver coins acquired by the parties durini 

marriage. Vivian has received the following gold coins: 55 American Eagle 

gold coins, 55 Canadian Maple Leaf gold coins, and 55 S. Africa 

Krugerrand gold coins. Vivian has received 2,500 Silver Eagle silver coins. 

23. The 201 1 Toyota Avalon. 

24, The Colt Government Model 380 semi-automatic pistol and the Smith 

Wesson Model 37 — 38 caliber Chiefs Special Airweight revolver. 

25. All personal property items identified and appraised by Joyce Newman a 

set forth in the "Summary Appraisal Report Volume I of 11" with a 

effective date of November 20, 2012, except for the following enumerate 

items: 21 Stairmaster; 24 Elliptical; 25 Vectra; 26 Rotator Cuff; 28 Bike; 

29 Shop Stool; 30 Block bells; 31 Bench; 35 Foosball; 38 Grey lockers; 4 

2000 truck; 41 Acura; 42 Silverado; 43 Safe; 74 Pool Table; 75 Uprigh 

Piano; 76 Credenza/file; 77 Display Cabinet; 78 Four leather stools; 80 

work on paper; 81 work on paper; 82 work on paper; 83 pool Cues; 84 

Desk; 85 work on paper; 86 work on paper; 87 work on paper; 88 work on 
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paper; 116 Chest Table; 117 Side Table; 121 Side Table; 126 Rug; 127 

Rug; 129 Side Table; 130 Bedroom Suite; 131 Iron bed; 132 Armchair. 

26. Except as provided otherwise herein, any and all Vivian's clothing, jewelry, 

articles of personal adornment, miscellaneous personal possessions, and 

personal affects, including family heirlooms and personal property received 

by gift or inheritence. 

27. The residence located at 1514 Sunrise Circle, Boulder City, Nevada (Parcel 

#186-17-501-004), with a stipulated value of $760,000.00, together with 

all improvements thereon and all appurtenances thereto. Kirk sha 

execute a quitclaim deed waiving and releasing any interest whatsoever I. 

the residence located at 1514 Sunrise Circle, Boulder City, Nevada, 

28. The residence located at 213 Jasmine Way, Boulder City, Nevada (Parce 

#186-04-516-097), together with all improvements thereon and al 

appurtenances thereto. 

29. The residence located at 1521 Sunrise Circle, Boulder City, Nevada (Parce 

#186-17-510-011), together with all improvements thereon and a 

appurtenances thereto. 

30. The money and/or property each party receives pursuant to this Deere 

shall be included for all purposes in the amount each party receives as pa 

of the ultimate resolution in the divorce between the parties, including an 

and all entities or properties formed or purchased with their respectiv 

portions of the distribution identified herein. 
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IT IS FURTHER ORD ERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Kirk shall have 

confirmed to him as his sole and separate property, free of any claims by Vivian, the sole 

ownership in and to the following: 

1. A one-half interest in the income and distributions of Kirk's business 

interest in the Tobacco Contract, which Kirk has warranted and 

represented is the only asset of the business known as Harrison, Kemp Sx. 

Jones Chartered. Kirk shall pay to Vivian one-half of all net income and 

distributions therefrom, net of the maximum tax rate. To the extent the 

actual taxes attributable to the income and distributions are less than the 

maximum tax rate, Kirk shall refund to Vivian the corresponding amount 

associated with her one-half interest. There shall be an annual accounting 

of said income and distributions to determine the extent of any refund_ 

2. The entire interest in Harrison Dispute Resolution, LLC. The prio: 

balance in the business account associated with Harrison Disput( 

Resolution at Bank of America ending in 4668 was previously equal!) 

divided between the parties whereby each party received $115,836.47 or 

Or about December 24, 2012. Kirk shall retain this account. 

3. A twelve and one-half percent (12.5%) interest in The Measo Associates 

a Nevada General Partnership, currently held in Kirk's sole name. Tht 

parties currently have a 25% interest in The Measo Associates. Following 

the entry of the Decree of Divorce, the interest shall be equally divided, 

14 



• 
allocating 12.5% to each party as his or her respective sole and separate 

property. 

4. The approximate nine percent (9% ) interest in Geothermic Solution, LLC, 

currently held in Kirk's sole name, shall be placed in a trust whereby Kirk 

and Vivian shall each receive any and all rights or benefits to one-half of 

said interest. lf, for any reason, it is illegal, will jeopardize the legal status 

of the LLC, or is otherwise impermissible under the organizational 

documents of Geothermic Solution, LLC, to transfer the interest into a 

trust, then the parties agree to work with one another so that Vivian is 

equitably entitled to one-half of the approximate 9% interest in 

Geothermic Solution, LLC, either directly or by control of any and all 

rights or benefits arising from that interest. 

5. One-half of the balance in the Boulder Dam Credit Union savings account 

ending in 9005, as of September 11, 2012. 

6. One-half of the balance in the Boulder Dam Credit Union DDA accoun 

ending in 9005, as of September 11, 2012. 

7. One-half of the balance in the Bank of America DDA account ending ii 

1400, as of September II, 2012. 

8. The entire balance in the Bank of America money market account endini 

in 51 I 1. The prior balance in the Bank of America money market accouni 

ending in 5111 was previously equally divided between the parties 
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whereby each party received $124,809.55 on or about December 24, 2012. 

Said account is in Kirk's name and Kirk shall retain this account. 

9. One-half of the balance in the Bank of America checking account ending 

in 4040, with a balance of $36,346.02 as of February 5, 2013. Following 

the equal division of the balance contained in the account, Kirk shall retain 

this account. 

10. One-half of the balance in the Bank of America account ending in 8682, 

with a balance of $6,638,54 as of January 7, 2013. Said account is 

currently in Kirk's name. Following the equal division of the balance 

contained in the account, Kirk shall retain this account. 

11. One-half of the balance in the Nevada Bank St, Trust account ending i 

2713, with a balance of $740.42 as of February 4, 2013. Said account i 

currently in Kirk's name. Following the equal division of the balanc 

contained in the account, Kirk shall retain this account. 

12. One-half of the balance in the Nevada Bank &. Trust account ending i 

1275 (Certificate of Deposit), with a balance of $16,360.45 as of Febni 

5, 2013. Said account is currently in Kirk's name. Following the equa 

division of the balance contained in the account., Kirk shall retain thi 

account. 

13. One-half of the balance in the Wells Fargo account ending in 803 

(Certificate of Deposit), with a balance of $28,809.58 as of February 5, 
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2013. Said account is currently in Kirk's name. Follwoing the division of 

the balance contained in the account, Kirk shall retain this account 

14. The prior balance in the UBS RMA account ending in 7066 was previously 

equally divided between the parties, whereby each party received 

$455,727.35 on or about September 14, 2012. Said account is in Kirk's 

name and Kirk shall retain this account. 

15. The entire balance in Kirk's separate property Bank of America account 

ending in 2521, with a balance of $112,024.01 as of February 14, 2013. 

Said account is currently in Kirk's name and Kirk shall retain this account, 

16. One-half of the balance of the Bank of America account ending in 8278, 

with a balance of $46,622.74 as of February 14, 2013. Said account is 

currently in Kirk's name. Following the division of the balance containe 

in the account, Kirk shall retain this account, 

17. The entire balance in Kirk's separate property UBS RMA account endin 

in 8538, with a balance of $382,166,83 as of January 31, 2013. Sai 

account is in Kirk's name and Kirk shall retain this account. 

18. The prior balance in the UBS }MA account ending in 3201 was previousl 

equally divided between the parties, whereby each party receive 

$51,458.17 on or about September 11, 2012. Said account is in Kirk' 

name and Kirk shall retain this account. 

19. The entire balance in the Vanguard account ending in 4530/3952. Th 

prior balance in the Vanguard account ending in 453013952 was previousl 
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equally divided between the parties, whereby each party received, on or 

about September 27, 2012, the following: $365,071.73, one thousand 

shares of GLD, $37,500.00 par value Missouri State Water Pollution 

Control municipal bonds, and $37,500.00 par value Elgin, Texas School 

District municipal bonds. Said account is in Kirk's name and Kirk shall 

retain the account 

20. The entire balance in the Charles Schwab account ending in 4245. The 

prior balance in the Charles Schwab account ending in 4245 was 

previously equally divided between the parties, whereby each p 

received $386,293.42 on or about September 11, 2012. Said account i 

in Kirk's name and Kirk shall retain the account. 

21. With respect to the Legacy Treasury Direct account ending in 6330, thi 

account previously had a balance of $4,200,000.00. Of this amount 

$3,200,00.00 of that amount was equally divided by the parties whereb 

each party received $1,600,000.00 on or about September 17, 2012 

Following the settlement between the parties and after the division a 

assets was memorialized on the record during the hearing before the Cou 

on December 3, 2012, the then remaining balance of the Legacy Treas 

Direct account ending in 6330, which was "reserved to equalize th 

division of assets," was utilized to equalize the division of assets betwee 

the parties with Vivian receiving $470,800.00 and 'Kirk receivin 

$529,200.00 on or about December 20,2012. Said distributions full 
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liquidated the Legacy Treasury Direct account ending in 6330 and it no 

longer exists. 

22. The entire balance in Kirk's UBS IRA account ending in 3211, with a 

balance of $142,404.91 as of January 31, 2013. Said account is in Kirk's 

name and Kirk shall retain the account. 

23. The entire balance in Kirk's UBS KJSK,C Pooled account ending in 722- 

140, with a balance of $14,011.95 as of September 30, 2012. Said 

account is in Kirk's name and Kirk shall retain the account. 

24. Kirk's UBS Profit Sharing Plan account ending in 3354, with a balance of 

$797,335.53 as of December 31, 2012, subject to Vivian's right to that 

portion of said account necessary to equalize the difference between th 

combined total of Kirk's UBS IRA account ending 3211 and UBS KJ& 

Pooled account ending 722-140 with Vivian's Charles Schwab IRA account 

ending 2759. Following entry of the Decree of Divorce a Qualifie 

Domestic Relations Order ("QDRO") shall be utilized for the division o 

this account. A QDRO has been prepared, circulated, and is in the proces 

of being finalized. This Court shall retain jurisdiction to enter sat 

qualified order. 

25. One-half of the gold and silver coins acquired by the parties durin 

marriage. Kirk has received the following gold coins-. 55 American Eagl 

gold coins, 55 Canadian Maple Leaf gold coins, and 55 S. Africa 

Krugerrand gold coins. Kirk has received 2,500 Silver Eagle silver coins. 

19 



26. The 2009 Chevrolet Z71 Crew Cab pickup truck. 

27. The 2008 Acura MDX, 

28. The 2000 Chevrolet Z71 Extended Cab pickup truck. 

29. All personal property items identified and appraised by Joyce Newman as 

set forth in the "Summary Appraisal Report Volume H of H" with an 

effective date of November 20, 2012. 

30, All of the guns (except for the Colt Government Model 380 and the Smith' 

gr.. Wesson Model 37 — 38 caliber Aitweight which have been previously 

provided to Vivian), together with all accessories, including, but not 

limited to all ammunition, gun cleaning supplies, scopes, cases, etc. 

31. All of the furniture Kirk received from his parents including: his parent's 

bedroom set (which was in the guest bedroom); his mother's alder china 

cabinet and buffet; his mother's needlepoint bench that was made by her 

brother Ray; his mother's small wooden rocking chair; and his father's high 

back wooden chair with red needlepoint. 

32. The following personal property items identified and appraised by Joyce 

Newman as set forth in the "Summary Appraisal Report Volume I of II" 

with an effective date of November 20, 2012: 21 Stairmaster; 24 Elliptical; 

25 Vectra; 26 Rotator Cuff; 28 Bike; 29 Shop Stool; 30 Block bells; 31 

Bench; 35 Foosball; 38 Grey lockers; 40 2000 truck; 41 Acura; 42 

Silverado; 43 Safe; 74 Pool Table; 75 'Upright Piano; 76 Credenza/file; 77 

Display Cabinet; 78 Four leather stools; 80 work on paper; 81 work on 
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paper; 82 work on paper; 83 pool Cues; 84 Desk; 85 work on paper; 86 

work on paper; 87 work on paper; 88 work on paper; 116 Chest Table; 117 

Side Table; 121 Side Table; 126 Rug; 127 Rug; 129 Side Table; 130 

Bedroom Suite; 131 Iron bed; 132 Armchair. 

33. Except as provided otherwise herein, any and all of Kirk's clothing, jewelry, 

articles of personal adornment, miscellaneous personal possessions, and 

personal affects, including family heirlooms and personal property received 

by or inheritance. 

34. Parcel #6050-A-1, consisting of approximately 107.26 acres, 

Washington County, Utah, together with all improvements thereon an 

all appurtenances thereto, including Water Right #208 (Harrison Spring) 

and Water Right #71-4172 (5 acre feet), subject to Vivian's coMmum 

property interest therein, as well as any and all reimbursement claims t 

the ranch property, the total amount of which the parties stipulated t 

being $285,000.00. 

35. Parcel #6052, consisting of approximately 39.91 acres, in Washingto 

County, Utah, together with all improvements thereon and al 

appurtenances thereto, including Water Right #413 (Unnamed Spring 

and Water Rights #71-4450 and #71-4173 (total of 4 acre feet for #71 

4450 Si.. #71-4173). 
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36. Parcel #6050-C, consisting of approximately 3.23 acres, in Washington 

County, Utah, together with all improvements thereon and all 
3 

4 	 appurtenances thereto including Water Right #71-3613. 

5 	37. Parcel #6050-B, consisting of approximately .87 acres, in Washington 

6 

7 

2 

1 

8 

County, Utah, together with all improvements thereon and all 

appurtenances thereto. 

38. Parcel #6049, consisting of approximately 50.62 acres, in Washingto 

County, Utah, together with all improvements thereon and all 

appurtenances thereto, including any and all water rights, including, bu 

not limited to, the followingwater rights: Water Right #138 (Tullis Sprit, 

Area), Water Right #295 (Silent Spring), Water Right #296 (Tulli 

Spring), Water Right #297 (Tullis Gulch), and Water Right #29 

(Hideout Spring). 

39. Parcel #6050-D, consisting of approximately 4.36 acres, in Washingto 

County, Utah, together with all improvements thereon and a 

appurtenances thereto, including any and all water rights. 

40. Parcel #6050-E, consisting of approximately 20.65 acres, in Washingto 

County, Utah, together with all improvements thereon and al 

appurtenances thereto, including any and all water rights. 

41. Parcel #6050-P, consisting of approximately 41.20 acres, in Washingto 

County, Utah, together with all improvements thereon and a 

appurtenances thereto, including any and all water rights. 
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1 	42. Vivian shall execute a quitclaim deed waiving and releasing any interest 
2 

	

3 
	 whatsoever in the Utah ranch, including any and all water rights (to 

	

4 	 include all parcels necessary). 

	

5 	43. The money and/or property each party receives pursuant to this Decree 

	

6 	shall be included for all purposes in the amount each party receives as part 
7 

	

8 
	 of the ultimate resolution in the divorce between the parties, including any 

	

9 
	 and all entities or properties formed or purchased with their respective 

	

10 	 portions of the distribution identified herein. 

	

11 	IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that any persona 
12 

13 
property not identified and appraised by Joyce Newman in her Summary Apprias 

14 Report and not divided or otherwise confirmed to either party pursuant to the terms se 

15 forth above shall be divided by way of an NB List. 

	

16 	IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the followin 
17 

18 
accounts were established by Kirk for Brooke and Rylee under the Nevada Uniform Ac 

19 on Transfers to Minors (NUATM), and Kirk and Vivian have previously funded thes 

20 accounts, through annual gifts: 

	

21 	
1. 	Charles Schwab Custodial Account of Kirk R. Harrison as Custodian fo 

22 

	

23 
	 Emma Brooke Harrison UNVUTMA until age 18, ending in 6622, with 

	

24 
	

balance of $33,251.70 as of December 31, 2012. 

	

25 	2. 	Vanguard Custodial Account of Kirk R. Harrison as Custodian for Emm 
26 

	

27 
	 B. Harrison NV Unif Trans Min Act until age 18, ending in 0709, with 

	

28 
	

balance of $75,115.06 as of December 31, 2012. 
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3. Vanguard Custodial Account of Kirk R. Harrison as Custodian for Emma 

B. Harrison NV Unif Trans Min Act until age 25, ending in 4276, with a 

balance of $210,664.16 as of December 31, 2012. 

4. Vanguard Custodial Account of Kirk R. Harrison as Custodian for Rylee 

M. Harrison NV Unif Tras Min Act until age 25, ending in 4250, with 

balance of $210,094.80 as of December 31, 2012. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that as Rylee ha 

$108,936.12 [(33,251.70 + 75,115.06 + 210,664.16) — 210,094,801 less in he 

accounts than Brooke has in her accounts (as a consequence of the difference in thei 

ages), Kirk and Vivian shall each make the following annual gifts (deposits) into Rylee 

account ending in 4250; (1) for tax year 2012, a deposit of $10,000.00, which deposi 

shall be made prior to April 15, 2013; (2) for tax year 2013, a deposit of $10,000.00 

which deposit shall be made prior to April 15,2014; (3) for tax year 2014, a deposit o 

$10,000.00, which deposit shall be made prior to April 15, 2015; (4) for tax year 2015 

a deposit of $10,000.00, which deposit shall be made prior to April 15, 2016; (5) for 

year 2016, a deposit of $10,000.00, which deposit shall be made prior to April 15,2017 

and (6) for tax year 2017, a deposit of $5,000.00, which deposit shall be made prior t 

April 15, 2018. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that a third party 

custodian shall be appointed for each of the accounts identified above. If possible, th 

parties shall designate a custodian who does not charge a custodial fee. 
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1 	IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that that the 
2 

3 
following 4-year tuition plans were established by Vivian for Brooke and Rylee with the 

4 Nevada Prepaid Tuition Program, and and Kirk and Vivian have fully funded said plans: 

5 1. Contract Number 10002618, Purchaser: Vivian L. Harrison, Beneficiary: 

Emma B. Harrison; Tuition Plan: 4 Year University Plan; the Contract has 

been paid in full with total contract payments of $7,365.00. 

2. 	Contract Number 10400042, Purchaser: Vivian L. Harrison; Beneficiary: 

Rylee M. Harrison; Tuition Plan: 4 Year University Plan; the Contract has 

been paid in full with total contract payments of $12,750.00. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that these accounts 

shall continue to be overseen by Vivian with copies of the Annual Statements of Accoun 

being provided- to Kirk within 10 days of receipt. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the parties 

shall sell Parcel #4025-A, consisting of approximately 60 acres, in Washington County, 

Utah, together with Water rights #81-4115 (2 acre feet) and #81-433 (5 acre feet). I 

IS FURTHER ORDERED that Parcel #4025-A and Water rights #81-4 1 15 and #81 

433 shall be listed for sale for Two Hundred Forty-Nine Thousand Dollar 

($249,000.00). 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the partie 

shall sell Parcel #181 -28-810-002, the residential lot located at 610 Lido Drive, Boulde 

City, Nevada. Said Parcel #181-28-810-002 shall be listed for sale for Three Hundre 

Eighty-Nine Thousand Dollars ($389,000.00). 
VCE O. DUCKWORM 

DISTRiCT JUDGE 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

25 MILY DIVISION. DEPT. Q 
; VEGAS. NEVADA EMI 



IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Parcel #4025- 

A and Parcel #181-28-810-002 shall be listed with a mutually selected real estate broker 

for a period of six months. In the event either or both subject properties has not been 

5 sold or is not in escrow to be sold during any six month listing period, then beginning 

10 days after the expiration of the prior listing, said property or properties shall be listed 

with the same real estate broker or, at the parties' mutual election, another real estate 

broker, and the listed price of the subject property or properties shall be 5% less than the 

list price during the prior six month period. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each 

party shall equally share the net proceeds from the sale of each subject property. IT IS 

FURTHER ORDERED that, upon the expiration of each six month listing period, in the 

event the subject property has not been sold or is not in escrow to be sold, either part. 

hereto shall have the right to purchase the subject property for the listed price, withou 

the payment of or obligation to pay any real estate commission, upon written notice to 

the other party within 5 days of the expiration of the listing. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the furniture 

and furnishings in each of the children's bedrooms are the personal property of tha 

respective child. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that with respec 

to the family photographs and videos of the older children when they were younger 

which are in Kirk's possession, and the family photographs, all of the negatives of th 

family photographs, and all of the videos of Brooke and Rylee, which are in Vivian 

possession, each party hereto shall pay one-half of the cost to transfer all of th 
VCE C. DUCKWORTH 
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1 photographs (utilizing the negative whenever it is in existence) and all videos containing 

one or more of the children to electronic storage and/or data base and to produce a total 

of seven copies of that entire data base so that each party hereto and each of the children 

5 have a copy. Each party shall fully cooperate with the other to facilitate the transfer and 

copying of all photographs (negatives whenever possible) and videos which are the 

subject of this Order. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that each party 

hereto is solely personally responsible for any debt (including any and all credit card 

debt) he or she has at the time this Decree of Divorce is entered. The parties agree and 

acknowledge that the joint credit card account with Nordstrom Bank has been 

previously closed. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Vivian shall 

remove her name from Kirk's Costco membership on or before November I, 2013. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Kirk shall be 

responsible for maintaining his own medical insurance following the entry of this Deere 

of Divorce, and Vivian shall be responsible for maintaining her own medical insuranc 

following the entry of this Decree of Divorce. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that each party shal 

file separate tax returns for the tax year 2012 and each year thereafter. Until such tim 

as Brooke is no longer eligible as a tax dependent, Vivian shall be entitled to claim Ryle 

as a dependent each year on her tax return, and Kirk shall be entitled to claim Brooke 

each year as a dependent on his tax return. In the year following the last year tha 
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Trooke is eligible to be claimed as a tax dependent, the parties shall begin alternating 
2  

Rylee as a dependent with Vivian claiming Rylee in the first year. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the _Joint 

5 Preliminary Injunction that was previously issued in this matter on September 9, 2011, 

is dissolved. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Court shall 

retain jurisdiction to adjudicate any reimbursement owed to Vivian for communit 

expenses paid from separate property monies prior to November 30,2012. The panic 

have designated Cliff Beadle, CPA (for Kirk), and Melissa Attartasio, CFP, (for Vivian), 

to meet and confer to prepare an accounting of said community expenses paid fro 

separate property. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Court shal 

retain jurisdiction to divide any property (or debt) later discvoered that has not bee 

specifically addressed in this Decree. If the Court finds that either party has willfull 

withheld disclosure of any property or property interests, the Court may, in it 

discretion, award all of that property to the other party. Further, in the event of suc 

willful non-disclosure, the Court may require the non-disclosing party to pay al 

reasonable fees and costs incurred by the other party in pursuing his or her right to 

division or distribution of such property. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the partie 

have reserved the issue of attorney's fees incurred in the divorce action. IT 

FURTHER ORDERED that, pursuant to the terms of the agreement placed on th 
ME C. OUCKW011711 
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1 record, either party (or both parties) may file a motion with the Court seeking an award 
2 of fees. This Court shall enter a separate order addressing the issue of attorney's fees an 
3 

4 
costs. Independent of either party's pursuit of said fees and COM, IT IS FURTHE 

5 ORDERED that, should either party be required to commence an action to enforce o 

6 interpret the terms of this Decree, the Court shall order the non-prevailing party in that 
7 action to pay the reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred by the prevailing party, 
8 

9 
including those fees and costs expended during notification or negotiation of the issue' 

10 presented to the Court in the aciton. 

	

11 
	

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the parties 
12 

hereto shall each execute quitclaim deeds, stock transfers, and any and all other 
13 

14 
instruments that may be required in order to effectuate transfer of any and all interest 

15 either may have in and to the said property hereby conveyed to the other as hereinabove 

16 specified. Should either party fail to execute any of said documents to transfer interest 
17 

to the other, this Decree of Divorce shall constitute a full and complete transfer of the 
18 

19 interest of one to the other as hereinabove provided. Upon failure of either party to 

20 execute and deliver any such deed, conveyance, title, certificate or other document or 
21 instrument to the other party, this Decree of Divorce shall constitute and operate as 
22 

23 
such properly executed document and the County Assessor and County Recorder and 

24 any and all other public and private officials are hereby 'authorized and directed to 

25 accept this Decree of Divorce, or a properly certified' copy thereof, in lieu of the 

26 
document regularly required for such conveyance or transfer. 

27 

28 
ME C. DUCKWORTH 

DISTRICT JUDGE 
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that, except as 

otherwise specified herein, any and all property acquired, income received or liabilities 

incurred by either of the parties hereto from and after the date of the entry of this 

Decree of Divorce, will be the sole and separate property of the one so acquiring the 

same, and each of the parties hereto respectively grants to the other all such future 

acquisitions of property as the sole and separate property of the one so acquiring the 

same and holds harmless and agrees to indemnify the other party from any and all 

liabilities incurred. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that if any claim, 

action or proceeding is brought seeking to hold one of the parties hereto liable on 

account of any debt, obligation, liability, act or omission assumed by the other party, the 

responsible party will, at his or her sole expense, defend the innocent party against an 

such claim or demand and he or she will indemnify, defend and hold harmless th 

innocent party. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Defendan 

shall retain her married name of Vivian Marie Lee Harrison. 

DATED this 31st day of October, 2013. 
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CLERK OF THE COURT 

3 

4 
	 DISTRICT COURT 

5 
	

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

6 KIRK ROSS HARRISON, 

Plaintiff, 

V. 	 CASE NO. 0-11-443611-0 
DEPT NO. Q 

VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, 

Defendant. 
) 

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF 
DECREE OF DIVORCE 

TO: ALL PARTIES AND/OR THEIR ATTORNEYS 

Please take notice that an Order From Hearing has been entered in the above-

entitled matter. I hereby certify that on the above file stamped date, I caused a copy of 

the Decree of Divorce and this Notice of Enuy of Decree of Divorce to be: 

el Placed in the folder(s) located in the Clerk's Office of the following attorneys: 

Edward Kainen, Esq. 
Thomas Standish, Esq. 

Radford J. Smith, Esq. 
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El Mailed postage prepaid, addressed to the following attorney: 

Gary Silverman, Esq. 
6140 Plumas St., #200 
Reno, NV 89519 
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Kimberly Weiss 
Judicial Executive Assistant 
Department Q 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 
c. DUCKWORTH 

DISTRICTJUDGIE 

MILY DIVISION, DEPT. Q 
VEGAS, NEVADA 81110/ 2 



Docketing Statement Attachment No. 4 



CLERK OF THE COURT 

04 12 
Cl- g 

'el a 13 
0 	64 2 

OCS 
g Z 

04i 
g 16 

c8  17 

18 

14 

15 

Electronically Filed 
11/14/2013 02:12:46 PM 

1 MOTN 
EDWARD L. KAINEN, ESQ. 

2 Nevada Bar No. 5029 
KAINEN LAW GROUP, PLLC 

3 10091 Park Run Drive, Suite 110 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145 

4 Telephone (702) 823-4900 
Facsimile (702) 823-4488 

5 Administration®KainenLawGroup.com  

6 THOMAS STANDISH, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 1424 

7 JOLLEY URGA WIRTH WOODBURY & STANDISH 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 16th FL 

8 Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Telephone (702) 699-7500 

9 Facsimile (702) 699-7555 
10 tjsguww.com  

Co-counsel for Plaintiff 
11 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

KIRK ROSS HARRISON, 

CASE NO. D-11-443611-D 
DEPT NO. Q 

Date of Hearing: 12 /18 / 2 013 
Time of Hearing: 1 1 : 0 OAM 

ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED: 
YES XX NO 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, 

Defendant. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

19 	NOTICE: PURSUANT TO EDCR 5.25(b) YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO 
THIS MOTION WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE UNDER-SIGNED WITH A COPY 20 OF YOUR RESPONSE WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION. FAILURE TO FILE 
A WRI1TEN RESPONSE WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT 21 OF THIS MOTION MAY RESULT IN THE REQUESTED RELIEF BEING GRANTED BY THE COURT 
WITHOUT HEARING PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED HEARING DATE. 

22 

23 PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO ALT AMEND CORRECT AND CLARIFY JUDGMENT 

24 	 COMES NOW, Plaintiff, KIRK ROSS HARRISON, by and through his attorneys, 

25 THOMAS J. STANDISH, ESQ., of the law firm JOLLEY, URGA, WLRTH, WOODBURY & 

26 ST.ANDISH, and EDWARD L. KAINEN, ESQ., of the KAINEN LAW GROUP, PLLC, and hereby 

27 moves this Court, pursuant to NRCP 52(b) and NRCP 59(e), to alter, amend, correct and clarify the 

28 Decree of Divorce entered by this Court on October 31, 2013. 



1 	 This Motion is made and based upon the Points and Authorities submitted herewith, the 

2 Affidavits attached hereto, the Exhibits attached hereto, and upon the oral argument of counsel at the 

3 time of hearing. 

4 	 DATED this  14  day of November, 2013.• 

5 	 KAINEN LAW GROUP„.PLC 

By: 	  
EDWARD L. KAlNEN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 5029 
10091 Park Run Drive, Suite 110 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

NOTICE OF MOTION 

TO: VIVIAN MARIE HARRISON, Defendant; and 

TO: RADFORD SMITH, ESQ. and GARY SILVERIVIAN, ESQ., counsel for Defendant: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring the foregoing Motion on. for 
12/18/2013 

hearing before the above-entitled Court on the 	day of 	 , 2013, at the hour of 

16 11:00AM  	.m., or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard. 

DATED this Lt- day of November, 2013. 

KAINEN LAW GROUP, PLLC 

By: 	et-' 	-V  
EDWARD L. KAINEN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 5029 
10091 Park Run Drive, Suite 110 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
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1 	 MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES  

2 L INTRODUCTION 

3 	After the terms of the settlement between the parties were memorialized on the record before 

4 the Court during the hearing on December 3, 2012, this Court granted an absolute Decree of Divorce. 

5 Kirk's counsel thereafter prepared and provided a Marital Settlement Agreement to Vivian's attorneys 

6 on February 19,2013. Vivian's attorneys made written assurances they would provide a response. (See 

7 Kirk's Motion for Scheduling Order, filed 9.14.13, p. 11, L 13-20.) However, four and one-half months 

8 elapsed without a response. Left with no alternative, Kirk's counsel filed a Motion to Enter Decree on 

9 May 13, 2013, attaching a proposed Decree of Divorce at that time. 

10 	As of September 4, 2013, Vivian's attorneys had still failed to respond to the Marital Settlement 

11 Agreement, which had been provided to them on February 19, 2013 — over six and one-half months 

earlier. Pursuant to EDCR 5.25(b), Vivian's attorneys were required to file an opposition to Kirk's 

Motion to Enter Decree, filed May 13, 2013, within ten (10) days. As of September 4, 2013, Vivian's 

14 attorneys had failed to file an opposition to Kirk's Motion to Enter Decree for one hundred fourteen 

15 (114) days. Again, left with no alternative, Kirk's counsel "filed a Motion for Scheduling Order on 

16 September 4, 2013. 

17 	On September 19, 2013, this Court entered its Order Incident to the Order Resolving 

18 Parent/Child Custody Issues and December 3,2013 Hearing, wherein this Court ordered the submission 

19 of a proposed Decree of Divorce from both parties. Since Vivian's attorneys had Kirk's proposed 

20 Decree of Divorce since May 13, 2013, they had ample opportunity and did, in fact, respond ICirk's 

21 proposed Decree of Divorce by way of Vivian's submission of a proposed Decree of Divorce. In 

22 contrast however, although Kirk' s counsel responded to Vivian's attorneys' "Notes" and "Explanation," 

23 Kirk was not afforded an opportunity to respond to the provisions contained in Vivian's proposed 

24 Decree of Divorce and, more particularly, the provisions thereof which are wholly inconsistent with the 

25 agreement between the parties and the record memorialized before the Court on December 3, 2012. 

26 

27 

28 
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1 II. ARGUMENT 

2 

3 
A. 	A Motion To Alter or Amend Is Proper As There Has Been Judicial Error Caused 

By the Submission Of Vivian's Proposed Decree of Divorce 

4 	A motion to amend is proper when there has been judicial error in the judgement. NRCP 52(b) 

5 provides: 

6 	Upon a party's motion filed not later than 10 days after service of written notice of entry 
of judgment, the court may amend its findings or make additional findings and may 

7 

	

	amend the judgment accordingly. The motion may accompany a motion for a new trial 
under Rule 59. When findings of fact are made in actions tried without a jury, the 

8 

	

	sufficiency of the evidence supporting the findings may later be questioned whether or 
not in the district court the party raising the question objected to the findings, moved to 

9 	amend them, or moved for partial findings. 

A motion to amend must be filed within ten days after service of the notice of entry of the 

11 judgment. NRCP 59(e) provides: 

(e) 	Motion to Alter or Amend a Judgment. A motion to alter or amend the judgment 
shall be filed no later than 10 days after service of written notice of entry of the 

13 	judgment. 

14 	A motion to alter or amend the judgment is proper where there has been judicial error, as 

15 opposed to clerical error, in a judgment of the Court. See, e.g., Koester v. Administrator of Estate of 

16 Koester, 101 Nev. 68, 73, 693 P.2d 569, 573 (describing the court's general power to correct clerical 

17 errors); 4 LITIGATING TORT CASES § 46:14 (2011) ("The motion must seek to "alter or amend" the 

18 judgment, i.e., requesting to correct judicial error as opposed to clerical error."). A 'judicial error" is 

19 one in which the Court made an error in the consideration of the matters before it, as opposed to an error 

20 . in the judgment itself that did not reflect the true intention of the Court. See, e.g., Presidential Estates 

21 Apartment Associates v. Barrett, 917 P.2d 100, 103-04 (Wash. 1996). 

22 	As a consequence of the errors contained in Vivian's proposed decree of divorce, there are errors 

23 contained in the Decree of Divorce, entered by the Court on October 31, 2013. 

24 
B. 	Both Parties Have Consistently Acknowledged That Kirk's Separate Property 

25 
	

Accounts Are Kirk's Separate Property and Were, Therefore, Never To Be Divided 

26 
	

1. 	The Difference in the Proposed Decrees of Divorce 

27 	The proposed Decree of Divorce provided by Kirk, provided that Kirk would keep the entire 

28 balance in each of his separate property accounts ending in 8682, 2713, 1275, 8032, and 2521. See, 
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1 Kirk's proposed Decree, p. 11, 110 & 11; p. 12,12, 13 & 15. Accounts 8682, 2713, 1275, and 8032 
2 are separate property accounts which existed prior to marriage and Kirk has maintained separately or 
3 are an account Kirk established when his father passed away to deposit money he received from his 
4 parents' estates and which also have been maintained separately. The account ending in 2521 is the 
5 separate property account Kirk established during the pendency of the divorce to deposit separate 
6 property funds, which have been utilized to pay Kirk's normal ongoing bills. 

	

7 	In the proposed Decree of Divorce provided by Vivian, Vivian proposed that the money in each 
8 of Kirk's separate property accounts ending in 8032, 8682, 2713 and 1275 be equally divided. See, 

9 Vivian's submission, filed 9.27.13, Exh. D, p. 8, 16.16; p.6, ¶6.18,6.19; p . 9, 1 6.21. Vivian's proposed 
10 Decree also proposed that the money in the account ending in 8278 be ecpin  fly  divided. See, p. 8, 16.17 
11 The account ending in 8278 is the separate property account Kirk established when the Court ordered 

1-4 
g,0, 12 that $700,000.00 in community funds be equally divided to provide each party with $350,000.00 for the 

:11 	tn 4 -5  8 6. 13 payment of attorneys' fees and costs. This account was opened on March 2, 2012 and is entitled, "Fee 0 ,s  ,s; 
".3 14 Account" and has been used solely by Kirk to pay attorneys' fees and costs. After the initial e.5 4 t 

va  8 .c 15 $350,000.00 was exhausted, Kirk deposited additional separate property funds into this account to pay 
Z 2 cn 16 for attorneys' fees and costs. 

	

17 	Unfortunately, the Court adopted Vivian's erroneous provisions as set forth in the Decree of 
18 Divorce, entered October 31, 2013, p. 9, 110; p. 10, 111, 12, 13 & 14. As a consequence, the following 
19 provisions are also in error, p. 16, 110, 11, 12, 13;p. 17,f16. 

20 
2. 	The Record Before the Court Is Clear That Kirk's Separate Property 

	

21 	 Accounts Were Never To Be Divided 

	

22 	During the hearing on December 3,2012, a record was made regarding the accounts which were 
23 remaining to be divided. The record before the Court is clear that at the time of the hearing on December 
24 3,2012, there were only five remaining accounts to be divided. First, there was a million dollar account 
25 which was set aside to equalize the division of assets between the parties. (Hearing Transcript, 12/3/12, 
26 p. 9, 1. 15-18). Second, there was a retirement account remaining to be divided based upon the terms 
27 of a qualified domestic relations order. (Hearing Transcript, 12.3.12, p. 9,1. 12-15) Third, there were 
28 three remaining identified accounts to also be divided: 
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1 	There are three accounts that have not been divided, not counting the retirement account that is in the process. We have a draft of a qualified order that's been circulated. Those 2 

	

	three accounts are Kirk's checking account that ends in 4040, the number, and a money market account also in Kir k's name ending in 5111, and then the Harrison Dispute 3 	Resolution, LLC account, which actually ends in, the number 4668. 
4 (Hearing Transcript, 12.3.12, p. 9, 1.20-25; p. 10,1. 1) 

5 	The record is absolutely clear that only those five accounts were remaining to be divided. There 
6 was no reference whatsoever to Kirk's separate property accounts, as these are Kirk's separate property 
7. and, for that reason, were never going to be divided. Consistently, when Kirk's attorneys identified the 
8 accounts to be equally divided, Vivian's attorneys did not apprise the Court that additional accounts 
9 —these separate property accounts of Kirk — were also to be divided. It was not until the submission of 

10 Vivian's .  proposed Decree almost ten months later, on September 27, 2013, did Vivian's attorneys 
11 advocate that Kirk's separate property accounts should also be divided) (..) 	• 

0Q. 12 	There was never an agreement between the parties "regarding the equal division of all cash 
13 accounts" as erroneously alleged in the "Explanation" submitted by Vivian. See, Vivian's submission, c.s] 

FO 1 1 	14 9/27/13, p. 4, 1. 16-21. Such an agreement is totally nonsensical as it would require Kirk to divide Ora ogod 
°Dg'Ll 15 accounts which were already the result of the parties equally dividing community funds and 
z.m. 2 VI 16 transforming them into separate property funds. Vivian, in effect, would then get one-half of Kirk's § 

17 one-half. 

18 

19 

20 

It should be noted when Kirk submitted his proposed Decree as an attachment to his Motion To Enter Decree of Divorce, filed May 13, 2013, Kirk added three accounts which are in Vivian's name, the 
community nature of which has never been in dispute. (Kirk's proposed Decree, p. 6, L 15, 6 & 7.) These three accounts were only added for purposes of completeness so that all community accounts 
were identified, as Kirk believed the amount of money in these accounts was de rninimis. To the extent the addition of these accounts is inconsistent with the record before the Court on December 3, 2012, Kirk will waive any interest in these accounts, despite the fact both parties have always agreed these accounts are community property. One of these accounts is the checking account Vivian utilized during 
the marriage. According to Exhibit E, filed by Vivian on September 27,2013, the total money in all three of these accounts is $477.00 [278 + 7 + 1921 
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3. 	After Vivian's Attorneys Received Extensive Responses in Discovery 
Confirming the Subject Accounts Only Contained Kirk's Separate Property 
Funds, the Financial Experts On Behalf of Both Parties, Jointly Determined 
The Relative Community and Separate Property Interests in the Ranch 
Parcels that Kirk Had Acquired From His Sisters On the Basis that the 
Funds in Those Separate Property Accounts Were And Are Kirk's Separate 
Property 

5 	Kirk filed his Financial Disclosure Form on February 12, 2012. A true and correct copy is 

6 attached hereto as Exhibit "1." Exhibit 2 to the FDF identifies the same four separate property accounts 

7 ending in 8682, 2713, 1275 and 8032 as being Kirk's separate property.' The following is a brief 

8 history of these four accounts: 

9 	1. 	Bank of America account ending in 8682 — Kirk has had this account since be was in 
high school. The account was originally with the Pioche Office of Nevada National 
Bank. Nevada National Bank was later acquired by Security Pacific Bank. Security 
Pacific Bank was subsequently acquired by Bank of America. 

2. Nevada Bank & Trust account ending in 2713 this was a joint account Kirk had with 
his father, with full right of survivorship, prior to his marriage to Vivian. When Kirk' s 
father passed away on October 30, 1990, he became the sole owner of the account. 

3. Nevada Bank  & Trust account ending in 1275 — the account ending in 2713 is a non- 
interest bearing checking account. Therefore, Kirk purchased a certificate of deposit at 
Nevada Bank & Trust with most of the funds in that account and thus created this 
account 

4. Wells Fargo account ending in 8032 — Kirk opened an account at First Interstate Bank 
on November 29, 1990, to deposit all monies he received from his father's estate and all 
monies he received from the lease and sale of Kirk's parents' family home, which Kirk 
and his sisters inherited from their mother when she passed away in 1983. Kirk's father 
lived in the family home until the time of his death. The home was subsequently leased 
and sold. Sometime after all monies were received from his father's estate and the 
family home was sold, Kirk purchased a certificate of deposit at FIB with all of the funds 
in that account and thus created this account. Wells Fargo subsequently acquired First 
Interstate Bank. 

Also identified as separate property is UBS account ending in 8538, which holds the funds Kirk 
26 acquired as separate property pursuant to a separate property agreement with Vivian, whereby she 

acquired the same amount of funds to purchase the house for the Atkinsons. As noted previously, the 
account ending hi in 2521 is the separate property account Kirk established subsequently during the 
pendency of the divorce to deposit separate property funds, which has been utilized to pay Kirk' s normal 
ongoing bills. 

1 
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1 	Kirk's extensive discovery responses confirm that each of Kirk' s separate propertyaccounts only 
2 contain Kirk's separate property. On or about March 8, 2012, Kirk produced Plaintiff's First 
3 Supplemental Response to Defendant's First Request for Production of Documents. Included in these 
4 documents are the following: 

5 	REOUEST FQR PRODUCTION NO. 11: 

6 	 please produce any and all documents evidencing any inheritance 
received by Plaintiff or Defendant during the time of the parties' marriage, and any and 7 

	

	all property or assets acquired through or attributable to any rents, issues, and profits 
from such inheritance. 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 11:  

See the following documents submitted herewith: 

1. Probate Final Order dated 5/8/02 	PLTF000798 PLTF000800 

2. 1/25/88 letter from Associated Food Stores, Inc 	 
&e, 12 	 regarding Patron's credit receipts 	  PLIT000801 4 a 

P: A3. 72: 	13 

14 Llatg 
0 S 
)-4 1> I4s1 
4;1E1 g 

2 F.) 

18 
6. 	Check register and backup documents for First Interstate 

Bank account ending 5565 	 PLTF000812 - PLTF000828 

19 As part of this production, Kirk also produced, in response to request #15, inter alia, the following: 
20 	 5. 	Bank of America, Ending 8682 

Kirk Harrison 
21 	 Period ending: 7/8/09 - 2/3/12 	 PLTF002656 - PLTF002782 

22 	 11. Nevada Bank & Trust, Ending 2713 
Kirk Harrison 

23 	 Period ending: 6/9/09 - 1/9/12 	 PLTF003679 - PLTF003759 

24 	On or about October 1, 2012, Kirk provided Plaintiff's Response to Defendant's Second Set of 
25 Interrogatories. In response to Interrogatory #28, Kirk explained the source offunds utilized to purchase 
26 his sisters' interests in the family ranch as follows: 

27 	 I purchased my sister Janie's undivided one-fourth interest hi Parcel #6050-A-1 
and her undivided one-third interest in Parcel #6052 on or about December 29, 1994 for 28 	the total purchase price of $60,000.00. $11,100 of the $60,000 purchase price came from 
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15 

3. 11/21/90 letter from Kirk Harrison to Associate Food Stores, Inc, 
regarding Patron's credit receipts 	PLTF000802 - PLTF000806 

4. Check 1041 payable to Kirk Harrison in the amount 
of $45,543.68 and supporting deposit documentsPLTF000807 - PLTF000809 

16 5. 	Letter from Kirk Harrison to Nevada Bank & Trust 
requesting cashier's check for $48,900 	PLTF000810 - PLTF000811 17 



I 

	

	a separate property account at FIB (#0380145565). My Dad passed away on October 30, 
1990.1 opened this separate property account with FIB on November 29, 1990 to deposit 

2 

	

	all monies I received from my Dad and all monies I received from the lease and sale of 
our family home in Caliente,Nevada. $48,900 ofthe $60,000 purchase price came from 

3 

	

	what I then believed to be a totally separate property account at Nevada Bank & Trust 
(#1802792). I had purchased nay home, located at 5100 Bromley Avenue in Las Vegas, 

4 

	

	on October 4, 1979— over three (3) years before my marriage to Vivian. I had purchased 
the home for $72,400 with a $12,400 down payment and a note for $60,000.00. When 

5 

	

	I sold this house, I calculated what I believed at the time to be a very conservative 
estimate of the separate property portion of the proceeds from the sale of that home, and 

6 

	

	had the escrow company cut two checks based upon that calculation — one for 
$45,543.68 and one for $67,000.00. I opened the account at Nevada Bank & Trust in 

7 	July of 1992 and deposited $45,543.68, which I believed to be 100% my separate 

8  
property. I deposited the $67,000.00 into a community property account. 

I purchased my sister Jo Lyn's undivided one-fourth interest in Parcel #6050-A-1 
9 

	

	and her undivided one-third interest in Parcel #6052 in May of 1998 for a total of 
$70,000.00. $19,000.00 of the $70,000 purchase price was from the separate property 

10 	account at FIB, however, by then it was Wells Fargo Bank. 

11 	 I purchased my sister Kaye's undivided one-fourth interest in. Parcel #6050-A-1 
and her undivided one-third interest in Parcel #6052 in December of 1998 for a total of 

12 	$110,000.00 utilizing community funds. 

13 	On or about October 1,2012, Kirk provided Plaintiff's Response to Defendant's Third Request 

14 for Production of Documents. In response to Request #38, Kirk provided, inter alia, the following 

15 documents: 

16 
	

Documents evidencing source of funds have been previously provided in 
response to a prior request for production. See, Bates-stamped nos. PLTF000798 - 
PLTF000809 and PLTF000812 - PLTF000828. The following additional documents 
are being produced herewith: 

1. Letter dated June 29, 1992 from Minnesota Title Ins. to Kirk R. Harrison 
Re: Escrow No. 23-86407-KO 	 PLTF010061 - PLTF010064 

2. Monthly statements for Nevada Bank & Trust account # 1802792 
(July 31, 1992 through January 31, 1995) 	PLTF010065 -PLTF010101 

3. Copy of the cashier's check, in the amount of $11,100.00 
made payable to Northern Nevada Title, from First Interstate 
Bank, dated December 29, 1994 	  PLTF010102 

4. Copy of personal check, in the amount of $51,000.00, made 
payable to Walther Key Trust Account, drawn on account number 
ending 4040, and copy of Cashier's Check, in the amount of 
$19,000.00, dated March 18, 1998, made payable to Walther 
Key Trust Account, drawn on Wells Fargo Bank 	 PLTF010193 

27 	After the production of all of the documentation relative to Kirk's separate property accounts 

28 and ICirk's answers to interrogatories referenced above, the parties participated in a settlement meeting 
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1 on or about November 29,2012. During that settlement meeting, the financial experts on behalf of both 
2 parties — Cliff Beadle, on behalf of Kirk and Melissa Attanasio and Brian Boone (via telephone), on 
3 behalf of Vivian — jointly determined the relative community and separate property interests in the ranch 
4 parcels that Kirk had acquired from his sisters on the basis that the funds in the separate property 

5 accounts were and are Kirk's separate property. At no time during the negotiations beginning on 
6 November 29, 2012, and culminating in the settlement which was memorialized on the record before 
7 this Court on December 3, 2012, did Vivian's attorneys or financial experts take the position that Kirk's 
8 separate property accounts were not Kirk's separate property. See, Affidavit of Clifford R. Beadle, 
9 dated November 8,2013, which is attached hereto as Exhibit "2." 

10 	In summary, Kirk ' s separate property accounts were identified in Kirk's Financial Disclosure 
11 Form as being Kirk's separate property. After receiving multiple responses to discovery concerning 
12 these accounts, the financial experts, on behalf of both parties, jointly determined relative separate and 
13 community property interests in certain ranch parcels on the basis these were and are ICirk's separate 
14 property accounts. The record before the Court on December 3, 2013, is indisputably clear there were 

E 15 only five accounts yet to be divided — none of which were Kirk's separate property accounts. Neither 

E 16 party indicated to the Court that any of these separate property accounts were to be divided. Inconsistent 
17 with all of the foregoing, Vivian's attorneys submitted their much belated proposed Decree of Divorce 
18 some 10 months later proposing the division of Kirk's separate property accounts. 
19 

C. 	Kirk Respectfully Submits The Further Division Of Personal Property By 20 	 Way Of An A/B List Is Unnecessary 

21 	The Court 's Decree of Divorce provides, "that any personal property not identified and appraised 
22 by Joyce Newman in her Summary Appraisal Report and not divided or otherwise confirmed to either 
23 party pursuant to the terms set forth above shall be divided by way of an A/B List." See, Decree of 
24 Divorce, p. 23, I. 11-15. It is clear from the record on December 3, 2012, and the proposed Decrees of 
25 Divorce submitted by the parties, that all of the personal property at the Utah Ranch belongs to Kirk. 
26 (December 3, 2012, Hearing Transcript, p. 7, I. 7 - 8.) Therefore the only items of personal property 
27 which would be subject to division by way of an A/B List are the items of personal property which were 
28 in the marital residence which were not on Joyce Newman 's Summary Appraisal. As Kirk has 
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1 previously represented to the Court, he believes that 95% of these personal items are in Vivian's 
2 possession. Despite this knowledge, Kirk is willing to forego the expense of an .A/B List division of 
3 these items and the personal property that Kirk removed from the marital residence when he vacated 
4 the marital residence. 

5 

	

1. 	Both Parties Agree that All of the Personal Property Presently 6 	 Located at the Ranch Belongs to Kirk 

7 	The record of the hearing on December 3, 2012, is unequivocal that all of the personal property 
8 at the Utah Ranch belongs to Kirk. Vivian's proposed Decree is unequivocal that all of the personal 
9 property at the Utah Ranch belongs to Kirk. (Vivian's proposed Decree, p.15, ¶7.30 & 7.31.) It should 

10 be noted that this submission was made on September 27,2013 — ten months after Vivian complained 
11 that Kirk improperly took personal property from the marital residence, which is addressed in detail 
12 infra. Kirk's proposed Decree is also unequivocal that all of the personal property at the Utah Ranch 

8 13 belongs to Kirk. (Kirk's proposed Decree, p. 14,1129, 30 & 31.) 
6° 
 

14 

	

2. 	The Personal Property Which Was Located at the Marital 15 	 Residence But Not Identified by Joyce NeW1111211 

16 	As the Court has readily seen from ICirk's response to the "Notes" and "Explanation" 
17 accompanying Vivian's proposed Decree of Divorce, Kirk responded in detail as to those items Vivian 
18 alleged were improperly taken, setting forth the basis upon which it was taken, and the de rninimis value 
19 of what was taken. See, Kirk's submission of proposals, filed 9/30/13, p. 5-14. 

20 	It should be noted that Vivian had previously taken the same position as Kirk that the furniture 
21 and furnishings in the children's bedrooms belonged to the children. However, despite the fact that 
22 Tahnee and Whitney boxed their .  own belongings from their bedrooms and asked Kirk to remove their 
23 furniture and furnishings from the marital residence, Vivian complained this was somehow improper. 
24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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1 As noted in Kirk's submission of proposals, filed 9/30/13, p. 9, these were the first two items on 

2 Vivian's fifteen item list. Confirming this was the primary objection to the personal items Kirk 

3 removed, Vivian again accused Kirk of improper behavior in removing Tahnee's and Whitney's 

4 furniture and furnishings, which was at their request and on their behalf, in Vivian's opposition to Kirk's 

5 Motion to Modify Order Resolving Parent-Child Issues, filed October 16, 2013, arguing as follows: 
6 	d. Nothing in the agreement regarding property allowed Kirk to clean out the bedroom furniture in the children's rooms. The agreement was the (sic) Kirk would leave all 7 property other than designated. It is questionable this property belongs to the daughters, and the Court lacks jurisdiction to address any dispute regarding the property of the adult children (like UGMA accounts);3  

9 (Vivian's Opposition to Modifying Order Resolving Parent-Child Issues, filed 10/16/13, p. 28,1.23-27.) 

10 	However, in Vivian's proposed Decree, she proposed, as Kirk has consistently proposed, the 

11 following: "The parties wee that the furniture and furnishings in each of the children's bedrooms is 

12 the personal property of that respective child." (Vivian's proposed Decree, p.. 19, ¶11.1.) 

13 	Vivian has refused and continues to refuse to allow Kirk to obtain the Stairmaster identified as 

14 item 21 on page 20,132 of the Court's Decree of Divorce. This item needs to be provided in accordance 

15 with this Court's Order. 

16 	This Court's Decree of Divorce contains a number of provisions which address the personal 

17 property which belongs to Kirk, including ¶29, 30, 31, 32, and 33. Paragraph 33 specifically includes 

18 1Cirk's "miscellaneous personal possessions." In addition, the Court made clear the furniture and 

19 furnishings in the children's bedrooms belongs to them. See, Court's Decree of Divorce, p.26,1. 19-22. 

20 In light of these provisions, it is difficult to see from the fifteen identified items what remains to which 
21 Vivian has any viable complaint about: 

22 
	

1. 	All furniture and furnishings from Tahnee's room. Both Kirk and Vivian agreed that 
all of the furniture and furnishings in each of the children's bedrooms was their property. 23 

2. 	All ofthefurniture andfurnishingsfrom Whitney's -  room, except for the glass chandelier. 24 
	

Again, both Kirk and Vivian agreed that all of the furniture and furnishings in each of the children's bedrooms was their property. 
25 

26 

27 The Court should note that as of October 16, 2013, Vivian was still taking the absurd position that Kirk 
had agreed to vacate the marital residence without, literally, the clothes on his back, since his clothes 

28 were not designated by Joyce Newman. 
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1 	3. 	Almost all ofthe DVDs. Kirk's proposal provided, "Kirk shall receive all of the artwork, 
collectibles, books, cds, and dvds that Kirk personally purchased." Kirk only took the 

2 	 dvds he purchased. 

3 	4. 	Rugftom the library. Kirk's proposal provided, "Kirk will receive the furniture, rugs, 
and accessories in the following rooms: library loft, pool table room, and master 

4 	 bedroom." 
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5 	5. 	Linens (only linens Kirk left are a few towels which had Vivian 's initials monogrammed 
on the left). This assertion is not accurate, as many linens were left behind, including 

6 	 towels without Vivian's initials monogrammed on them. 

7 	6. 	Almost all sheets, comforters, cashmere blankets. This assertion is not accurate, as many 
of these items were left behind. Kirk, generally took those sheets, comforters, and 

8 

	

	 cashmere (75% wool) blankets which he had purchased. He also took a comforter his 
mother made for him. There was only one California King bed in the home, which was 

9 

	

	 in the master bedroom. There was a small blue comforter and a small grey comforter — 
Kirk bought these at Costco probably fifteen years ago to keep in the vehicles. There 

10 

	

	 was bedding for five queen beds in the house. Kirk rightfully took three of those queen 
beds — his parents', Tahnee's (which was already in California with Tahnee) and 

11 

	

	 Whitney's. He took about 3/5s or 60% of the queen bedding. The two queen beds 
remaining are Joseph's and Brooke's. Joseph still has all of his bedding and Brooke has 

12 

	

	 all of her bedding. The single bed remaining is Rylee's. Rylee still has all of her 
bedding. 

7. 	Almost all CDs. Kirk's proposal provided, "Kirk shall receive all of the artwork, 
14 	 collectibles, books, cds, and dvds that Kirk personally purchased." It also provided, 

"Vivian shall receive all of the artwork, collectibles, books, cds, and dvds that Vivian 
15 	 personally purchased." Kirk only took the cds which he had purchased. 

16 	8. 	All Photo albums, loose photographs, photo screens. [Already addressed by the Court 
in the Decree, p. 26,1. 23-28; p. 27, L 1-8] 

9. 	Spode Christmas China and Glassware. Kirk's proposal provided, "Kirk shall receive 
18 	 the brown wood handled steak knifes in the marital residence and all of the Spode 

Christmas dinnerware, glasses and related accessories." None of the Spode Christmas 
China and Glassware was itemized on any proposal from Vivian. Kirk and Vivian 
bought the initial Spode Christmas China and Glassware together. Kirk has bought most 
of the accessories during after Christmas sales. Kirk generally sets these items out each 
year. Every year, Kirk washes, drys, and puts these items away. 

10. 	Christmas ornaments. It is noteworthy that on Vivian's A/B list, she proposed that she 
and Kirk equally share all of the 'Holiday Decorations." Kirk's proposal provided, 
"Vivian shall receive all of the Christmas ornaments gifted to her by her mother and 
grandfather and grandmother, all of the Christmas outside lighting, and the lighted 
Christmas tree. Vivian shall receive all of the Christmas ornaments she personally 

24 

	

	 purchased." Most of the Christmas ornaments were left behind, including those Vivian 
received from her family. Kirk took only those ornaments he had received as gifts and 

25 

	

	 those he had purchased. Tahnee and Whitney took their personal ornaments. Kirk left 
the Christmas tree, all of the Christmas decorations, and all of the Christmas lighting. 

11. 	Kitchen bake ware. The vast majority of the kitchen bake ware was left behind. There 
27 	 are cupboards full of kitchen bake ware. Kirk only took a few items. There were four 

large green casserole pans, three large red casserole pans, and two small yellow casserole 
28 	 pans. Kirk took the three large red casserole pans and one small yellow casserole pan. 
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I 	 Kirk took one of several cookie sheets. 

12. Dyson vacuum cleaner. On Vivian's A/B list, she referenced the "cleaning supplies, 
vacuum, etc." as being non-applicable to the A/I3 list, without identifying it being either 
belonging to the husband or wife. There is a built-in vacuum cleaner in_ the marital 
residence. In addition, there was a Dyson vacuum cleaner and a Dirt Devil full size 
vacuum cleaner. Vivian hires people to do the vacuuming in the marital residence and 
rarely vacuums herself. Kirk does his own vacuuming. 

13. Dumb bells from the workout room. Kirk's proposal .provided Vivian receive 
"dumbbells (silver)" and Kirk receive "Dumbbells (rubber)." VivianprOposed in her A/13 
list that Kirk — who she intended to get the B list — would get the "Rubber Head 
Dumbbells." She proposed she would get the "Chrome Dumbbells" which she had 
already removed from the marital residence. This is precisely what occurred. Kirk took 
the Rubber Head Dumbbells and Vivian took the Chrome Dumbbells 	- 

14. Almost all the sporting goods from the garage cabinets such as golf clubs, baseball 
gloves, etc. Kirk's proposal provided, "Kirk shall receive all of his hunting gear, fishing 
gear, camping gear, boating gear, golf clubs and gear, bows & arrows, tennis rackets, and 
similar sporting type items. Kirk took all of his golf clubs, baseball glove, and tennis 
rackets. Kirk also took the golf clubs he purchased for Brooke and Rylee. Kirk also' 
took all of the tennis rackets and balls he had purchased for his children. Vivian does 
not play any sports including, golf, tennis, baseball, or softball. Vivian does notplay any 
sports with the children. 

15. Bikes for Brooke, Rylee and Vivian. When the Harrisons moved to Boulder City in 1993, 
Kirk bought new bikes for Vivian, Tahnee and Whitney. Kirk taught Tahnee„ Whitney, 
and Joseph how to ride a bike. Vivian rarely rode her bike and, probably, has not ridden 
a bike since 1994 — over 18 years ago! As the children grew older, the bikes were 
passed down. Vivian's bike became Tahnee's bike, Tahnee's bike became Whitney's 
bike, and Whitney's bike became Joseph's bike. When Tahnee, Whitney and Joseph out 
grew the bikes and stopped riding them all together, Kirk took all three bikes to the ranch 
and put them in storage. Kirk retrieved these three bikes from the ranch when he started 
teaching Brooke and Rylee to ride a bike. Vivian doesn't ride a bike and has not 
participated in Kfrk's efforts to teach Brooke and Rylee to ride a bike. Kirk took all of 
these bikes to the ranch for the winter. Kirk was later told that Vivian wanted "her" bike 
returned. The first opportunity Kirk had to go to the ranch he retrieved "Vivian's bike", 
as well as the road bike Kirk had given Vivian many years ago and delivered 'them to the 
marital residence. Kirk also retrieved Vivian's mother's bed, which Vivian had 
identified she wanted in her A/B list proposal, and delivered it to the marital residence 
as well. 

22 See, Kirk's submission of proposals, filed 9/30/13, p. 5-14. 

23 	It should be noted that Kirk was highly deferential to Vivian regarding the personal items he took 

24 from the marital residence. Kirk took nothing that Vivian previously identified she wanted. Most of 

25 what Kirk took were his personal items that he previously identified to Vivian in writing that he 

26 intended to take items #3, 4, 7, 9, 10, 13, and 14. At least at this point, there is no dispute that Kirk 

27 was entitled to take his bed, his parent's bed, Tahnee's bed, and Whitney's bed. Kirk was reasonably 

28 entitled to take the linens and bedding for each of those beds — items #1, 2, and 6. Vivian has never 
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1 expressed any particular personal affinity with any of the personal items Kirk took. The collective value 

2 of everything Kirk took pales in comparison to the value of personal property he did not take. For 

3 example, just the guitar autographed by members of the Rolling Stones, is worth many many multiples 

4 of the total value of everything Kirk took. The same is true with respect to each of several large hand 

5 made rugs that Vivian purchased during one of her trips to Asia. Just one of those rugs is worth many.  

6 multiples of the total value of the personal items Kirk took. The same is also true with respect to each 

7 of the several hand made wall hangings Vivian purchased during one of her trips to Asia. Just one of 

8 those wall hangings is worth more than the total value of the personal items Kirk took. 

9 	Assuming Vivian is no longer objecting to the personal items Kirk rightfully took when he 

10 vacated the marital, residence, then, upon that condition, and the provision of the Staimiaster to Kirk, 

11 for which Kirk has already paid, and which is specifically identified in this Court's Order (p. 20, 132), 

15 

18 	This Court ordered that it "shall retain jurisdiction to adjudicate any reimbursement owed to 

19 Vivian for community expenses paid from separate property monies prior to November 20, 2012." 

20 (Court's Decree of Divorce, 10.31.13, p. 28, 1. 7-10.) (Emphasis added.) 

21 	Kirk respectfully notes that Vivian's claim for "reimbursable expenses" was not provided until 

22 the middle of the hearing on December 3, 2012. However, none of the documentation for those 

23 apenses was provided until January 29, 2013. Most of the documentation does not provide what was 

24 acquired or specifically what services were rendered. Soon thereafter, on February 5,2013, Kirk sent 

25 an email to Melissa Attanasio, setting forth questions he had about the claimed expenses. On February 

26 5,2013, Melissa Attanasio sent an email in response wherein she stated, ". . I was not involved I (sic) 

27 this accounting, thus I have forwarded to the appropriate parties." A copy of Kirk's email to Melissa 

28 Attanasio and her response, both on February 5,2013, is attached hereto as Exhibit "3." Neither Vivian 
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D. 	Any Provision Providing For Reimbursement For Separate Property Funds 
16 	 Being Utilized For Community Expenses During the Pendency of The 

Divorce Must Be Mutual and Be Within The Parameters Of This Court's 
Temporary Orders of February 24, 2012, and Formalized on June 13, 2012 

,4 gg 12 Kirk does not object to Vivian obtaining what he estimates to be over 95% of the personal property in 

13 the marital residence that was not appraised by Joyce Newman. Some of these items were identified .41 	9. co) 
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1 nor Vivian 's attorneys have ever provided a response. Again, this was ignored for nearly eight months 
2 and then was raised with false claims that Kirk has not complied. The submission filing on September 
3 27, 2013, is the first mention of this issue since the time of Kirk's inquiry. In Kirk's response to 
4 Vivian's "Notes" and "Explanation," filed 9/30/13, Kirk set forth significant community expenses which 
5 he paid from separate property funds, for expenses similar to those alleged by Vivian and also include 
6 significant separate property funds expended for Vivian's sole benefit as a consequence of Vivian's 
7 attorneys' many month delays in responding to the Marital Settlement Agreement on February 19,2013. 
8 Under such circumstances, Kirk respectfully requests the Court to amend and clarify the Decree to 
9 include Kirk's claim for "reimbursable expenses," which in all equity, should include monies paid for 

10 such items as Vivian's health insurance, Vivian's auto insurance, association fees associated with the 
11 Lido lot, real property taxes, etc. These are Vivian's individual expenses which Kirk paid and/or joint L.) 

c, a  12 expenses which Kirk paid alone. 
4.7 	r4 0. 

E8.14  

ce.; 

13 

14 
E. 	The Measo Associates Interest is Presently and Has Always Been in the 

Name of Both Kirk and Vivian 

15 	The twenty-five percent (25%) ownership interest in The Measo Associates is currently and has 
16 always been in both Kirk's and Vivian's names. It is a general partnership and Vivian and Kirk, 
17 together, own 25%. (Hearing Transcript, 12/3/12, p. 8,1. 17-19.) Vivian's proposed Decree of Divorce 
18 is in error in this regard, as it provided, "A twelve and one-half percent (12.5%) interest in The Measo 

19 Associates, a Nevada General Partnership currently held in Kirks sole name." (Vivian's proposed 
20 Decree of Divorce, p. 6, ¶6.3.) (Emphasis added.) This error was adopted by the Court in the Decree 
21 of Divorce, entered October 31, 2013, and should be corrected accordingly. See, Decree of Divorce, 
22 p. 8, 	p. 

23 III. CONCLUSION 

24 	This Court has ample authority to correct the errors in its Decree of Divorce, which were caused 
25 by the errors contained in Vivian's proposed Decree of Divorce, which was filed on September 27, 
26 2013. 

27 

28 
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1 	Unfortunately, as a consequence of the errors contained in Vivian's submission, Vivian would 
2 otherwise inequitably receive one-half of five accounts which are indisputably, both legally and 

equitably, Kirk's separate property, including the "Fee Account" he established to deposit the 
4 $350,000.00 to pay attorneys' fees and costs, which has been exhausted and presently only contains 
5 additional separate property funds deposited into the account to pay ongoing attorneys' fees and costs. 
6 	In view of the status of the division of personal property, Kirk respectfully submits that an AJB 
7 List process, certainly at this point, would be problematic as Vivian has had exclusive possession of the 

8 marital residence for almost one year, and if Kirk simply is provided the Stahmaster for which he has 
9 already paid, he is willing to let Vivian retain what he estimates to be over 95% of the personal property 

10 that was in the marital residence, which was not appraised by Joyce Newman. 

11 	Under the parameters of the Court's Order which itemized the expenses which were to be paid 

▪ c, 

	

	12 from community funds, Kirk respectfully submits he is also legally and equitably entitled to seek :4; § 
13 reimbursement to the same extent as Vivian, and the Decree of Divorce, should therefore be amended 

• 14 in that regard. In addition, as a consequence of Vivian's inexcusable delay in not responding to Kirk's g 
▪ g 	15 proposed Marital Settlement Agreement from February 19,2013, until this Court compelled Vivian's la 
Z 	16 response on September 27,2013, Kirk individually incurred substantial separate property expenses for 

17 the benefit of Vivian or for them jointly, including such items as Vivian 's health insurance, Vivian 's 

18 auto insurance, real property taxes, etc. 

19 	Finally, the Decree should also be amended to correct another error caused by Vivian's 
20 submission, to accurately reflect that the 25% interest in The Measo Associates is and always has been 
21 in both Vivian's and Kirk's names. 

22 	DATED this 14- day of November, 2013. 

23 	 KAMEN LAW GROUP, PLLC 

By: 	  
EDWARD L. KAINEN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 5029 
10091 Park Run Drive, Suite 110 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 
Attorneys for Plainuff 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Page 17 of 17 



Docketing Statement Attachment No. 5 



Electronically  Piled 
02/10/2014 01:68:28 PM OKA 

3. 

:4 

6. 

7 
8.  
9 

Ii 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18. 

10. 

20 

21. 

:22. 

23.. 

24: 

76: 
27' 

Yoac., amour* 
91s:TRAm'A.pc4E 

NIL'? *RION. 
VEGAS. NEVADX694 

DISTRICT CQVRT 	atait OF tHE t'dLIRT 

cr.Agx cauNTy, NEVADA 

.X1R( ROSS HAE,RI$ON, 

Plaintiff, 

CASE NO. D- 11-443611-D 
DEIiT NO, 0. 

•VIVIAN MARIE IA HARRISON, 

Defendant. 

ANMWASe_004441015.11N-p-LOZDERa 

This matter tathd before this Court tin the following paperS that weft reviewed 

rid considered by this seourt.. 1  

(I) Pcfcntiant's Motion for Attorney's Fees gral Sanctions ,(Apr. 3, 2013) 
(hereinafter referred tbr,as "Vivian' s Motion') (37 pages in length, exclusivel 
Of exhThfts); 

.-(2) Plaintiffs OppOsition to Defendant's Motion ler Attorneys' Fees and 
Sanctions, Plairtdffs Request for ReasOnable Discovery and Evidentiary 
Hearing; 13iaintiff'S Countermotion for Equitable Relief; 'Plaintiff'S 

• 4Defendant also filed a Motion for an Order Appointing a Parenting 6ordiriator and 
Therapist for the Minor Children as.rtecitliteclbi thC" ,004rt Orde red Parenting Plan.; .Motion. for 
Sanctions and.AttorneyeiFeeS (May  10;  2013)., Plaintiff also tiled 4 Motion to Enter Decree 
of Divorce (May  134 2013), Additional papers were :filed with respect to these 	Motions, 
There was, however, no opposition filed in response to Plaintiff's Motion  to Enter Decree of 

IDivOrte (May. 13,, 2013)). With the exception of each part y's request for attorneys feet 
associated with these motions, the issues raised therein have been resolved by this .(04rt byway 
of the entry of the Decree of Divorce (Oct 311 2013) i:the 0 rd er-Re: Appointment of Therapist 
(04,29, 2013 and tfte0 tder fOt AppOintrnent of Pirrentirt C.0.0.4M410(Oct..9, .20 -14 
such thesels:suq§ ar.c nat addressed hqeiriA 



Countermotion for Attorneys' Fees and •Sanction,s; Plaintiff s 
Countermotion for Declaratoryltelief (May 28 2013) (hereinafter referred 
to as "Kirks Opposition and Countermotionsi (133 pages in length, 
&elusive-of exhibits); 

Exhibits to Plaintiffs Opposition to Defendant's Motion for Attorn ey  
Fees and Sanctions; Plaintiff's Request for Reasonable Discovery and 
Evidentiary Hearing; Plaintiffs Countennotion for Equitable Relief; 
Plaintiff's CountennOtIon forAttorneys' Fees and Sanctions,  and  Plaintiffs 
COunterrnotion for Declaratory Relief (May 28, 2013) (804 pages in 
length) 

4 
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(4) Defendant's Reply tO Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's Motion. fOr 
Attorneys' Fees and Sanctions, and .-Opposition to Plaintiffs Request for 
Discovery and Evidentiary Hearing; Plaintiffs Cotiriterniotiolt for 
Equitable :Relief; Plaintiff's counterMotiOn for Attorneys' Fees and 
$4.11c00M; 	Countermotion for Declaratory Relief Nay 31, 
'40') Pag0-irklenga0; 

(5) Plaintiffs Reply to Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs *Request for 
Discovery and Evidentiary 'Rearing; Plaintiffs Countennotion for 
Equitable Relief; Plaintiffs Cottntetrnotion for Attorneys' Pees and 
Sanction's; Plaintiff's Conntentotion forpeclaratory Relief .(June 3, 2:01) 
(hereinafter *referred to as "kirk'S RePly) (10 -pages in length, exclusive a 
exhibits); 

Plain s Motion for Scheduling Order or, in the,Alternatiye, to Deny 
Vivian's Motion forAttorneys Fees ;  Grant Each of Ka's CountermatiP4S, 
and Grant Kirk's Motion for Enter Decree Of Divorce (Sep, 4,, ,2013) (12 
pages lnkngth,exClosiVe of ibits) ;  

Defendant's Reply to Plaintiffs Opposition to Defendant's Motion for 
Attibility's fees and Sanctions, Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiff's 
COuritennbtion Styled Request for Reasonable Discovery and Evidentiary 
Hearing; Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs COuntermOtion for 
Equitable Relief; Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs COuntennotion for 
Attorneys' Fees and Sanctions; and Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs 
COuntennotionfor D.N.laratory Relief (5p, 1.1 2013) (hereinafter re.kgect 
to 0. nristian's Reply") (78 pages in length, excluSive of exhibits); 

(o) Edlibits to Defendant's Reply to Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's' 
Motion for Attorney's fees and Sanctions;, yy;hyots to Defendant's 
Opposittort to Plaintiffs counterniotion Styled Request for Reasonable 
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Discovery and Evidentiary Hearing., Exhibits to Defendant's Opposition to 
Plaintiffs :-CouriterinOtion for Equitable Relle4 Exhibits to Defendant's 
Opposidorito Plaintiffs CotintetinotiOrk for Attorneys' Fees and Smoicinsi l  
add Exhibto. to Defendant s Opposition to Plaintiffs COnnterinCitibit for 
Declaratory Relief f(Sep. ti , 20 I'S) (354 pages in length); and 

.(9) Plaintiff's Reply Brief in Sgppoit .  Of Plaintiffs CoptennOtions for 
Reasonable Discovery and Evidentiary Hearing, Equitable 
AttorneyS4 fees and Sanctions, and Declaratory Relief (Oct, 21, gip) (57 
pages in Jengt exchisiye of exhibits), 

ThiS'COurt,haS entertained extensive 	on the issues raised by Waytif the 

foregoing papers filed by each party, well as argUidents offered by counsel at the 

hearing held on C}Ctober10. , 200, Basecl on s the papers on file and the argutrientS 

gotinsel, this Court makes the f011owing findings and cQnclusiorA; 

f:. 	$ummAipt OF LIMATIQN; A sticpmft.11, s'Ottiprri01qt? 

On March 10, 2011, `Plaintiff, 1<1R1( ROSS HAIM:SON ('icirr), filed his 

;Contplaint:for Divorce against the Defendant, VIVIAN Watt HARRISON ("ViViale). 

.Oh NOVeinber 23, 2011, ViViatt :tiled her AnsWer to complaint for Divorce and 

Counter.. fOr Divorce. By way Of their respective  pleadings,  lx0 PaAiq 'sought 

primary physical -custody of their two minor children, Emma "Brooker 'Harrison ;  born 

thiringthis titigaiionbOth parties routinely. filed paperSin excess of thepage limitations 
specified n WOR.20.(a), which provide, in pertinent part, 'NI :111os otherwise Ordered by the 
court, papers submitted in .4upport of pretrial and post trial briefs SW be limited to 30 pages 

.e3:ccholing exhibits" During the custody portion of the litigation, the length of papers Vkia.S 
discussed on we occasion before the .Court. At the hearing On November 1, 2011, 
:Defendant orally requested permission to !Omit ;a liver that exceeded the length 411(siY0 
pursuant to ErycR 2.20(a), In consideration Of the gravity Of the Wtid custody); this 
Court intliotea that it did not ci..haVt  a problem" with the lengthy mow  of the polio so long 
as courtesy copies were provided to the Court. Although this Court tolerated such lengthy filings 
at that time, this Court advised the parties at the Dabber 50, '200 heating it *Old no longer 
tolerate the .sarne Indeed, the occesshre arid burdensome length of filings that addressed the 

issttabefoie this Court it dealt With in the aWard of attOriieye feta Veto*: 

3 



June 20,19,9, and Kyleellarrisorti born January 24, 2003. Further, both parties raised 

the issue of attOrney!s fees in their respective pleadings. 

Kirk arid ViVian ultimately resolved nearly every contested isSue identified in their 

respective pleadings, The terms of their agreements were memorialized in their 

Stipulation and Order Resolving Parent/Child ISsues (Jul. 4, 2012), and the Dome of 

;Divorce (Oct. 31, 2013), As suCli, the stipulated resolution reached by the parties could 

1.)e vieWed AS a ‘slieceSS" of The diVOite proceSs, Indeed, b.s. dpressed by the HOrtotable 

Pavid A. Hardy: 

Litigants . often respond negatively vvhert their relationships anti resources 
are at tisk, kilignve proceeding culminating in Mat reirresmfs a failure four 
legal system.  The adversarial process requires parties to emphasize their 
\ditties and their respective spouses' flaws, The divorce proceeding is both 
ettpengiie.  :and desinietbe. 

Nevada Allow; Ail finpyrtaiit Pal 

(2009) (emphasis supplied) -. 

Although therewere sever.al corttO5W1 hOat: irtg thi,5 cjivorco:aaiore, there vs 

:no trial or evidentiary hearing prior to January 22, 2014, Through the .datt of the 

October 30, 2013 hearing, not a single VvittieSs WM called to testify at arty proceeding 

before this COurt. Nevertheless, the financial cost (to say nothing of the unquAlitifip.bje 

emotional cost) of this litigation was staggering. TO this end, the parties, devoted 

signifteant time, energy; and .resources to the ISSu:0- Of custody of the parties' to Minor 

children, Dbfh p:Arties :filed multiple papers Of voluminous length with the Court 

regarding the issue of child custody. These papers included: 

5 

6 

. 7 

8. 
9 

ii 
12 

14 

1,5 

is 

29 

22 

Z4: 

27 

28. !' 
*as a, DUCONORTH. 

DISTRICY AWE 

in Need 0 f a Coherent Polio Purpose, 9 Not. L. f. 325 

4 WLY PIV1SLON. DEPT. Q.. 
fvetlAktityAoiipgiciti 



1 

2 

3 

4 

CI 	Kirk's Motion for Joint Legal and Primary Physical Custody and Exclusive 
Possession of Marital Residence (Sep. 14,2011) (hereinafter referred to as 
'Custody Motion") (206 pages in length, inclusive of theAffida.vits Of Kirk 
R. Harrison, Tahnee Harrison and Whitney Harrison, but exclusive o 
other exhibits); 
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U 	Van's positiop. to Plaintiffs Motion for Joint Legal and Primary 
Physical Custody and Exclusive Possession of Marital Residence; 
Counterinotions for Exclusive Possession of Marital Residence, for Pritnary 
Physical Custody of Minor ;Children; for Division of Funds for Temporary 
Support, and for Attorney's Feet (Oct. 27, 2011) '(hereinafter referred to 
as "Custody CouriterniotiOrin (18a pages in length, inclusive of the &Wain 
Declaration of Vivian Harrison and various other :deelaratioriOffidavits, 
but exclusive of other ,exhibits); 

(J 	Kirk's Reply to DOc.nclarWs Opposition. to Plaintiffs Motion for jOint 
Legal and Primary Physical Custody and &elusive PossesSion Of Marital 
Residence; COttriterrnotionS for ExchisivePossession of Marital Residence, 
for Primary Physical Custody of Minor Children; for Division of Funds for 
Temporary Support, Mild for Attorneys Pees gam 4, 2012) (hereinafter 
referred ti546 Custody ReplY') (105 pages in length, inclusive ja` 
the Affidavit of Kirk It Harrison and various Other declarations/affidavits, 
but exCluSive ofother exhibits); 

U 	Van's Replyto Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's Countermotiorts for 
Exclusive Possession of Marital Residence, for Primary Physical Custody 
of Minor Children; for Division of Funds for Temporary Support; and for i  
Attorney's Fees (Jan  27, 2012)(hereinafter referred to as "ViVian's' 
Custody Reply') (67 pages in length, inclusive of the Sworn Declaration 
of Vivian Harrison and various other declarations/affidavits,, but exclusive 
Of exhibits); and 

Vivian's Supplemental SWorn Declarations in ',Stipport .rof Reply to 
Counterrntion (Jan. 31,2012) (2 pages iri tgth,s1 2 pages ofdeclarations), 

The parties :appeared at multiple hearings regarding the issue of custody. As 

noted above, Kirk 44a. Vivian each :requested priniary physical otapily of theitniitior 

chi!drenin theit respective Pleadings (i.e., kitles Complaint and Vivian's Coanterciairn).. 

Eath party relid on, various '!eXijtert" repOrts attaChed to their respettiVe filings. 
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Ultimately, this Court. appointed Dr, Paglin' to provide evaluative services regarding the 

issue of child custody. Notsvithstanding the significant dint, energy, and reSottrceS 

devoted to the iss'ue of -custody (tit peikipt is a result thereof), the parties entered into 

a Stipulation and Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11, 2012). Thereafter, the 

parties resolved the remaining issues of the divorce action, placing the terms on the 

:record. at the December 3,2012 hearing, Their agreement included a specific reservation 

of jurisdiction to alio* this Court tb entertain a inOtibri to be filed 'by either party 

regarding the igstid of attorneys' fees. See •Deoto of Divorce 28,29 (Oct.. 2013).: 

A. LEGAL BASES 

On April 3., 2Q13, 'Vivian's Motion was filed.. "It is well established itt Ne.vada 

that attorney's fees are pot recoverable unless allowed by.e.)tpress or implied agreettient 

or when authoriied by statute or rule? Schoovellet .o. YaiicEp Cc. 1-01 Nev. 

712. P.2r1 786, 788 (19.85.),4uOted Miner v.Wilfofig, 121 Nev. 619, 119 P.34 727 

.(2005). 'Pursuant to MdtiOn (Apt 3, 2013), 'Vivian seeks -ar. award of 

attorney's fees on the :fallowing bases: 

IL ATTOMEYS FEES 

6 



(1) NRS ,12.51,50 

(2) EDCR 7,40(b);4  and 

4 	(3 ) Sargeant v, $aroot, 88 Ney, :223! 49$ Rad 618 (1972) 5  
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This 'Court 'finds and concludes that there is a basis to consider each party 'S 

request for An award of attorney's fee , 	to ,the foregoing bases. 6  

3.N1Z$ 1g5,150 provides, in relevant part,asfollows; 

8. 'Except:  as otherwise provided in Nit5 125,141,  Whether Or WA 
application for suit money has been made under the provisions of NRS l25.040, 
the court may award .a reasonable attorney 's fee to either party to an action for 
di-wive those feet. afe issueundgr thepieadings 

lED.C.A.7--.;00(b) provides as 'follows: 

(b) The court may, after not/ce and an opport04y to be heard; impttse 
uponanattorney or a party  any and all sanctions which pay, under the facts of 
the case, be reasonable, induding .the linposition of firieS, costs bratorney 's fees 
ihrlien an attorney or a party without just causei 

(1) Presents to the court ototion. or an opposition to a motion 
which is obviously frivolous, unnecessary -  orunivarrinted. 

(2) Pails tOpreparefOra presentation 
($) 50 multiplies The proceedings in 4 ,case as to increase costs 

unreasonably and vexatiously; 
(4) Fails Or refuses to comply With theSe. rules 
(5).W-a reftae.a to complY wit anrorcig of 41141g9  of 

the court. 

Sargeatit Savant, 88 :Nev. 223, 495 P.2ci 618 (1972), the husband challenged 
the lower court's award Of attorney 's tees. The Nevada Supreme Court held that '[t]he  *ire 
must be afforded her:day:in (D.V.r.t without (legroptig herfinancial p.Cosition„ This would imply 
that she ,should be able to meet her adversary in the courtroom On art equal basis. "  Id at 227, 
405 '0.2d at 621. Vivian'SViotion also Cites Wright 0, 114 Nev, 1$67,13 70,Oti p 2d 
,1071 1073 .(1 .998) :In support of her request (qtlhe disparity in income is also .4 factor to he 
considered in the award Of attorney fees. "). Considering the relative income panty Of the parties, 
however, there  has been no ,showing that 4 disparity in.intonie exists that justifies an award Of 
kes., Nevertheless, the issue of whether ylvlan. was Ole to ",inept IKIrki in the courtroom on an i 
equal basis"  is a legitimate isSne that Was debated and discuSSed thfoughOtit the papers filed by 
the:parties. 

.6NRS 18,0.10 is generally inapplicable it) ,evaluatitt each partft teilueks for: fees 4s 4 
"prevailing"  party,iletaua.  ethe parties succesifully negotiated a resolution One* all conttsteil 
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B. POST-RESOLUTION MOTIONS 

Pursuant to ED.Clk 740, each party is entitled to art. giCird of atfOrneyS' fees 

as,sOciated with Defendants Motion for an Order ppointing a Parenting coordinator 

and Therapist for the Minor Children as Required by the Court Ordered. Parenting Plan; 
6 

7 Motion for Sanctions and. Attorns' Fees (May 10,2013), and Plaintiffs Metiort to 

8  Enter Decree of Divorce (voy 13,2013). In this regard, although there Was a Odd faith 

-dispute regarding the appointment of a parenting coordinator and the language of the 

n Order Appointing Parenting Coordinator, there was no reasonable basis to delay the 

12 selection of a counselor for the parties' children, particularly In iitt of recent papers 

:filed by Kirk in which he requested modification of the Stipulation and Order 

Applying ParentiChildissues (Jul. IX, 2012). Considering the factual allegations raised 

in all papers 'filed regarding the issue of custody, any delay in initiating the counseling 

process:for the children is bewildering. At the sa:irtetinte, Plaintiffs Motion to Enter 

betted of Divorce (May 1.3, :2013) WaS unOpposed by ViVin and the Decree entered by 

th Court more closely mirrored the lariguage pkopo§ta by kiiic See Plaintiff's 

Submission of Ppopaqc1 Decree of Divorce (Sep. 27 i  w13). 

Pursuant to EDOR. 7:60 and EDCR 5.1 1„ aspects of both Of the foregbing 

Motions should have been resolved in advance of the October 30, 2013 hearing. This 

2$ 

26 

28 
vctá autitvionToi 

DisiR1dral006 

maxpimicli.peng 
vEGAs_, riNotjAafil 0) 

issues, there: is no "prevailing" party, 	Party requested primary physical qistody of their 
tnirtor .childtenin their Undetilnk pleading. nuts, neither Orly:0111d be constnied as the 
preyaittng party regarding the phY0cat c1.0:t9dy cip§ignatiOtt: Nevertheless, it is not lost on the 
Court that the allegations that Vivian-stgferedfrom'psychological intim -II-ties that Impacted her 
ability:to parent the el-iildren went unproen from dri eVickritia;ly standpoint, 
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4 ;  

Coda. finds that the attorneys' fees attributable to the foregoing motions should be 

offsetting, grid no fees are:gwarded to either party. 

C. SVMMARY OF FEES A1\10 COSTS INCURRED AND PAID 

Eath party received $550,341:25 in community funds eannarlsed for attorneys' 
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fees. See Letter to Court frOm Edward Icainen, Esq .. (Jart :  15, 2014), Letter 't0 Court 

froth Radford Smith,:Esq. -(Jan. 15; 2014) and 1<iik's Opposition and CountetinotionS 

125 (May 28, 2013),; Based on the billing statements offered to the Cam., Kirk. paid 

tot4 of $448,738.21 in fees and costs froth Marth:8, 2011 through January 15,.2013, 

In Ott:fast, Vivian paid a tothl of $680,•4 1.33 In fees and costs from Mgy 2, 2011: 

'through January $0, -2013. so Exhibits to Icirle:s Opposition and Qounterrnotions E. 

— 19 (May 18, 2013), and Defendant's and Plaintiffs Attorney P06 Billing 

Statements (Apr, 5;2013), 'Exhibit 1 atta.Ched hereto is a spreadsheet surninarizing the 

amounts paid by-eadh patty. Exhibit 2 attached theretOs a sprcadshertstuntnarizIng the 

fees and costs incurred. A review of thebilling statements and the Court's Exhibit 2 

reveals thef011pwing; 

Q Vrnan Incurred $687;506.28 in fees and costs from May 2,2011 through 
lantiary 19, 2013. 7  'MU'S, as of jantaty 30, 2013, Vivian paid 
$17,1.63.03 in fees and costs from her separate property portion of the 
community assets. In contrast, Kirk incurred -$ .409A0447 in fees and 
tOStS from Math 8, 2011 through December 21, 2012. 0  Thus, as of 

'These dates 	Mv27 2(Y11 and January 19,-2013.) ;  represOrit the firstand last biiiing 
pitzie:s for fees and ebtta intuited by Vbilan, 

'Mese dates.  (1.e. ;  Match 0; . 011 and 1.).eeenibet gri, 200), represent the first anti last 
billing entries tor fees And eokg incurred by Kirk_ 

9 



42 

14 

16 

27 

28 

January 15, 2013, Irk retained $80,479.08 in unused community funds 
allocated for attOrneys' fees. 

O The feet and costs ineutred by the paitits to litigate the finanCial issues 
post-Stipulation and _Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul.:  11, 

2012)) Appear to be relatively equal, Specifically; Vivian incurred 
$548229 38 in fees and costs through the date the Stipulation and Order 
Tte.solving, Parent/Child Issues (Jul 11, 2012) was 'flied, The balance Of 
$10;274;90 was inatired after the custody issue had been resOlVed. 9  Kirk 
int:lifted $149,593.56 through the same period Of thrie. The balance of 
$120,270.61 was incurred after the custody isStle had been resolved. The 
difference in the amount incurred for past-custody issues totals 
$19,006 29, or less than eight percept (8%), In contrast, the difference 
in the amount of fees and costs incurred by each party  prior to tlIg ity 

of the Stipulation and Order Resohving Parini/Child Issues (l4 11,2012) 
totals $19S,05,83. 

O kirk inturted .a total of $54,947 in fees and costs from the rirst reference 
Of time :Spent on preparation Of his CustOdy Motion (Sep. 14 ?  2011) 
(Attak 6,2011 bar% entryOf Jolley Urga Wirth Woodbury & Standish) 
through the date the Cuitody Motion was filed (i.e, through September 
14j  20 44: Vivian Incurred a total of $105,95730 in fees and -costS• from 
the first reference of time spent on preparation of her custody 
Countermotion (Oct. 27, 2011) (September 1 4, 2011 billing entry of 
'Radford J.- Smith, Chartered) through the date her Opposition to Custody 
Motion was tiled (i.e., through October 27, 2011). 1 ° 

• Xiik's Custody Motion (Sep, 14, 2011) (With accompanying affidavits) 
consisted Of 206 pages. This included the Custody &talon (48 pages), s  
Kirk's. Affidavit and StippleMetital Affidavit :(totaling 132 COMbined 

'Tube. clear,this Court recognizes that thefees and costs incurred prior toluly11,,2012 
jncluded .time Spent tai isstieS unrelated to .Child ctistody. Nevertheless, the entry of the 
Stipulation and 'Order ttes011iing Parent/Child Issues 14291 ) should represent the end 

owit „kV Of:lithe Spent on the child Custody  issue: 

10M4nithis Court redo:piles that the Tee_s and COSts refereheectWere :not eritirelyrelated 
to the child custody issues Ouring the relevant .p,eriocis of -rime defined above. In fact, %Agri 
dfOtelti that, .151;g0 on her analysis of the billing statements, .kirk -Was billed the following 
amounts for the AnderlYing .custody Rapers; r0A14:1;$.0.for .the Custody MOO, $$,4, ;5.0.:00 
for kitk's. ileply to VTVian's Custody tOuntermotion and $1,400 for Kirk's .Opposition to 
nefcrii3ane.s, Motion for Ternporaiyi Orders., 45er Exhibit s ViviareS ttoly Eg..T (Sep. 11, 
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pages), the Affidavit Of Talthee,liarriSbn. (16 pages) :and the Affidavit o 
Whitney Harrison (10 pageS) 1.2. Borrowing from Kirk's. 'value" billirt 
analysii,t 3  the monetary value of Kirk's Custody Motion was $10$464: 
(206 pages multiplied .by the hourly rate of $500). As noted above, Kirk 
was billed $54;947 during that period of time, ...$48,$17 less than the 
"value" Of the work product created. Relying on Vivian's Analysis of the 
'billing statements, Rik was billed Only $19,887.50 for this initial 'paljeri 
03,576.50 less than the "value" of the Work product Created. (This 
analysis does not include any value attributed to the time devoted by Kiik 
in the drafting of Pr. Roitrnan's report. The record suggests that Kirk was 
intimately involved in the preparation Of the report. Sce Exhibits to 
Vivian's Reply Ex, Z, AA, and PP (Sep. 11, 2013). The report at.t4hed 
to the Custody Motion consisted of 30 page's, or a value of $HOW, 
Because Stichia report typically-  would be prepared by an evert and not an 
attorney, th6'savingS" Would be attributed to the COStS incurred.) 

0 	Vivian's •Custody ouTiterincition (Oct 27, 2011) (with' accompanying 
affidavits) consisted of 186 pages, This ineluded. ViVian's SWOrri 
Declaration as well as the deelarations/affidavits of Michele Walker, NY4 
Roberts, Kim Bailey, Annette Mayer, }leather Atkinson, Lizbeth Castelan, 
and Jeffry Lite. The record reflects, however, that Ms. Roberts and Ms-, 
Walker drafted their own :statements (consisting of 15 pages each). See 
Eihibitt to Kitles Opposition and Count:emotions Ex, 11 (May 28, 2013). 
Using the same "Value" billing analysis, but occluding the statements of 

"it does not appear to be disputed that Kirk prepared his own affidavits and the initial 
Custody Motion, although his counsel *did a major re-write of our motion for temporary 
custody," billing Kirk approximately 3,7 hours. Exhibits to Miles Opposition :and 
'qounterrnotiOns, tx, 1 (May 2q,,201$), 

' 2Although Kirk similarly was involved in the drafting of the Affidavit of Tahnee Harrison 
and the Affidavit of Whitney f4artisOn, 1<iit's counsel WO Spent time in preparation of the 
same, ihitsto Xiries OppoSition and Counter notions (May2.$, 2013). 

"in his Oppwific9 and Countennotions, Kirk offered the standard he applied with 
respect to What he ccinsidereda td4totialgd ,k7alue associated' with the preparation Of 'papas aka 
with the Court. 51 (May28, :2,01$). pecifically, the :"standard was an average of one hour per 
page for research and writing combined" rd. In his Affidavit, Kirk referenced the preparation 
of 'points and authorities" As part of his value billing analysis. Se Kific's opposition and 
countermotions i  g?c, 5 (May g$, 2013), In light of the comprehensive and detailed nature of 
the ,aftdavit,s submitted by bothliattleS, this :Court applied the same anstysis. The approach 
promoted, by Kirk is Analytically instructive in the context.of the-requests for fees pending befOre 
this tOUrt. Although the billing rates by the Attorneys in this matter Varied slightly, this Court 
used the same billing rate of $500 per hour for this theoretical exercise. 
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Ms. Roberts and Mr. Walker:, the monetary value of Viviares :Custody 
Counterinotion was $79,000. (158 Pages multiplied by the hourly rate of 
$500). As noted above, Vivian was billed $105„957.50, $26,95750 more 
than the "value" Of the WOrkproduct created. Although non-attorneys May 
have authored some of these papers (and some of the "statements" do 
appear to havebeen drafted by the affiant), the resulting differente is not 
significant When Considering the totality Of the hlings, including kitlefS 
ektenSive drafting contributions to Dr. Roitinan's report. indeed, it is not 
unreasonable to *eq. Significant time to have been spent in reading and 
analyzing Kirk's exhaustive Custody Motion. The record supports A. 
conclusion that Kirk was actively involved in drafting of most papers 
(including his drafting of papers in response to the instant Motion ( 
3,2013)) See Kirk's Opposition and Counterinotions Ex, .15 -1.0 .(May 
28, 2013) (billing stririmaries); Defendant's and Plaintiffs Attorney Vet 
Billing Statements j, 2613); and Kirk'S Opposition and) 
Countermotions Ex. 2 (May 28, 2013) (Affidavit of EdivatifKairteri, Esq.). 
To this end, Kirk's value billing analysis provides some assistance to this 
court in comparing the paperwork generated and the corresponding fe,,es 
incurred.; 

O 	A similar "value-  analysis could be applied to other papers filed with, this 
Court, particularly those papers associated with the child custody dispute°, 
For example, 1<irles Custody Reply (Jan„ 4, 2012) consisted of 105 pages 
(inclusive of various affidavits), or a value of $52,500. Further, Vivian's 
Custody Reply (Jan. 27,2012) consisted of 67 pages .(inclusive of various 
affidavits /declarations), or a value of $33,500. 

Applying th.e same "value" analysis to the: papers a,ssociated With ViviartW 
Motion (Apr 3, 2013) i$ instructive." The -total length of points and 
authorities associated with Vivan's filings (which included her Motion And 
her ReplieS) was 120 pages, or $60,000 in value. The :total length of point 
and authorities associated Axiith Kirles fllmgs (Which included his 
Opposition, COunterinotions and Replies) was 212 pages, or $106;000 in 
Valtre. The differente in monetary *tie of the parties' teSpettive Ming§ is 
$46;000. 

"Vivian filed a keque,st to Pile Supplemental Information in Support of Motion for 
Attorney's Fees, In the Alternative, Supplemental motion for Attorneys Fees (Jan, 15, 2014). 
This Court is not inclined to review additional billing records on an existing request for fees, 
Rather, this Court relies on the value billing analysis in evaluating the issue of fees and "leveling' 
the playing field," 

17 
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a LITIGATION OF FINANCIAL AND CflILD CUSTODY ISSUES 

The papers submittedi)y both parties conceptually divide thelitigation (including 

settlement Aspects) into two sevral categories considered by the Court: (1) litigation 

associated with financial issueS; and (2) litigation associated with Child. custody ISStieS. 

(1) Financial Issues 

With respect to thelitig'ation associated with financial issues, this Court does not 

find there is a basis to award fees to either party beyond this Court affirming the 

Discovery Commissioner's recommendation made at the March 9, 2012 hearing to 

award Vivian the Stim Of 0,000, (This Court does not find a basis to /tied ox 'alter the 

Discovery ComMissioner's recommendations regarding attozney's fees.) Although both 

parties subraitted papers complaining about discovety latproprietieS ,and the conduct of 

the other party with respect to the resolution of financial issues (and the relative 

"sitnplitity" of the financial issues), this Court does not find that either party has 

supplied this 6frutt with an adequate legal or factual basig to avVard additional fees 

related to the Manner in which either patty litigated the financial iSsues. It is not this 

Court's prerogative to scrutinize the litigation methods employed by four: of the most 

highly esteemed a.nd credeutialed attorneys practiCing family law in the 'State of Nevada 

based On the WOO before the Court. This IS particularly :so after ,considering the 

unused stattnoty nlethaniStos available :to the parties :th ptOtOt a linote •expeditiOug 

tesohitiort of the financial issues. Further, this (oures teview of the billing staitements 

_(to the extent t.tch irtfOrthation decipherable amid extensive redattiOns by both 
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parties) stilmitted by the patties does not give rise to this Court finding or concluding 

tbat an award of attorn eys' fees is appropriate on the bases cited in their xespective 

papers, 

In Kirk'S Opposition arid Couritennotions (May 28, 2013), Mrk eitiesSed his 

disinay about "heated" discussions with his attorneys regarding their wisp adviqe against 

the filing of a 'motion for partial surntnaly judgment to equally -divide all of the 

•:C0411pOnity 011411'6AI acoouhts, the gold and silver cOins, and:the iritorne :stream from the 

Tobacco ease.' .6 (May 28, 2013). Kirk expressed frustration about being thWarted. 

his desire to resolve these financial issues expeditiously, complaining that 'parties in 

Fautily Court are more hostages, than clients," 

On September 19,20i, this Courvetttered its Orders Incident to the Stipulation 

-and Order Resolving Parent/Child IsSties and the Deternber 3, 20.12 nearing. therein,. 

this Court directed that "each party may 41e and serve by the close of business on 

September 27.., 2013, anroffer(S) to allow decree concerning property rights Of parties 

:made pursuant to NRS 12:5.141.." Orders Incident to the Stipulation and Order 

'flin kirk's Opposition and Countermotiong .(May 28, 2013), Kirk identified billing .  
entries for Gary Silverman, Esq., dated November -28, 2.01 (totaling 24 bouts) and November
29, 2011 (totaling 26 hours), This .Court concurs that such billing woOld. be  'considered 
egregious, in Vivfarl's Reply to Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions ($ep. It 201$); Mr.: 
SilyprUlap explained that his billings "for the mediation were inadvertently double entered and 
he has removed those Charges from his Wing and refunded the fees to Ms Harrison Although 
IQ* in his Reply Brief in Support of -Plaintiff's Counterinotions for :Reasonable Discovery and 
Evidentiary Hearing, Equitable Reliefi Attorneys' Fees and :Sanctions, and Declaratory Reiter 
(Oct 21, 2103) found Mr, Silverman's explanation implausible. this court (Apogees, Although 
not cOnliTtOn or WWI* the fact, that two time entries were treated for the same .day 
slightly, different descriptions) is not outside the realm of possibility. Mr: Silverman 
acknOVviedge&the error arid 'noted his remedial actions. 
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ResOlVitig Parent/Child Issues and the December 3, 2012 Hearing ..(Sop;  19, 2013). 

iqotwithstanding the alleged simplicity of financial issues, neither party stflAnitted "an 

offer to .allow .a decree to be entered. concerning the property iighis a the p.artite as 

authorized by'NRS 125.141.' 6  (The settlement letter ciatedAtiglist 2.7,2.0.12 (included 

as Exhibit 2 to Kirk' position and Countermotions (May 28, 2913) and Exhibit 

pp.p to ViVian's Reply (Sep. ii, :20.13)) does not qualify as an offer pursuant to NM 

12$ .141.) 

The utilization d the process anthorited by 1RS 125,141 aliolt a party to 

pursue prO-actively the:resolution of tettaiii firiantial isstie:s. Indeed, thi§preteg§tan be 

effective because it allows a courl to penalize financially an unreasonable party :(in the 

:form of attorney's fees).: This Court believes that, even without final appraisals, eAd -k 

party had tifri.tierit infonnation and knowledge upon which such ari Offer CoUld have 

been made Well before the actual settlement was reached: Indeed, the May 12, 201 

report Of Cliffctrd R. Bcatiie, C.6,.;  outlined in detail the simplieitya the financial Issues,  

,and the relatively small value of unresOived financial issues. See Kirles iOpposition and 

Couriterrnotions Ex.:  3 (May 28, 2013). Therein, Mr. Beadle summarized that the-Value 

of "undisputed assets" to be divided ranged between 89.30 to 90,36 percent Of the total 

Cotrt recOgnizes that the resolution of all financial issueS nay have hinged on th6 
completion of ad0904 discovery and/or evaluative setvices. If the so called =tarolicity, 
may be an Overstatement of reality. This court would not expect the parties t0 reasonably 
engage in piecemeal negotiations of such financial issues. To the extent either; partyreasonalAY-
believed that the financial issues could have (414 indeed should, have) been resolved In short-
order due to their alleged simplicity, this Court would have expected at legit one offer to allow 
entry of decree from one of the parties. Thus, if the unresolved issues were Wet reallynothire 
(kirk't Opposition and Counterniotlons36 (May 28, 13)), each party Should have nude at 
.least one offer pursuant to Nr55 125..141, 
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community. Shnilarly, in his eltail to James Jiminer.son, Esq., Mr, Silverman noted that 

“wt Is 4 cgsociy maw, piimany. mg progeny issues are fairly straighforward [sic]," 

Exhibits to Vivian's Reply 'Ex. GG (Sep. 11, 2013). For Kirk to atouSe the process in 

Family Court to be akin to '110Stage-taking," yet at the same time fail to avail hintSelf 

of NM 125.141 isit)con , o•tts 

Iii :summary, each party's failirre to utilize the process authorized: by :NRS :  

125441 ;  while at the same time prbelairning the relative simplicity of the finanCial :  

issues, Mitigates against this Court engaging in an evaluation of alleged improper or 

costly litigation tactics of either party :  Further, as rioted above, 4 similar amount of 

attorney's fees was incurred by each patty after the entry of the Stipulation and Order 

13-001viAg PArqu/Ch114 'Issues (Jul. 11, 2013) (Le., when only finandal IMO remained 

441110. 

(2) Child Custody 'issues 

With reSpett to the litigation Associattd with 410 issue of custody, this COurt: 

findS that Vivian i' 'nte4 to an award of fees pursuant to NRS 125.150i  ln 

onjuuctipn with establishing parity between the patties:as discussed in Sargeant,qprg, 

in such an award of fees is 4ased principally OA the time spent arid feesinturred 

litiga.ting the isstie of child custody. 

in Ms COrnplairit for DivOrce, Kirk requested joint legal 	"priitiary phygieal 

care, custody and ecintrol of the Minor Children herein:" 2 :(Mr. 18, 2.011). :fn: her 

Answer to Complaint for Divorce and Counterclaim for Divorce, Vivian requested joint 

16 



legal Custody and "primary physical custody of the minor children, subject to the r 

,of •specific visitation of Plain fKounterdeferidant 3 (NOv. 23, 2011). 	ere1$ 

nothintin the record that suggests that either party would capitulate to the otherparty 

being awarded primary physical custody Okhetninor children, Or that mediation would 

'tole led to suCh a result, 

The Stipulation and Quiff. Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul, 11,, 2012) :confirms 

to the parties joint legal custody and joint physical custody of their Children. 

Vrelintinafily,, the issue of Custody is expressly excluded as at istle subject to the 'Offer 

of judgment" provisions of WS •25,1410), further, inasmuch as the parties have 

utilized this post-resolution process to regurgitate the very same issues that were, grped 

part of the Underlying custody proceedings, this Cottrt finds little salutary or 

cortstrUctive value to rehashing these Atte arguirtents.' 7  The parties ;ultimately 

stipulated that joint physical Custody is in the hest interest of their Childreit, 4  

-17'nft Court recognizes that said regtirgitation perhaps was not the iritent OrmOtivatiOn 
of the parties in submitting their rPsPcttlYe.  papers on the attorney's fees issue: Nevertheless, 
the result for the Court is the Sante, 

his Opposition and COt.intennotiotis, Kirk argued that, based on Dr. Ratites 
advice, he 'Vas willing to agree to custody terms he knew were not in Brooke's and Fty1ee"-sin.s1 
interest lust  to get this Over" 39 7  FN 24 (May 28,2013) Later, Kirk stated: "Kirk wanted this 
matter resolvedexpeditiouslyi amicably, and on at merits; and without putting his children and 
Vivian through art ,extentied court battle and triaV kb.  at 77 : Thee  statementsi however, are 
incdnsistent with the record and Kirk 7s request's during the 110066n. Notably,the delay in 
finalizing custody by way of evidentiary proceeding wateaused, In part, by Xids's pica for this 
Court to appoint pq:, Paglini as a, 41.)titrA "  en:)ert (*Nell Vivian opposed): Kirk veherngn4y. 

:argued that he would be bound by at Paglini'S reCominendations. But for Kirk's impassioned 
request for Dt, PagliursAtirtilntineOt, an tVI,Onfitittry kig.0.:Ong resolving the custody lswe *Old 
have been .:Set and held earlier.  than the entry of the parties' Stipulation and Order Resolving 
Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11, 2012). The tatifit hearing on the referral to Dr. PAglini (by which 
time Dr. Paglini would have been expected to complete his report) was scheduled for May 1.0, 
2012. Referral Order for It5utSourced Evaluation Services (Feb: 24, 2012). Althcitigh this COWL 

M1LY coma% pEpT.9. 
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Moreover, there is no basis for this_Court to now make findings that either parent suffers 
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frail, any Mental defiCienCy compromising: his or her ability to care for the Minor 

children, particularly .ccrisiOrlog the fact that lark requested that the custody 

evaitiation undertaken by Dr. John Paglini nothe completed.' 9  

The toile of the 'Custody litigation Was set by Kirk's filing of ftiS Custody Motion 

(Sep, 14, 2011). This filing initiated a 'battle of experts" that culminated with this 

Cpurt's appointment ofPr. Paglini, In addition to KirKs Affidavit., the custody /vtOtiOn 

.(Sep, 14, 2011) was comprised of an tmsigned letter from Kirk to ViVian, the Affidavit 

of Tahnee HartisOn, the Affidavit Of Whitney: J. flarristin, photographs; the 

Psychiatric Analysis froth Norton A. Itoitgugt, MP, PFAFA (with attaChecl dOetunertts 
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is unaware of the status 0fDr. Paglini's actual completion of his report As of July li t  2012 (the 
time the parties' entered their stipulated resolution), it was Kirk Who Adamantly opposed Dr. 
Paglini completing what Kirk had requested, (At the hearing on My 1:$, 204; Wan argued 
that Dr, Paglinita report was nearly complete, while Kirk argued that the completion of Dr. 
Paglit0 report WOulii not he possible Without additional input. from Kirk) Notably, it appears 
settlement discussions regardlog custody began within weeks of the February 24,2012 hearing 
(when Dr. Paglini was appointed). Sec letter dated Mardi 5, 2012 included in the Exhibits to 
Vivian's Reply t*. VV (8ep. 11, 2013). Further, Kirk Offered that in late February 2012, 
Vivian and I began discussing the terms of a possible custody arrangement .through our older 
Children." EXhibits to Kirk's Opposition and Countermations Ex. 5 (May 28, 2018). 

r9To the extent Kirk believed (or believes) the minor children were exposed to serious risk 
while in Vivian's care ;  he would have :insisted on the completion of the evaluation (which was 

ell Underway at the time the issue of custody was resolved) even with a stipulated resolution 
of t.unbay. Kirk. expressed that "no one would be happier than Kirk if it is determined that 

ivian does not have:NO .0M Personality VIISorder:" WoOpp9Otton and ccagltotnation s 
3: FN16 (May 28,2013) Yet, Kirk Attkii against havingDr, Paglini complete his evaluation: 
the purpose of 1<irws request to Appoint Ic)r.:Paglini was to assure him that "Vivian does not 

ave Narcissistic personality Disorder" (wh1ch.Kirk:offered as g motivating factor for his request 
o delay the resolution of custody by vvOy Of Dr:, Pagiihrt appointment; and which arguably 
ould have been resolved conclusively with the cogo:4IL'on of Pt, mioto, it is 

neon SiStent to vociferously oppose the completion of the report while at the sametimecontipue 
 iest.th4 Vivian  suffers  fivin  a  PsYcholdgica itifiritiltYthat impairs her parenting ability, 

18 
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19 The Hope Foundation, various credit card summaries, grade reports for the minor 
20 

children., an unsigned letter from Tahnee to Vivian, a July 19, 2005 Psychiatric 

Evaluation from Ventana Health Associates, a handwritten Last Will St Testament of 

Kirk R. Harrison, handwritten statement entitled "My lVforn," an August 11 2011 

report from Ole J. Thetiliaus M.D.,..FACPsych, a September 	20.1.1:repott from Ole 

Thienhaiis, Ma t  :PACI'sych, photographs, Various pharmaceutical and Laheorp 

:21 ecords, the SWorri Declaration Of Mithele 'Walker, the Sikrotri Declaration btsitela 

.vdt.c.**twom 
.0kimdT 

28 cib.ettk, the SWotn DeelatatiOn Of KIM 	*the Affidavit „of Annette Mayer, the 

pyisic)N,:DePt-.0 
1.YE90,11 89.101  

regardingvatipus medications), arid the *Supplemental Affidavit ofKirkliarrisOn. Kirlei 

Custody Motion relied, ittimrt, on the aforementioned Psychiatric AnalySIS submitted 

by Dr. Norton Rpitman, in which Dr. ,goitxnan declared "to a reaSohabk degree of 

•medical rertain0" that "Vivian Harrison is suffering from a NarcisSistie Personality 

Disorder:i 216 (Sep. 14, 2011) (tinphasis' added), Dr. Roltinan ackhoWle,dgeci 

lintitations .0 this Contlitticin "in teeOgnition of the lakk of diteet psychological 

examination and testing" 14 Notwithstanding his aektiOwleclgnient of the limitations 

created 1y having never :ttlet Vivian personally (and having relied on the veracity of the 

information supplied by kirk), Dr. Roitrrian"s psychological assessment effectively 

framed the COrtipleAty Of the Custody issue arid established the blueprint for highly 

contentious 

VSpOn$e to Kirk's Custody Motion, Vivian filed her Custody CountermotiOn 

(Oct. 27, 2011). In addition to the Sworn Declaration of ViVian Harrison, Vivian's 
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Sworn Declaration of Heather J. Atkinsiini  the Affidavit of Ligbeth CastIan, and, the 

Sworn Deelaratitth of Jeffry 

Vivian supplemented the record with her 'Custody Reply (Jan. 27, 2012). 

Attached  thereto were reports from Paul S. Appe1bttrn. MD, and glta P. Ponoltigstarn, 

Ph.D., that challength the findings of Dt, Rottman's Psychiatic Analysis. KiticrwaS.nCit 

involved in the preparatiOn of these reports: 

The yoiwne of resulthg'pape'rwoic irt .response to the Custody Motion. (Sep, 14 .  

201:I) ,ansi the Custody Counterinotion (Oct. 27, 201.1) VA previously note. 

atithaty, both partieS Submitted reports generated by *Tay of their reSpective uititatePat 

_retention dfexperts .. these reports all titled to indude the participation of the Other 

party: The precipitating salvo, however, was fired by way of •Kirlcs Custody Motion .  

1•, 2011). Between the filing  of the Custody Motion (e.p4 14, 2910 and the; 

finalization of the Stiptilaion and :Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues 	II, 2014'. 

hundredS of thOutands :d011arS intontntinitylunds were expended by the , p:aniet. 

In light Of the VOltithittousn'ature of the Itapers filed 44 wo4s,g004tedtr 

allegations made by both parties., this cOup. iS not inclined to engage in a qual4ative 

Analysis.  of 'whether the worX performed was ijustified under tb.0 circumstances.. )3ase4 

on the sheer volume of papers filed by both patties related 1;6 the etistody issue ?  the 

'significance of the custody .Isue tO 'kirk and Vivian cannot be overstated. !Indeed,. it 

Wotild be impossible to quantify monetarily the value of custody l Considering the 

gravity Of the custorty.itSue ;before the Court and the framework of litigation established 

by latk's CustodyMotion(Sep. 14, 2011), this Court does not And the amo* of time 
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spent by Vivian's counsel to be unreasonable. Indeed, the record ettablished that 1(.1 

benefitted from his experience -as an attorney and his ability to prepare detailed and 

comprehensive papers in the prosecution of his claims. 'This Court would have expected 

an extensive  amount of time devoted to read and digest the content of the Custod, 

Motion (Sep. 14, 2011). In retrospect, the overall tenor of this initiating motion, and 

Kirk's Argimett st !K. ests that if Vivian Would not succumb to the specific relief sou 

by wayof the Custody Motion and psychological dia.gnosis, she would at least capitulate 

to the manner in TO,Ilic4 Kirk proposed that the issue of custody be litigated, 

Notwithstanding the voluminous papers filed *with the:  Corti  the parties 

ultimately reached a stipulated resolution of the custody issue. As noted previouSly, the 

ability of two patents to teach such a stipulated resolution should. be  lauded as a suceesS. • 

Thus, the fact 'that 1<irk and Vivian entered into a Stipulation and Order Resolving 

Parent/Child issues (Jut, 11, 2012) is a. stic'cOo of the process, and mgrc importaptiy,.a 

benefit to Brooke and Rylet, Art "-after-the-fact" analysis ofthe merits of the pUtigs 

respective positions related to the child custody issue is not prodUctiVt do so would 

irdubit constructive settlement discussions and woUld,be contrary to the sound polity 

of encouragin the resolution of parenting issues by the individuals who should be most 

in tune with the needs of their children -- i.e„ their parents. 

Unfortunately, this entire post-tesoluticm process has degenerated into 4ttertipts 

by both parties to litigate: the very Issues that were the subject of settlement. To this: 

mot:this Court was inundated with a seeMingly endless diatribe of both fingetpinting 
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and ratiorialitations." As With prior-papers filed in this inatter ythe length of the papers 

filed by both parties exceeded the limitations inkposccl by MCR 2.20(a), with IcitiCs 

-Opposition and-Counterrnotiona (May 28, 2013) consisting of an astounding 133 pages 

in points and :authorities alone. Therein, Kirk bemoaned the process in Fatnity Courtl  

Otte again relying On Dr, Roitindit to educate him that "[Abu tun don't-get it, You are 

not going to save your family's problems in Family Qnirt,'" Opposition and 

Countertnotiont 6 (may 28, 2013). Kirk then opines: "What a sad commentary. The 

one forum in the Nevadajudicial system where it is Most important to expeditioutlyand 

arnica* resOlVe prOblertis i  beeause children's emotional Well being, liVe.s, and fittUres 

are at stake, it unquestionably the Worst." Id, At 6', At the outset of this litigation, Kirk 

.should have been disabns.ed of any notion that a cOmplete stranger .(i.e„ the Court) 

in the best position, to sohre. his family's pobions. Indeed, the pattiotave failed to a 

'degree when it is left up to the Court a stranger to the patties' children—tO retoht 

these isstieS: 

In his opposition and cotmtermodorts, gitic faltps no responsibility Whatsoever 

for the directional path of this litigation, but instead lectures about how the "-one forum 

in the Nevada judicial system where it is important to expeditiOusly and amitably 

resolve problems, because children's emotional well beinglives, and .futures ate at.Stake,:  

7°AinitIst the pets4nai attacks Strewn throughout the paperS, each pa.rty did provide this 
Court with A measure of levity : . For example, As part of his critique o f the amount of time 
Vivian 'S attorneys spent in preparing papers in response to F.4*.i's Custody Motion, offered:: 
"A monk with only # quill pen in dhn,eandielight would be more prodtibtwe." Kirk's Opposition 
and Countermotions 53 (May 28, 2013). Vivian retorted with "A genie with a :magic wand, 
eOlild not have finished all otthat work in 41 .8 hours," In light of the comparatively low amount 
of .fees,incurral by Kirk:- Vivian's 1,teply '($ep i  11, 2013). 
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Is unquestionably the worst." Id. It would indeed be shortsighted to believe that an 

unprecedented 48-page initiating Motion (accOnipAnted by 'a 118-page, 241-ph 

afadaVit and a psyatiatticdiagriOtis "w a teasonabiedegtee ipisedied ceitaino' that Vivian 

suffered 'from .a Nartissistie Personality Disorder") would not sontehOw engender 4 

massive response of thrie and effort; 2' $.es Custody Motion (Sep. 14,2011), It 

wottld be Shortsighted to believe that such a Citstody Mcition could potsibly 

perceived or received by ViVian as an effort. to "do virhat was indiSptitably best for . . . 

ViVian" (6) Or to "get Vivian lie1p." 22  4 (Seli. 14, 2011), Yet, despite such an initial 

barrage of :paperwork, Kirk. uses 133 pages* of diatribe to attack Vivian, Vivian's 

attorneys and this Court as being resporisible entirely for the mannetin which this case 

Was litigated. See kirleS Opposition and CountermotiOns (may 281, '2013). On 15 

oceaSiOns in hiS pbSitiOn and COnitennotiOrts (May 28,2)13), Kith repeated :nearly 

verbatim the following: "The difference in fees billed by Vivian's attorneys in this tase 

versus the fees. billed by Kirk's attorneys in this ease is a function of how:Vivian 

andNiVian's Attorneys those to :manage this cage gild how they oVerbilled this caSe 7  

rather than Any drafting :Kirk did on any points and authorities? AS if be was an 

''Both parties complained about the process (or being laded" by theprocesS) in some 
fashion, YO, both parties behaved in -a manner not 'ken in most cases Notably, Kirk argues 
that the letter opinions from [yiviaresitwo national experts are so qii1ifkd to be entirely 
worthless .," Opposition and Couniermotions 79 (May.23, 201$), If said reports are considered 
"entirely worthless," Ote.q411.fyirign, factors associated wlthDr Itkiittititt )$ report the 
fact that he never Inet with the person he was diagnosing) render his report 4entire1y worthless" 
a:s well. 

:22* the point in :titnethat Dr, 10Ittnari's reports was thrust into the litigation, his report 
could hardly be viewed as a therapeutic tool. 
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1 
inttoCent bystander throughout this entire process, Kirk falls to acknowledge that his 

unprecedented approach to the initial paper he filed with this Court (Le., his Custody 

Motion (Sp, 14, 2011)) hAd any correlation to Yivian's response thereto and the path 

of this litigation. 

7 	The sad reality is that the amount of fees awarded herein likely pales in 

8 comparison to the emotional and financial toll this post-divorce process has created. 

'This entire process:has generated more animosity and conflict that is not healihtfor the 

parties or their 'children, leading the Court tO ask, 1$ it 'worth 1 -t? Yet, amidst 

CoMplalriing about thiS process, Kirk curiously requOted the opportunity to further 

'lengthen these, proceedings by pursuing additional discovery and an evidentiary hearing 

regarding the issue of attorrieye fees — Which woUld equateto even more fees. 

In' evaluating the amount of fees that should be awarded, this Court haS 

considered the factors enunciated in Brusta§li cioroi Natemai sod, §.5 Nev. 345,, 

4,55 13.,..2d 31 (1969). Specificálly, this Court has 'considered: 

(1) 'rh. quality ufttwadvocates. B.oth parties am represented by experiented 

and highly esteemed advocates. Indeed the qiisaiity. Of representation was at an 

exceptional leVel. (The hi .  'regard in whicheach party's attOrtieys art held magnifies 

the diSappditittnetitof this Court in the Unnecessary personalattacks strewn throughout. 

the papers filed  with this Court:) 

(2) The diaracter %Atte voric:to be performed. This Coures analysis of the 

:character of the work performed is detailed above. 
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- 	(3) The *Fork actually performed. The wark ,aqually perfonned is represente 

in the billing summaries submitted to the Court In this regard, each party provided th 

Court with billing statements encompassing the fees od costs associated with then 

respective representation. This information included monthly billing statements fron 

Jolley Urga. Wirth Woodbury & StandiSh, Etker Sc. Kairterijkaintri Law Group, 

Silverman, Pecaria 41<attelman, Radford j, IrdthiSinith ST, Taylor and the Pickerso 

Law'Group. Kirk attached these monthly billing statements to his Opposition an 

Countennotions (May 2:8, 2018) as Exhibits 15, 16, 17, 18 and 19, (The billin 

Staten-tents attached as Exhibit 16 aSsOtiated with Sinith Sx. Taylor, 'however, end with 

the billing entry dated April 18, 2012). Vivian filed these monthly billingstatements 

as part of her Defendant's and plaintiffs Attopiey Fe BiAiniStateznents (Apr, 5,2013): 

(4) The result:obtained.. Although this Court does not view this factor as al 

4presfai1ing party"' analysis, the auft reiterates that this: matter ultimately was resolved 

byWay of Stipulation. The resoltition Was different than each partystelie.f reqUestedirt 

their underlying pleadings. Nevertheless, it is not lost on the Court that Kirk's allegation 

that Vivian suffered from a serious psyChological disorder that impeded her parentin 

Abilities WAS not proven by coMpoteht evidence.. In fact,'over Vivian's objection, this 

C.ourtgranted Kirk's request to halt Dr. Paglirti's completibn of his evaluation of Vivian's 

'alleged condition. 

Based Ofi the billing statements submitted to the Court, Vivian exhausted, the 

entire amount of funds allocated to her from the marital community for attorneys' fees.: 

in coat*, Kirk retained $80,479.08 from the same ,ailocation off rids from the marital 
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totrimunity; Further, borrowing from Kirk's value analysis of :fees billed, Kirk. saved at 

least. $48517 ($83,576.50 according to Viyian's analysis) based on the amount that he 

would have otherwise paid for the:Custody Motion (Sep. 14, 2011 ), Separate and apait 

from an analysis of the specific billing entries from rk's attorneys, this sane Value 

based billing analysis suggeSts that kirk donated significant time and txpertse to the 

preparation of various papers filed on his behalf. Absent a finding :that Vivia0 response 

to Kirk's initial filingwas unreasonable (which this Court cannot Ord), ViVianisentitled 

anaward Of fees to "meet her adversary in the courtroom on an equal basis.'' &vow 

Sogetoit, 88 'Nev. 223, :22/, 495 fild 618, 621 .(1972). 

The amount of fees awarded to Vivian should *dude one,half of the amoun1t9f 

:?community funds Kirk saved as a result of his efforts ($40;240), as well as the excess 

amount in value billing: associated With the papers filed by both parties relative to 

Vivian's IVIotion (Apr. 3, 2013) ($46,060). in suirithary, this Ccitut finds thatsVivianis 

entitled to an award of fees from Kirk totaling $86,240, plus the stun of $$,i960 kaseti 

on the'March 9, 201:2 recommendation of the Discovery Commissioner, for a total of 

:$91,249 

on the foregoing findings and conclusions, and good cause appearing 

therefore, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, that Vivian's Motion is PIAMITD in part, and, 

Vivian is awarded the sum of $91,240 in attorneys' fees, which said sum is reduced to 

juagment i ViViart's favor and agalAst Kirk; 
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Kirk's Request for Reasonable Discovery an 

Evidentiary Hearing, his Countennotion for Equitable Relief, his Counterrnotion fo 

AttOnley'S Fees, and. his Counterrnotion for Declaratory Relief are PENIED. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that all alio' relief sought by the parties by way o 

their papers filed with the Courtnot otherwise specifitally addressed or granted her& 

Is-DENIED. 

DATED this 10th day of Februar :y, 2014. 
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VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, ) 

) 
Defendant. 	) 
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NO_TICE OF ENTRY Of 
FINDINGS 	IIOSIONS AND ORDERS 

TO: ALL PARTIES AND/OR THEIR ATTORNEYS 

Please take notice that an Order From Hearing has been entered in the above-

entitled matter. I hereby certify that on the above file stamped date, I caused a copy of 

the Findings, Conclusions and Orders and this Notice of Entry of Findings, 

Conclusions and Orders to be: 

og Placed in the folder(s) located in the Clerk's Office of the following attorneys: 

Edward Kainen, Esq. 
Thomas Standish, Esq. 

Radford J. Smith, Esq. 
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KIRK ROSS HARRISON, 

Plaintiff, 

V. 	 CASE NO. 
DEPT NO. 

VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, 

Defendant. 	
) 

—) 

EZUNG.S.MIKLUSEMS.AN-P—Olagn 

This matter came before this Court on the following papers that were reviewed 

and considered by this Court' 

(1) Defendant's Motion for Attorney's Fees and Sanctions (Apr. 3, 2013) 
(hereinafter referred to as "Vivian's Motion") (37 pages in length, exclusive 
of exhibits); 

(2) Plaintiffs Opposition to Defendant's Motion for Attorneys' Fees and 
Sanctions; Plaintiffs Request for Reasonable Discovery and Evidentiary 
Hearing; Plaintiff's Cotmtermotion for Equitable Relief; Plaintiffs 

1 Defendant also filed a Motion for an Order Appointing a Parenting Coordinator and 
Therapist for the Minor Children as Required by the Court Ordered Parenting Plan; Motion for 
Sanctions and Attorneys' Pees (May 10, 2013). Plaintiff also filed a Motion to Enter Decree 
of Divorce (May 13, 2013). Additional papers were filed with respect to these two Motions. 
(There was, however, no opposition filed in response to Plaintiffs Motion to Enter Decree of 
Divorce (May 13, 2013)). With the exception of each party's request for attorney's fees 
associated with these motions, the issues raised therein have been resolved by this Court by way 
of the entry of the Decree of Divorce (Oct. 31,2013), the Order Re: Appointment of Therapist 
(Oct. 29,2013), and the Order for Appointment of Parenting Coordinator (Oct. 29, 2013). As 
such, these issues are not addressed herein. 



Countermotion for Attorneys' Fees and Sanctions; Plaintiffs 
Countermotion for Declaratory Relief (May 28, 2013) (hereinafter referred 
to as "Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions") (133 pages in length, 
exclusive of exhibits); 

(3) Exhibits to Plaintiffs Opposition to Defendant's Motion for Attorneys' 
Fees and Sanctions; Plaintiffs Request for Reasonable Discovery and 
Evidentiary Hearing; Plaintiffs Countermotion for Equitable Relief; 
Plaintiffs Countennotion for Attorneys' Fees and Sanctions; and Plaintiffs 
Countermotion for Declaratory Relief (May 28, 2013) (804 pages in 
length); 

(4) Defendant's Reply to Plaintiffs Opposition to Defendant's Motion for 
Attorneys' Fees and Sanctions; and Opposition to Plaintiffs Request for 
Discovery and Evidentiary Hearing; Plaintiffs Countermotion for 
Equitable Relief; Plaintiffs Countennotion for Attorneys' Fees and 
Sanctions; Plaintiff's Countermotion for Declaratory Relief (May 31, 
2013) (5 pages in length); 

(5) Plaintiffs Reply to Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiff's Request for 
Discovery and Evidentiary Hearing; Plaintiff's Countermotion for 
Equitable Relief; Plaintiffs Countermotion for Attorneys' Fees and 
Sanctions; Plaintiffs Countermotion for Declaratory Relief (June 3, 2013) 
(hereinafter referred to as "Kirk's Reply") (10 pages in length, exclusive of 
exhibits); 

(6) Plaintiffs Motion for Scheduling Order or, in the Alternative, to Deny 
Vivian's Motion for Attorneys Pees, Grant Each of Kirk's Countemiotions, 
and Grant Kirk's Motion for Enter Decree of Divorce (Sep. 4, 2013) (12 
pages in length, exclusive of exhibits); 

(7) Defendant's Reply to Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's Motion for 
Attorney's Fees and Sanctions; Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs 
Countermotion Styled Request for Reasonable Discovery and Evidentiary 
Hearing; Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs Countermotion for 
Equitable Relief; Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs Countermotion for 
Attorneys' Fees and Sanctions; and Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs 
Countermotion for Declaratory Relief (Sep. 11,2013) (hereinafter referred 
to as "Vivian's Reply") (78 pages in length, exclusive of exhibits); 

(8) Exhibits to Defendant's Reply to Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's 
Motion for Attorney's Fees and Sanctions; Exhibits to Defendant's 
Opposition to Plaintiffs Countermotion Styled Request for Reasonable 
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Discovery and Evidentiary Hearing; Exhibits to Defendant's Opposition to 
Plaintiffs Countermotion for Equitable Relief; Exhibits to Defendant's 
Opposition to Plaintiffs Countermotion for Attorneys' Fees and Sanctions; 
and. Exhibits to Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs Countermotion fo 
Declaratory Relief (Sep. 11, 2013) (354 pages in length): and 

(9) Plaintiffs Reply Brief in Support of Plaintiffs Countennotions for 
Reasonable Discovery and Evidentiary Hearing, Equitable Relief, 
Attorneys' Fees and Sanctions, and Declaratory Relief (Oct. 21 , 2013) (57 
pages in length, exclusive of exhibits). 

This Court has entertained extensive briefing 2  on the issues raised by way of the 

foregoing papers filed by each party, as well as arguments offered by counsel at the 

hearing held on October 30, 2013. Based on the papers on file and the arguments o 

counsel, this Court makes the following findings and conclusions: 

I. SUMMARY OF LITIGATION: A successful settlement? 

On March 18, 2011, Plaintiff, KIRK. ROSS HARRISON ("Kirk"), filed his 

Complaint for Divorce against the Defendant, VIVIAN MARIE HARRISON ("Vivian"). 

On November 23, 2011, Vivian filed her Answer to Complaint for Divorce and 

Counterclaim for Divorce. By way of their respective pleadings, both parties sought 

primary physical custody of their two minor children, Emma "Brooke" Harrison, born 

2During this litigation, both parties routinely filed papers in excess of the page limitations 
specified in EDCR 2.20(a) , which provides, in pertinent part, "[unless otherwise ordered by the 
court, papers submitted in support of pretrial and post-trial briefs shall be limited to 30 pages 
excluding exhibits." During the custody portion of the litigation, the length of papers was 
discussed on one occasion before the Court. Specifically, at the hearing on November 1,2011, 
Defendant orally requested permission to submit a paper that exceeded the length allowed 
pursuant to EDCR 2.20(a). In consideration of the gravity of the issue (i.e., child custody), this 
Court indicated that it did not "have a problem" with the lengthy filings of the parties so long 
as courtesy copies were provided to the Court. Although this Court tolerated such lengthy filings 
at that time, this Court advised the parties at the October 30, 2013 hearing it would no longer 
tolerate the same. Indeed, the excessive and burdensome length of filings that addressed the 
remaining issues before this Court is dealt with in the award of attorneys' fees below. 

LIILVIIIIVISION. Wt a 
	 3 

t VEGAS, NEVADASSIO1 



June 26, 1999, and Rylee Harrison, born January 24, 2003. Further, both parties raised 

the issue of attorney's fees in their respective pleadings. 

Kirk and Vivian ultimately resolved nearly every contested issue identified in their 

respective pleadings. The terms of their agreements were memorialized in their 

Stipulation and Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11, 2012), and the Decree of 

Divorce (Oct. 31,2013). As such, the stipulated resolution reached by the parties could 

be viewed as a "success' of the divorce process. Indeed, as expressed by the Honorable 

David A. Hardy: 

Litigants often respond negatively when their relationships and resources 
are at risk. A divorce proceeding culminating in trial represents a failure of our 
legal system.  The adversarial process requires parties to emphasize their 
virtues and their respective spouses' flaws. The divorce proceeding is both 
expensive and destructive. 

Nevada Alimony: An Important Polio, in Need of a Coherent Polio ,  Purpose, 9 NEV. L. J. 325 

(2009) (emphasis supplied). 

Although there were several contested hearings in this divorce action, there was 

no trial or evidentiary hearing prior to January 22, 2014. Through the date of the 

October 30, 2013 hearing, not a single witness was called to testify at any proceeding 

before this Court. Nevertheless, the financial cost (to say nothing of the unquantifiable 

emotional cost) of this litigation was staggering. To this end, the parties devoted 

significant time, energy, and resources to the issue of custody of the parties' two minor 

children. Both parties filed multiple papers of voluminous length with the Court 

regarding the issue of child custody. These papers included: 
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Cl 	Kirk's Motion for Joint Legal and Primary Physical Custody and Exclusive 
Possession of Marital Residence (Sep. 14,2011) (hereinafter referred to as 
"Custody Motion") (206 pages in length, inclusive of the Affidavits of Kirk 
R. Harrison, Tahnee Harrison and Whitney Harrison, but exclusive of 
other exhibits); 

Vivian's Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Joint Legal and Primary 
Physical Custody and Exclusive Possession of Marital Residence; 
Countermotions for Exclusive Possession of Marital Residence, for Primary 
Physical Custody of Minor Children; for Division of Funds for Temporary 
Support, and for Attorney's Fees (Oct. 27, 2011) (hereinafter referred to 
as "Custody Countermotion") (18S pages in length, inclusive of the Sworn 
Declaration of Vivian Harrison and various other dedarationstaffidaVits, 
but exclusive of other exhibits); 

Kirk's Reply to Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for joint 
Legal and Primary Physical Custody and Exclusive Possession of Marital 
Residence; Countermotions for Exclusive Possession of Marital Residence, 
for Primary Physical Custody of Minor Children; for Division of Funds for 
Temporary Support, and for Attorney's Fees (Jan. 4, 2012) (hereinafter 
referred to as "Kirk's Custody Reply") (105 pages in length, inclusive of 
the Affidavit of Kirk R. Harrison and various other declarations/affidavits, 
but exclusive of other exhibits); 

Vivian's Reply to Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's Countermotions for 
Exclusive Possession of Marital Residence, for Primary Physical Custody 
of Minor Children; for Division of Funds for Temporary Support; and for 
Attorney's Fees (Jan. 27, 2012)(hereirtafter referred to as "Vivian's 
Custody Reply") (67 pages in length, inclusive of the Sworn Declaration 
of Vivian Harrison and various other declarations/affidavits, but exclusive 
of exhibits); and 

Viv-ian's Supplemental Sworn Declarations in Support of Reply to 
Countermtion (Jan. 31,2012) (2 pages in length, 12 pages of declarations). 

The parties appeared at multiple hearings regarding the issue of custody. As 

noted above, Kirk and Vivian each requested primary physical custody of their minor 

children in their respective pleadings (i.e., Kirk's Complaint and Vivian's Counterclaim). 

Each party relied on various • "expert" reports attached to their respective filings. 
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1 
2 Ultimately, this Court appointed Dr. Paglini to provide evaluative services regarding the 

3 issue of child custody. Notwithstanding the significant time, energy, and resources 

4 devoted to the issue of custody (or perhaps as a result thereof), the parties entered into 
5 
6 a Stipulation and Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11, 2012). Thereafter, the 

7 parties resolved the remaining issues of the divorce action, placing the terms on the 

8 record at the December 3, 2012 hearing. Their agreement included a specific reservation 

9 of jurisdiction to allow this Court to entertain a motion to be filed by either party 
10 

11 
regarding the issue of attorneys' fees. See Decree of Divorce 28-29 (Oct. 31, 2013). 

12 IL ATTORNEYS' FEES 

	

13 	
A. LEGAL BASES 

14 

	

15 
	On April 3, 2013, Vivian's Motion was filed, "It is well established in Nevada 

16 that attorney's fees are not recoverable unless allowed by express or implied agreement 

17 or when authorized by statute or rule." Schouweiler v. Yancg Co., 101 Nev. 827, 830, 
18 

19 
712 P.2d 786, 788 (1985), quoted in Miller p. Wqpng, 121 Nev. 619, 119 P.3d 727 

20 (2005). Pursuant to Vivian's Motion (Apr. 3, 2013), Vivian seeks in award of 

21 attorney's fees on the following bases: 
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Discovery and Evidentiary Healing; Exhibits to Defendant's Opposition to 
Plaintiffs Countermotion for Equitable Relief; Exhibits to Defendant's 
Opposition to Plaintiff's Countermotion for Attorneys' Fees and Sanctions; 
and Exhibits to Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs Countermotion fo 
Declaratory Relief (Sep. 11, 2013) (354 pages in length); and 

(9) Plaintiff's Reply Brief in Support of Plaintiffs Countermotions for 
Reasonable Discovery and Evidentiary Hearing, Equitable Relief, 
Attorneys' Fees and Sanctions, and Declaratory Relief (Oct. 21, 2013) (57 
pages in length, exclusive of exhibits). 

This Court has entertained extensive briefing 2  on the issues raised by way of the 

foregoing papers filed by each party, as well as arguments offered by counsel at the 

hearing held on October 30, 2013. Based on the papers on file and the arguments o 

counsel, this Court makes the following findings and conclusions: 

I. 	SUMMARY OF LITIGATION: A successful settlement? 

On March 18, 2011, Plaintiff, KIRK ROSS HARRISON ("Kirk"), filed his 

r'r%rvwd  .14 ".  C"Nrentist94,1391tiresttthrMeEetrimtIIIALTIAN MAR.W.1 -1.4.12 DYcniv "V.471 •3  ?"■ 

(2) Fails to prepare for a presentation. 
(3) So multiplies the proceedings in a case as to increase costs 

unreasonably and vexatiously. 
(4) Fails or refuses to comply with these rules. 
(5) Fails or refuses to comply with any order of a judge of 

the court. 

5In Sargeant v. Sargeant, 88 Nev. 223,495 P.2d 618 (1972), the husband challenged 
the lower court's award of attorney's fees. The Nevada Supreme Court held that "RN wife 
must be afforded her day in court without destroying her financial position. This would imply 
that she should be able to meet her adversary in the courtroom on an equal basis." Id. at 227, 
495 P.2d at 621. Vivian's Motion also cites Wright v. Osburn, 114 Nev. 1367, 1370, 970 P.2d 
1071, 1073 (1998) in support of her request ("It]he disparity in income is also a factor to be 
considered in the award of attorney fees."). Considering the relative income parity of the parties, 
however, there has been no showing that a disparity in income exists that justifies an award of 
fees. Nevertheless, the issue of whether Vivian was able to "meet [Kirk] in the courtroom on an 
equal basis" is a legitimate issue that was debated and discussed throughout the papers filed by 
the parties. 

NRS 18.010 is generally inapplicable in evaluating each party's requests for fees as a 
"prevailing" party. Because the parties successfully negotiated a resolution of nearly all contested 
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B. POST-RESOLUT1ON MOTIONS 

Pursuant to EDCR 7.60, each party is entitled to an award of attorneys' fees 

associated with Defendant's Motion for an Order Appointing a Parenting Coordinator 

and Therapist for the Minor Children as Required by the Court Ordered Parenting Plan; 

Motion for Sanctions and Attorneys' Fees (May 10, 2013), and Plaintiffs Motion to 

Enter Decree of Divorce (May 13,2013). In this regard, although there was a good faith 

dispute regarding the appointment of a parenting coordinator and the language of the 

Order Appointing Parenting Coordinator, there was no reasonable basis to delay the 

selection of a counselor for the parties' children, particularly in light of recent papers 

filed by Kirk in which he requested a modification of the Stipulation and Order 

Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul, 1 , 2012). Considering the factual allegations raised 

in all papers filed regarding the issue of custody, any delay in initiating the counseling 

process for the children is bewildering. At the same time, Plaintiffs Motion to Enter 

Decree of Divorce (May 13,2013) was unopposed by Vivian and the Decree entered by 

the Court more closely mirrored the language proposed by Kirk. See Plaintiff's 

Submission of Proposed Decree of Divorce (Sep. 27, 2013). 

Pursuant to EDCR 7.60 and EDCR 5.11, aspects of both of the foregoing 

Motions should have been resolved in advance of the October 30, 2013 hearing. This 

issues, there is no "prevailing" party. Each party requested primary physical custody of their 
minor children in their underlying pleadings. Thus, neither party could be construed as the 
prevailing party regarding the physical custody designation. Nevertheless, it is not lost on the 
Court that the allegations that Vivian suffered from psychological infirmities that impacted her 
ability to parent the children went unproven from an evidentiary standpoint. 
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Court finds that the attorneys' fees attributable to the foregoing motions should be 

offsetting, and no fees are awarded to either party. 

C. SUMMARY OF FEES AND COSTS INCURRED AND PAID 

Each party received $550,343.25 in community funds earmarked for attorneys' 

fees. See Letter to Court from Edward Kainen, Esq. (Jan. 15, 2014), Letter to Court 

from Radford Smith, Esq. (Jan. 15, 2014) and Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions 

125 (May 28, 2013). Based on the billing statements offered to the Court, Kirk paid 

a total of $448,738.21 in fees and costs from March 8, 2011through January 15, 2013. 

In contrast, Vivian paid a total of $686,341.33 in fees and costs from May 2, 2011 

through January 30, 2013. See Exhibits to 1<irk's Opposition and Countermotions Ex. 

15 — 19 (May 28, 2013), and Defendant's and Plaintiff's Attorney Fee Billing 

Statements (Apr. 5, 2013). Exhibit 1 attached hereto is a spreadsheet summarizing the 

amounts paid by each party. Exhibit 2 attached hereto is a spreadsheet summarizing the 

fees and costs incurred. A review of the billing statements and the Court's Exhibit 2 

reveals the following: 

0 	Vivian incurred $687,506.28 in fees and costs from May 2,2011 through 
January 19, 2013? Thus, as of January 30, 2013, Vivian paid 
$137,163.03 in fees and costs from her separate property portion of the 
community assets. In contrast, Kirk incurred $469,864.17 in fees and 
costs from March 8, 2011 through December 21, 2012. 8  Thus, as of 

'These dates (i.e., May 2,2011 and January 19, 2013), represent the first and last billing 
entries for fees and costs incurred by Vivian. 

'These dates (i.e., March 8 ., 2011 and December 21, 2013), represent the first and last 
billing entries for fees and costs incurred by Kirk. 
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January 15,2013, Kirk retained. $80,479.08 in unused community funds 
allocated for attorneys' fees. 

O The fees and costs incurred by the parties to litigate the financial issues 
(i.e., post-Stipulation and Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11, 
2012)) appear to be relatively equal. Specifically, Vivian incurred 
$548,229.38 in fees and costs through the date the Stipulation and Order 
Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11, 2012) was filed. The balance of 
$139,276.90 was incurred after the custody issue had been resolved.' Kirk 
incurred $349,593.56 through the same period of time. The balance of 
$120,270,61 was incurred after the custody issue had been resolved. The 
difference in the amount incurred for post-custody issues totals 
$19,006.29, or less than eight percent (8%). In contrast, the difference 
in the amount of fees and costs incurred by each party prior to the entry 
of the Stipulation and Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11, 2012) 
totals $198,635.83. 

O Kirk incurred a total of $54,947 in fees and costs from the first reference; 
of time spent on preparation of his Custody Motion (Sep. 14, 2011) 
(August 6, 2011 billing entry of Jolley Urga Wirth Woodbury SI. Standish) 
through the date the Custody Motion was filed (i.e., through September 
14, 2011). Vivian incurred a total of $105,957.50 in fees and costs from 
the first reference of time spent on preparation of her Custody 
Countermotion (Oct. 27, 2011) (September 14, 2011 billing entry of 
Radford J. Smith, Chartered) through the date her Opposition to Custody 
Motion was filed (i.e., through October 27, 2011)? 

O Kirk's Custody Motion (Sep. 14, 2011) (with accompanying affidavits) 
consisted of 206 pages. This included the Custody Motion (48 pages), 
Kirk's Affidavit and Supplemental Affidavit (totaling 132 combined 

'To be clear, this Court recognizes that the fees and costs incurred prior to July 1 1 , 2012 
included time spent on issues unrelated to child custody. Nevertheless, the entry of the 
Stipulation and Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11, 2012) should represent the end 
by and kip of time spent on the child custody issue. 

mAgain, this Court recognizes that the fees and costs referenced were not entirely related 
to the child custody issues during the relevant periods of time defined above. In fact, Vivian 
offered that, based on her analysis of the billing statements, Kirk was billed the following 
amounts for the underlying custody papers: $19,887.50 for the Custody Motion, $8,450.00 
for Kirk's Reply to Vivian's Custody Countermotion and $1,400 for Kirk's Opposition to 
Defendant's Motion for Temporary Orders. See Exhibits to Vivian's Reply Ex. T (Sep. 11, 
2013). 
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pages)", the Affidavit of Tahnee Harrison (16 pages) and the Affidavit of 
Whitney Harrison (10 pages) u. Borrowing from Kirk's "value" billing 
analysis , 3  the monetary value of Kirk's Custody Motion was $103,464 
(206 pages multiplied by the hourly rate of $500). As noted above, Kirk 
was billed $54,947 during that period of time, $48,517 less than the 
"value" of the work product created. Relying on Vivian's analysis of the 
billing statements, Kirk was billed only $19,887.50 for this initial paper, 
$83,576.50 less than the "value" of the work product created. (This 
analysis does not include any value attributed to the time devoted by Kirk 
in the drafting of Dr. Roitman's report. The record suggests that Kirk was 
intimately involved in the preparation of the report. See Exhibits to 
Vivian's Reply Ex, Z, AA, and DD (Sep. 11, 2013). The report attached 
to the Custody Motion consisted of 36 pages, or a value of $18,000. 
Because such a report typically would be prepared by an expert and not an 
attorney, the "savings" would be attributed to the costs incurred.) 

0 	Vivian's Custody Countermotion (Oct. 27, 2011) (with accompanying 
affidavits) consisted of 188 pages. This included Vivian's Sworn 
Declaration as well as the declarations/affidavits of Michele Walker, Nyla 
Roberts, Kim Bailey, Annette Mayer, Heather Atkinson, Lizbeth Castelan, 
and Jeffry Lite. The record reflects, however, that Ms. Roberts and Ms. 
Walker drafted their own statements (consisting of 15 pages each). See 
Exhibits to Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions Ex. 11 (May 28,2013). 
Using the same "value" billing analysis, but excluding the statements of 

11 1t does not appear to be disputed that Kirk prepared his own affidavits and the initial 
Custody Motion, although his counsel "did a major re-write of our motion for temporary 
custody," billing Kirk approximately 37 hours. Exhibits to Kirk's Opposition and 
Countermotions, Ex. 1 (May 28, 2013). 

'Although Kirk similarly was involved in the drafting of the Affidavit of Tahnee Harrison 
and the Affidavit of Whitney Harrison, Kirk's counsel also spent time in preparation of the 
same. Exhibits to Kirk's Opposition and Counterrnotions Ex. 2 (May 28, 2013). 

'In his Opposition and Countermotions, Kirk offered the standard he applied with 
respect to what he considered a reasonable value associated with the preparation of papers filed 
with the Court. 51 (May 28, 2013). Specifically, the "standard was an average of one hour per 
page for research and writing combined." Id. In his Affidavit, Kirk referenced the preparation 
of "points and authorities" as part. of his value billing analysis. See Kirk's Opposition and 
Countermotions, Ex. 5 (May 28, 2013). In light of the comprehensive and detailed nature of 
the affidavits submitted by both parties, this Court applied the same analysis. The approach 
promoted by Kirk is analytically instructive in the context of the requests for fees pending before 
this Court. Although the billing rates by the attorneys in this matter varied slightly, this Court 
used the same billing rate of $500 per hour for this theoretical exercise. 

11 



Ms. Roberts and Mr. Walker, the monetary value of Vivian's Custody' 
Countermotion was $79,000 (158 pages multiplied by the hourly rate of 
$500). As noted above, Vivian was billed $105,957,50, $26,957.50 more 
than the "value" of the work product created. Although non-attorneys may 
have authored some of these papers (and some of the "statements" do 
appear to have been drafted by the affiant), the resulting difference is not 
significant when considering the totality of the filings, including Kirk's 
extensive drafting contributions to Dr. Roitman's report. Indeed, it is not 
unreasonable to expect significant time to have been spent in reading and 
analyzing Kirk's exhaustive Custody Motion. The record supports a 
conclusion that Kirk was actively involved in drafting of most papers 
(including his drafting of papers in response to the instant Motion (Apr. 
3, 2013)), See Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions Ex. 15 — 19 (May 
28, 2013) (billing summaries); Defendant's and Plaintiff's Attorney Fee 
Billing Statements (Apr. 5, 2013); and Kirk's Opposition and 
Countermotions Ex. 2 (May 28,2013) (Affidavit of Edward 1Cainen, Esq.). 
To this end, Kirk's value billing analysis provides some assistance to this 
Court in comparing the paperwork generated and the corresponding fees 
incurred. 

0 	A similar "value" analysis could be applied to other papers filed with this 
Court, particularly those papers associated with the child custody dispute. 
For example, Kirk's Custody Reply (Jan. 4, 2012) consisted of 105 pages 
(inclusive of various affidavits), or a value of $52,500. Further, Vivian's 
Custody Reply (Jan. 27, 2012) consisted of 67 pages (inclusive of various 
affidavits/declarations), or a value of $33,500. 

0 	Applying the same "value" analysis to the papers associated with Vivian's 
Motion (Apr. 3, 2013) is instructive." The total length of points and 
authorities associated with Vivan's filings (which included her Motion and 
her Replies) was 120 pages, or $60,000 in value. The total length of point 
and authorities associated with Kirk's filings (which included his 
Opposition, Countermotions and Replies) was 212 pages, or $106,000 in 
value, The difference in monetary value of the parties' respective filings is 
$46,000. 

'Vivian filed a Request to File Supplemental Information in Support of Motion for 
Attorney's Fees; In the Alternative, Supplemental Motion for Attorney's Fees (Jan. 15, 2014). 
This Court is not inclined to review additional billing records on an existing request for fees. 
Rather, this Court relies on the value billing analysis in evaluating the issue of fees and "leveling 
the playing field." 
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D. LITIGATION OF FINANCIAL AND CHILD CUSTODY ISSUES 

The papers submitted by both parties conceptually divide the litigation (including 

settlement aspects) into two general categories considered by the Court: (1) litigation 

associated with financial issues; and (2) litigation associated with child custody issues, 

(1) Financial Issues 

With respect to the litigation associated with financial issues, this Court does not 

find there is a basis to award fees to either party beyond this Court affirming the 

Discovery Commissioner's recommendation made at the March 9, 2012 hearing to 

award Vivian the sum of $5,000, (This Court does not find a basis to reject or alter the 

Discovery Commissioner's recommendations regarding attorney's fees.) Although both 

parties submitted papers complaining about discovery improprieties and the conduct of 

the other party with respect to the resolution of financial issues (and the relative 

"simplicity of the financial issues); this Court does not find that either party has 

supplied this Court with an adequate legal or factual basis to award additional fees 

related to the manner in which either party litigated the financial issues. It is not this 

Court's prerogative to scrutinize the litigation methods employed by four of the most 

highly esteemed and credentialed attorneys practicing family law in the State of Nevada 

based on the record before the Court. This is particularly so after considering the 

unused statutory mechanisms available to the parties to pursue a more expeditious 

resolution of the financial issues. Further, this Court's review of the billing statements 

(to the extent such information was decipherable amid extensive redactions by both 
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1 
parties) submitted by the parties does not give rise to this Court finding or concluding! 

3 that an award of attorneys' fees is appropriate on the bases cited in their respective 
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In Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions (May 28, 2013), Kirk expressed his 

dismay about "heated" discussions with his attorneys regarding their wise advice against 

the filing of a "motion for partial summary judgment to equally divide all of the 

community financial accounts, the gold and silver coins, and the income stream from the 

Tobacco case." 6 (May 28, 2013). Kirk expressed frustration about being thwarted in 

his desire to resolve these financial issues expeditiously, complaining that "parties in 

Family Court are more hostages, than clients." Id. 

On September 19, 2013, this Court entered its Orders Incident to the Stipulation 

and Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues and the December 3, 2012 Hearing. Therein, 

this Court directed that "each party may file and serve by the close of business on 

September 27, 2013, any offer(s) to allow decree concerning property rights of parties 

made pursuant to NRS 125.141." Orders Incident to the Stipulation and Order 

'In Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions (May 28, 2013), Kirk identified billing 
entries for Gary Silverman, Esq., dated November 28,2011 (totaling 24 hours) and November 
29, 2011 (totaling 26 hours). This Court concurs that such billing would be considered 
egregious. In Vivian's Reply to Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions (Sep. 11, 2013), Mr. 
Silverman explained that his billings "for the mediation were inadvertently double entered and 
he has removed those charges from his billing and refunded the fees to Ms. Harrison." Although 
Kirk in his Reply Brief in Support of Plaintiff's Countermotions for Reasonable Discovery and 
Evidentiary Hearing, Equitable Relief, Attorneys' Fees and Sanctions, and Declaratory Relief 
(Oct. 21, 2103) found Mr. Silverman's explanation implausible, this Court disagrees. Although 
not common or routine, the fact that two time entries were created for the same day (with 
slightly different descriptions) is not outside the realm of possibility. Mr. Silverman 
acknowledged the error and noted his remedial actions. 

14 



Resolving Parent/Child Issues and the December 3, 2012 Hearing 4 (Sep. 19, 2013). 

Notwithstanding the alleged simplicity of financial issues, neither party submitted "an 

offer to allow a decree to be entered concerning the property rights of the parties" as 

authorized by NRS 125.141) 6  (The settlement letter dated August 27, 2012 (included 

as Exhibit 2 to Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions (May 28, 2013) and Exhibit 

ODD to Vivian's Reply (Sep. 11, 2013)) does not qualify as an offer pursuant to NRS 

125.141.) 

The utilization of the process authorized by NRS 125.141 allows a party to 

pursue pro-actively the resolution of certain finandal issues. Indeed, this process can be 

effective because it allows a court to penalize financially an unreasonable party (in the 

form of attorney's fees). This Court believes that, even without final appraisals, each 

party had sufficient information and knowledge upon which such an offer could have 

been made well before the actual settlement was reached. Indeed, the May 22, 2013 

report of Clifford R. Beadle, CPA, outlined in detail the simplicity of the financial issues 

and the relatively small value of unresolved financial issues. See Kirk's Opposition and 

Countermotions Ex. 3 (May 28,2013). Therein, Mr. Beadle summarized that the value 

of "undisputed assets" to be divided ranged between 89.30 to 90.36 percent of the total 

(This Court recognizes that the resolution of all financial issues may have hinged on the 
completion of additional discovery and/or evaluative services, If so, the so-called "simplicity" 
may be an overstatement of reality. This Court would not expect the parties to reasonably 
engage in piecemeal negotiations of such financial issues. To the extent either party reasonably 
believed that the financial issues could have (and indeed should have) been resolved in short-
order due to their alleged simplicity, this Court would have expected at least one offer to allow 
entry of decree from one of the parties. Thus, if the unresolved issues were "over really nothing" 
(Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions 36 (May 28,2013)), each party should have made at 
least one offer pursuant to NRS 125.141. 
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community. Similarly, in his e-mail to James jimmerson, Esq., Mr. Silverman noted that 

"[l]t is a custody matter, primarily. The property issues are fairly straighforward [sic]." 

Exhibits to Vivian's Reply Ex. GG (Sep. 11, 2013). For Kirk to accuse the process in 

Family Court to be akin to "hostage-taldng," yet at the same time fail to avail himself 

of NRS 125.141 is incongruous. 

In summary, each party's failure to utilize the process authorized by NRS 

125.141, while at the same time proclaiming the relative simplicity of the financial 

issues, mitigates against this Court engaging in an evaluation of alleged improper or 

costly litigation tactics of either party. Further, as noted above, a similar amount of 

attorney's fees was incurred by each party after the entry of the Stipulation and Order 

Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11, 2013) (i.e., when only financial issues remained 

in, dispute). 

(2) Child Custody Issues 

With respect to the litigation associated with the issue of custody, this Court 

finds that Vivian is entitled to an award of fees pursuant to NRS 125.150, in 

conjunction with establishing parity between the parties as discussed in Sargeant, supra. 

Again, such an award of fees is based principally on the time spent and fees incurred 

litigating the issue of child custody. 

In his Complaint for Divorce, Kirk requested joint legal and "primary physical 

care, custody and control of the minor children herein." 2 (Mar. 18, 2011), In her 

Answer to Complaint for Divorce and Counterclaim for Divorce, Vivian requested joint 
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legal custody and "primary physical custody of the minor children, subject to the rights 

of specific visitation of Plaintiff/Counterdefendant." 3 (Nov. 23, 2011). There is 

nothing in the record that suggests that either party would capitulate to the other party 

being awarded primary physical custody of the minor children, or that mediation would 

have led to such a result. 

The Stipulation and Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11,2012) confirms 

to the parties joint legal custody and joint physical custody of their children. 

Preliminarily, the issue of custody is expressly excluded as an issue subject to the "offer 

of judgment" provisions of NRS 125.141(6). Further, inasmuch as the parties have 

utilized this post-resolution process to regurgitate the very same issues that were argued 

as part of the underlying custody proceedings, this Court finds little salutary or 

constructive value to rehashing these same arguments.' The parties ultimately 

stipulated that joint physical custody is in the best interest of their children.' 

I7This Court recognizes that said regurgitation perhaps was not the intent or motivation 
of the parties in submitting their respective papers on the attorney's fees issue. Nevertheless, 
the result for the Court is the same. 

In his Opposition and Countermotions, Kirk argued that, based on Dr. Roitman's 
advice, he "was willing to agree to custody terms he knew were not in Brooke's and Rylee's best 
interest just to get this over." 39, FN 24 (May 28, 2013), Later, Kirk stated: "Kirk wanted this 
matter resolved expeditiously, amicably, and on the merits, and without putting his children and 
Vivian through an extended court battle and trial." 14. at 77. These statements, however, are 
inconsistent with the record and Kirk's requests during the litigation. Notably, the delay in 
finalizing custody by way of evidentiary proceedings was caused, in part, by Kirk's plea for this 
Court to appoint Dr. Paglini as a "neutral" expert (which Vivian opposed). Kirk vehemently 
argued that he would be bound by Dr. Paglini's recommendations. But for Kirk's impassioned 
request for Dr. Paglini's appointment, an evidentiary hearing resolving the custody issue would 
have been set and held earlier than the entry of the parties' Stipulation and Order Resolving 
Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11, 2012). The return hearing on the referral to Dr. Paglini (by which 
time Dr. Paglini would have been expected to complete his report) was scheduled for May 16, 
2012. Referral Order for Outsouned Evaluation Services (Feb. 24,2012). Although this Court 

17 



I 
Moreover, there is no basis for this Court to now make findings that either parent suffers 

from any mental deficiency compromising his or her ability to care for the minor 

children, particularly considering the fact that Kirk requested that the custody 

evaluation undertaken by Dr. John Paglini not be completed.

The tone of the custody litigation was set by Kirk's filing of his Custody Motion 

(Sep. 14, 2011). This filing initiated a "battle of experts" that culminated with this 

Court's appointment of Dr. Paglini. In addition to Kirk's Affidavit, the Custody Motion 

(Sep. 14,2011) was comprised of an unsigned letter from Kirk to Vivian, the Affidavit 

of Tahnee L. Harrison, the Affidavit of Whitney J. Harrison, photographs, the 

Psychiatric Analysis from Norton A. Roitman, MD, DFAPA (with attached documents 

is unaware of the status of Dr. Paglini's actual completion of his report as of July 11, 2012 (the 
time the parties' entered their stipulated resolution), it was Kirk who adamantly opposed Dr. 
Paglini completing what Kirk had requested. (At the hearing on July 18, 2012, Vivian argued 
that Dr. Paglini's report was nearly complete, while Kirk argued that the completion of Dr. 
Paglini's report would not be possible without additional input from Kirk.) Notably, it appears 
settlement discussions regarding custody began within weeks of the February 24, 2012 hearing 
(when Dr. Paglini was appointed). See letter dated March 5, 2012 included in the Exhibits to 
Vivian's Reply Ex. VV (Sep. 11, 2013). Further, Kirk offered that in "late February 2012, 
Vivian and I began discussing the terms of a possible custody arrangement through our older 
children." Exhibits to Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions Ex. 5 (May 28, 2013). 

'To the extent Kirk believed (or believes) the minor children were exposed to serious risk 
while in Vivian's care, he would have insisted on the completion of the evaluation (which was 

ell underway at the time the issue of custody was resolved) even with a stipulated resolution 
of custody. Kirk expressed that "no one would be happier than Kirk if it is determined that 

Man does not have Narcissistic Personality Disorder." Kirk's Opposition and Countermotions 
3: FN 16 (May 28,2013). Yet, Kirk argued against having Dr. Paglini complete his evaluation, 
f the purpose of Kirk's request to appoint Dr. Paglini was to assure him that "Vivian does not 
ave Narcissistic Personality Disorder" (which Kirk offered as a motivating factor for his request 
o delay the resolution of custody by way of Dr. Paglini's appointment, and which arguably 

uld have been resolved conclusively with the completion of Dr. Paglini's report), it is 
neon sistent to vociferously oppose the completion of the report while at the same time continue 
o su est that Vivian suffers from a psychological infirmity that impairs her parenting ability. 
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1 

2 
regardingvarious medications), and the Supplemental Affidavit of Kirk Harrison. Kirk's 

3 Custody Motion relied, in part, on the aforementioned Psychiatric Analysis submitted 

4 by Dr. Norton Roitman, in which Dr. Roitman declared "to a reasonable degree of 

medical certainty" that "Vivian Harrison is suffering from a Narcissistic Personality 
6 

Disorder." 216 (Sep. 14, 2011) (emphasis added). Dr. Roitman acknowledged 

limitations to this conclusion "in recognition of the lack of direct psychological 

examination and testing." Id. Notwithstanding his acknowledgment of the limitations 

created by having never met Vivian personally (and having relied on the veracity of the 

information supplied by Kirk), Dr. Roitman's psychological assessment effectively 

framed the complexity of the custody issue and established the blueprint for highly 

contentious litigation. 

In response to Kirk's Custody Motion, Vivian filed her Custody Countermotion 

(Oct. 27, 2011). In addition to the Sworn Declaration of Vivian Harrison, Vivian's 

Custody Counterrnotion was comprised of a disc, a Volunteer Application Form from 

The Hope Foundation, various credit card summaries, grade reports for the minor 

children, an unsigned letter from Tahnee to Vivian, a July 19, 2005 Psychiatric 

Evaluation from Ventana Health Associates, a handwritten Last Will Sr.. Testament of 

Kirk R. Harrison, a handwritten statement entitled "My Mom," an August 13, 2011 

report from Ole J. Thienhaus, M.D., FACPsych, a September 24, 2011 report from Ole 

Thienhaus, M.D., FACPsych, photographs, various pharmaceutical and LabCorp 

eoords, the Sworn Declaration of Michele Walker, the Sworn Declaration of Nyla 

oberts, the Sworn Declaration of Kim Bailey, the Affidavit of Annette Mayer, the 
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Sworn Declaration of Heather J. Atkinson, the Affidavit of Lizbeth Castlart, and the 

Sworn Declaration of Jeffry Life. 

Vivian supplemented the record with her Custody Reply (Jan. 27, 2012). 

Attached thereto were reports from Paul S. Appelbaum, MD, and Elsa P. Ronningstain, 

Ph.D., that challenged the findings of Dr. Roitman's Psychiatric Analysis. Kirk was not 

involved in the preparation of these reports. 

The volume of resulting paperwork in response to the Custody Motion (Sep. 14, 

2011) and the Custody Countermotion (Oct. 27, 2011) was previously noted. In 

summaty, both parties submitted reports generated by way of their respective unilateral 

retention of experts. These reports all failed to indude the participation of the other 

party. The precipitating salvo, however, was fired by way of Kirk's Custody Motion 

(Sep. 14, 2011). Between the filing of the Custody Motion (Sep. 14, 2011) and the 

finalization of the Stipulation and Order Resolving Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11,2012), 

hundreds of thousands of dollars in community funds were expended by the parties. 

In light of the voluminous nature of the papers filed and work generated by the 

allegations made by both parties, this Court is not inclined to engage in a qualitative 

analysis of whether the work performed was justified under the circumstances. Based 

on the sheer volume of papers filed by both parties related to the custody issue, the 

significance of the custody issue to Kirk and Vivian cannot be overstated. Indeed, it 

would be impossible to quantify monetarily the value of custody. Considering the 

gravity of the custody issue before the Court and the framework of litigation established 

by Kirk's Custody Motion (Sep. 14, 2011), this Court does not find the amount of time 
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2 spent by Vivian's counsel to be unreasonable. Indeed, the record established that Kir 

3 benefitted from his experience as an attorney and his ability to prepare detailed and 

4 comprehensive papers in the prosecution of his claims. This Court would have expected 
5 

6 
an extensive amount of time devoted to read and digest the content of the Custod 

Motion (Sep. 14, 2011). In retrospect, the overall tenor of this initiating motion and 

8 Kirk's argument suggests that if Vivian would not succumb to the specific relief sough 

9 by way of the Custody Motion and psychological diagnosis, she would at least capitulate 
10 

11 
to the manner in which Kirk proposed that the issue of custody be litigated. 

	

12 
	Notwithstanding the voluminous papers filed with the Court, the parties 

13 ultimately reached a stipulated resolution of the custody issue. As noted previously, the 

14 ability of two parents to reach such a stipulated resolution shouldbe lauded as a success. 
15 

16 
Thus, the fact that Kirk and Vivian entered into a Stipulation and Order Resolving 

17 Parent/Child Issues (Jul. 11, 2012) is a success of the process, and more importantly, a 

18 benefit to Brooke and Rylee. An "after-the-fact" analysis of the merits of the parties 
19 

20 
respective positions related to the child custody issue is not productive. To do so would 

21 inhibit constructive settlement discussions and would be contrary to the sound policy 

22 of encouraging the resolution of parenting issues by the individuals who should be most 

23 in tune with the needs of their children — i.e., their parents. 
24 

	

25 
	Unfortunately, this entire post-resolution process has degenerated into attempts 

26 by both parties to litigate the very issues that were the subject of settlement. To this 

27 end, this Court was inundated with a seemingly endless diatribe of both finger-pointing 

28 
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1 
2 and rationalizations. w  As with prior papers filed in this matter, the length of the papers 

3 filed by both parties exceeded the limitations imposed by EDCR 2.20(a), with Kirk's 

4 Opposition and Countermotions (May 28, 2013) consisting of an astounding 133 pages 
5 
6 in points and authorities alone. Therein, Kirk bemoaned the process in Family Court, 

7 once again relying on Dr. Roitman to educate him that "Iy]ou just don't get it. You arc 

8 not going to solve your family's problems in Family Court,'" Opposition and 

9 Countermotions 6 (May 28, 2013). Kirk then opines: "What a sad commentary. The 
10 

11 
one forum in the Nevada judicial system where it is most important to expeditiously and 

12 amicably resolve problems, because children's emotional well being, lives, and futures 

13 are at stake, is unquestionably the worst." IL at 6. At the outset of this litigation, Kirk 

14 should have been disabused of any notion that a complete stranger (i.e., the Court) is 
15 

16 
in the best position to solve his family's problems. Indeed, the parties have failed to a 

17 degree -when it is left up to the Court — a stranger to the parties' children to resolve 

18 these issues. 
19 	

In his Opposition and Countermotions, Kirk takes no responsibility whatsoever 
20 

21 for the directional path of this litigation, but instead lectures about how the "one forum 

22 in the Nevada judicial system where it is important to expeditiously and amicably 

23 resolve problems, because children's emotional well being lives, and futures are at stake, 
24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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"Amidst the personal attacks strewn throughout the papers, each party did provide this 
Court with a measure of levity. For example, as part of his critique of the amount of time 
Vivian's attorneys spent in preparingpapers in response to Kirk's Custody Motion, Kirk offered: 
"A monk with only a quill pen in dim candlelight would be more productive." Kirk's Opposition 
and Countermotions 53 (May 28, 2013). Vivian retorted with: "A genie with a magic wand 
could not have finished all of that work in 41.8 hours," in light of the comparatively low amount 
of fees incurred by Kirk. Vivian's Reply 28 (Sep. 11, 2013). 
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1 
2  is unquestionably the worst." Id. It would indeed be shortsighted to believe that an 

3 unprecedented 48-page initiating motion (accompanied by a 1 18-page, 241-paragraph 

4  affidavit and a psychiatric diagnosis "to a reasonable degree ofmedical certainy" that Vivian 

suffered "from a Narcissistic Personality Disorder") would not somehow engender a 

massive response of time and effort. 2I  So Custody Motion (Sep. 14,2011). It similarl 

8 would be shortsighted to believe that such a Custody Motion could possibly be 

9 perceived or received by Vivian as an effort to "do what was indisputably best for . . . 
10 

11 
Vivian" (6) or to "get Vivian help.' 4 (Sep. 14, 2011). Yet, despite such an initial 

12 barrage of paperwork, Kirk uses 133 pages of diatribe to attack Vivian, Vivian's 

13 attorneys and this Court as being responsible entirely for the manner in which this case 

14 was litigated. See Kirk's Opposition and. Countermotions (May 28, 2013). On 15 
15 

16 
occasions in his Opposition and Countermotions (May 28, 2013), Kirk repeated nearly 

17 verbatim the following: "The difference in fees billed by Vivian's attorneys in this case 

18 versus the fees billed by Kirk's attorneys in this case is a function of how Vivian 

20 

19 
andiVivian's attorneys chose to manage this case and how they overbilled this case, 

rather than any drafting Kirk did on any points and authorities." As if he was an 21 

22 

	

23 	
2 43oth parties complained about the process (or being "jaded" by the process) in some 

fashion. Yet, both parties behaved in a manner not seen in most cases. Notably, Kirk argues 24 
that "the letter opinions from [Vivian's] two national experts are so qualified to be entirely 

25 worthless." Opposition and Countermotions 79 (May 23,2013). If said reports are considered 
"entirely worthless," the "qualifying" factors associated with Dr. Rottman's report (including the 26 fact that he never met with the person he was diagnosing) render his report "entirely worthless" 
as well. 27 

22At the point in time that Dr. Roitman's reports was thrust into the litigation, his report 28 
could hardly be viewed as a therapeutic tool. ICE C. MCMACKIN 
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2 innocent bystander throughout this entire process, Kirk fails to acknowledge that his 

3 unprecedented approach to the initial paper he filed with this Court (i.e., his Custody 

4 Motion (Sep. 14, 2011)) had any correlation to Vivian's response thereto and the path 
5 

6 
of this litigation. 

7 
	The sad reality is that the amount of fees awarded herein likely pales in 

8 comparison to the emotional and financial toll this post-divorce process has created. 

This entire process has generated more animosity and conflict that is not healthy for the 

parties or their children, leading the Court to ask, is it worth it? Yet, amidst 

complaining about this process, Kirk curiously requested the opportunity to further 

lengthen these proceedings by pursuing additional discovery and an evidentiary hearing 

regarding the issue of attorneys' fees — which would equate to even more fees. 

In evaluating the amount of fees that should be awarded, this Court has 

considered the factors enunciated in Biunzell v. Golden Gate National Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 

455 P.2d 31 (1969). Specifically, this Court has considered: 

(1) The quality of the advocates. Both parties are represented by experienced 

and highly esteemed advocates. Indeed the quality of representation was at an 

exceptional level. (The high regard in which each party's attorneys are held magnifies 

the disappointment of this Court in the unnecessary personal attacks strewn throughout 

the papers filed with this Court.) 

(2) The character of the work to be performed. This Court's analysis of the 

character of the work performed is detailed above. 

YOE C. DUCKWORTH 
DISTRICT JUDGE 
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(3) The work actually performed. The work actually performed is represente 

in the billing summaries submitted to the Court. In this regard, each party provided th 

Court with billing statements encompassing the fees and costs associated with thd 

respective representation. This information included monthly billing statements fro 

Jolley Urga Wirth Woodbury & Standish, Ecker & Kainen/Kainen Law Group, 

Silverman, Decaria &_ Kattelman, Radford J. Smith/Smith & Taylor and the Dickers° 

Law Group. Kirk attached these monthly billing statements to his Opposition an 

Countermotions (May 28, 2013) as Exhibits 15, 16, 17, 18 and 19. (The billin 

statements attached as Exhibit 16 associated with Smith &. Taylor, however, end with 

the billing entry dated April 18,2012..) Vivian filed these monthly billing statements 

as part of her Defendant's and Plaintiff's Attorney Fee Billing Statements (Apr. 5,2013). 

(4) The result obtained. Although this Court does not view this factor as a 

"prevailing party" analysis, the Court reiterates that this matter ultimately was resolved 

by way of stipulation. The resolution was different than each party's relief requested in 

their underlying pleadings. Nevertheless, it is not lost on the Court that Kirk's allegation 

that Vivian suffered from a serious psychological disorder that impeded her parenting 

abilities was not proven by competent evidence. In fact, over Vivian's objection, this 

Court granted Kirk's request to halt Dr. Paglini's completion of his evaluation of Vivian's 

alleged condition. 

Based on the billing statements submitted to the Court, Vivian exhausted the 

entire amount of funds allocated to her from the marital community for attorneys' fees. 

In contrast, Kirk retained $80,479.08 from the same allocation of funds from the marital 

25 



1 

2 community. Further, borrowing from Kirk's value analysis of fees billed, Kirk saved at 

3 least $48,517 ($83,576.50 according to Vivian's analysis) based on the amount that he 

4 would have otherwise paid for the Custody Motion (Sep. 14, 2011). Separate and apart 

from an analysis of the specific billing entries from Kirk's attorneys, this same value 

7 based billing analysis suggests that Kirk donated significant time and expertise to the 

8 preparation of various papers filed on his behalf. Absent a finding that Vivian's response 

to Kirk's initial filing was unreasonable (which this Court cannot find), Vivian is entitled 

to an award of fees to "meet her adversary in the courtroom on an equal basis." Sargeant 

v. &want, 88 Nev. 223, 227, 495 11.2d 618, 621 (1972). 

The amount of fees awarded to Vivian should include one-half of the amount o f  

community funds Kirk saved as a result of his efforts ($40,240), as well as the excess 

amount in value billing associated with the papers filed by both parties relative to 

Vivian's Motion (Apr. 3, 2013) ($46,000). In summary, this Court finds that Vivian is 

entitled to an award of fees from Kirk totaling $86,240, plus the sum of $5,000 based 

on the March 9, 2012 recommendation of the Discovery Commissioner, for a total of 

$91,240. 

Based on the foregoing findings and conclusions, and good cause appearing 

therefore, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Vivian's Motion is GRANTED in part, and 

Vivian is awarded the sum of491,240 in attorneys' fees ;  wail' said sum is reduced to 

judgnnt in ViSrlar,t's favor andra ainst Kirk. 

YcEc. DUCK*01,111 
DISTRICT JUDGE 
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2 	IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Kirk's Request for Reasonable Discovery an 

3 Evidentiary Hearing, his Countennotion for Equitable Relief, his Countennotion fo 

4  Attorney's Fees, and his Countermotion for Declaratory Relief are DENIED. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that. all other relief sought by the parties by way o 

their papers filed with the Court not otherwise specifically addressed or granted here 

is DENIED, 

DATED this 10th day of February, 2014. 

BRYir C. (DUCKWORTH 
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18.4' 'clay Of Dedeinber, 2013; Plaintiff, igrk Bart ison, being present and represented by Thomas Standish, 

Qf Standish taw Group and by Edwar1 L Xainen, Esq.„ of the Kanter) Law Group; and Defendant 

Vivian Ilarrison, 'being present and IropreSeirted by Radford J. Smith,'Esq., of Radford L irdth, . 4 
Chaiterecl, :4td by Gary 80V:ern -Jan, Esq., of Silverman, Deestia:&-Kattlemax the Cowl, haying heard the': 

:Arguments of- counsel, having reVieWed. the pleadings and papers on file in 1.1ii3 0640, fixid being &lb,  

gdy4se4 in 019 POttii.$0s.,'and geed Cause.appearingtherefore, makes :the feiloWing findings and orders: 

I. In regards to TEENAGE :DI$CRETIQN; the parties had resolved :parent/child 

issues and a Stipulation was entered On July Ii,  ;2012 $ection 6 Of that agreement 

addresSes the issne of TEENAGE 018CRE1ION and ti re94eW of that section, theCourt doe;.S not 

VieW that language as giving thentincir Child antherity te make decisions Or t9 'dui* tuitody.. 

The partie.s agrop.d.,to thelangugge 'and -part of that ineltuled iinpleinentatiOn Of:a counselor and 

parenting o snordinater. The .proCess to Impierriertt those' has been delayed and is .to be 

implemented fOrthwith; -0511rt VieWS.. the' language as that, the cour/SelOr (Dr. Ali has been 

.-Selected) would he involVed in the TEENAGE DISCRETION process, as would the ;parenting 

COordinator. The purpose i such would be to avoid the Cuttr6 interVenfron„ though those. 

processes. WOUld riot Supplant this Court's authority - atici the parties may still petition the Court 

to address any 'issues they may have. ;  

2. 	'The request to Suspend,. remove or otherwise Modify the TEE NAPE 

DISCRETION Orb-vision is DENIED, To he clear, the minor ehild(Brooke) does not :centre! mid 

the Court expects the counselcr to be involved in this ptocess The purPOse of TEENAGE ,  

SCRET1014 is nett° remove blocks of time from i.party .d if a partris being remOved for a 

period a time (aside from vagationa), then the Court would be eOrtgettPd. TENAM 

DI$MTION should he implemented fromtune-to-time and there *should not be any issues 
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22 

23 

should Brook e wish to make 44 modification for a few hours and the COUtt W 0.1110 OtPeot 

communication in this regard. Again, the OMinselor and the .parenting COOrdinater are to be 

engaged this  process. . 

3. :Per .STIPL.T.LATION, accounts ending .8278 ;mid 2521 are Plaintiffs sale and SeParate 

pitperty, 

4. With regard to.aecennts ending 86t $..127/S . atid 2713 to the extent that these,accoantS 

we PlaintiffS prior to thematriage, thenthey are liis Ole and separate property. ft is the ,Defendant's 

burden to show that any commurdty 'ptcperty funds were deposited or plitc.1 into these account which 

.won.k1 -Create a Oorrinitinity property interest in thbse ae0OUnts,. OtherwiSo, it is clear to the Cote that 

those three Reeottnfs ate the Plaintit,S Sele atid Separate. property mni the Deeite .61DiVeree-Shali be 

correctO .retleet such. Cotirt views this 'issue as In ,ISstle that4id nbt need to be b.reugtit before the 

Coot • 

The: Neree of-Divorce is to bozotoeted fo retied that The IV.lease Associates is heiti in 

beth 	 estame. 

6. With regard4obe AIR list; to the extent items weretiet included in the list prepared by 

4ayee NeWn-tart, aWrit ai AgNement between the parties, ttipsd itdrip are tobe divided by way of ati 

list (which was the intent of thecogrfs Order), 

7. With re' 	to the provision regarding reimbnr ..senient the Court views. thisis a nntaal 

provision. To the extent there is a:dispute as to any:items that Should 1?e itimbnrSed, the iterns may. be  

submitted to the tonyt,on a „separate list-with an explanatiOn and the Conn AVOtild make the -deterniinatiOo 

as to *heeler or milt needs to. be reigib!„trted. U. is the Court's .understanding bat this process With 

Melissa Attanaslo and Cliff Beadle has not been .ComPleted. Yet The accounting by Ms. Attati4P and 

Mr le,adlo is to be completed by.Jannary 11, 2914, The Court eXpetts an exchange of infonntign and 
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10 

11 

.13 

19 

20 

21 

docutneilta 	are lacking. Again, this provision is Tnatual and the items are limited to what was in 

ite Ternporary Order and to the extent there it a reimbursable expense, there must be some backup to 

demonstrate I hatt.he. expenso•Was 00e* bythe Temporary Orders. 

The matter. is set for a two hour t videntiary Rearing on January 22, 2614 at 1 ,!,16 

regarding the monies .  placed info Tabilee's account tor the purpose-of her eclUcation (atfer the biittation of 

thislitigatien, but POO to the J,Ohit 'Pretithinary Injunction). To be clear,  theteUrt Shall not be seeking to 

take Money awaY from Talmee. The -issue shall 1e Whether Or not there needs to he a rehnlmrsonent fo1. 

one-half of those monies that werei,,,aia:#) create this account. The (01;111 Tti4 determine whether or not 

there was an agreeitierit that these funds were to' he used:Solely for Medical school eduaation put.poSta Or 

12 tint, At MIS time, the Court views thiS eS:ar!.. on 	*dna Plaintiff's name'  as also On the aCtOuht. 

9, 	PiscOvery °pelt 4.5 to' Tahnee's accountutidhoW it Was breatedtidlhe account hlstory. 

10. The Partiesare to provide their proposed exhibits to the Court Clerk by the otOSe of 

basfuess op. January 17. 414. 

11. The COW shall allow OA 'off state WitueaSeS to testify by way of video (tcype ot 

Facetime), so long as the. Cottrt is able to .see the individual and have tern Swam in. The 'Quirt would 

pcpeOt. to hoar frOui Ms, Attanasio and Mr. Igeadle, 

12. With regard to any gatob items... which may have belonged to the Plaintiff's father, the 

Court vieVvg those itents as. the Plaintiff's sole and separate:property.. The Coda shall review the pipVe, 

23 up hearing in this regard as Ptah-M.-ft is indidating that au:the property located at the Vii.88 to be 

awarded to.hitn, The Q01.1rt ghall address this issue at the gvidentiary fl -learing after it has reviewed.* 

*OM. To be alear, this issue shall not to aplt pktloiooing 

IiiianthztoryProvisions:. Vie following.statutory notices relating to eustodY/visitation• of the xninor 

el:tad:Fen are applieibleto the parties herein:. 
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•purSuarit to N:RS 125C.200, the parties ;  and each of them, are hereby placed on notice that If 

e'lrher pattY intends to niove their residence to *place ontside the State of Nevada, arid take &Vita 
3 

child with them, they mutt, as SOOna possible, and before the,planned inovttennitte obtain the 

written consentof the Other party to move the minor Children from the State. lithe other party refUses to 

eve such consent, the moving party shall,. before they leave the State with the children, petition thetourt 

tbr permiSsion to move with .the :children. The failure of a patty -to eouiply with the.provision Ofthis. 

see0ort outs,  be Considered as. a-factor if a change of ouStOdY IS *nested by the other gam, This 
• 

•1
0 preViSion does notapplyto vacations outside tile State of Nevada planned by eittior-party. 

11 II 
	The parties, and each of them, shall be bound by the provisions of:MS 125.510(6)Aieltstate, In 

12 :11 pertinent Olt 

_PENALTY OR VIOLATION OF ORDER: TM AB.OWT/QN, CONCEALMENT OR 
WgINITION OF A :CHILD IN VIOATPS OF '4-11S ORDBR IS PUNISHABLE AS. A 
CATEGORY 0 FELONY AS 'pROvuigf) IN NRS 193.1 ao: MRS 2004.9 prOyldes that  
every person having a limited right iJfengody to a child or any patent having no ;right of 
custody to the child who Willfully detains, conceals or TernoVeS the Ohi1d. from a parent, 
guardian or Other pet** having lawful custody or aright Ofvititation of the Child in 
violation of an order digs cpurt; orremoveS the ehild;from the juris .akto of the court 
Without the consent of either the court Of all persons Who have the Tight to custody or 
Idsitation 4416,164tabengpuñlshed by a category ti felony as proVided in:NRS 193130:

•Nrsyfiut to NRS 125510(7) and (8); the tains dale:Hague Convention nf OCtobera:5, 1980, 

adepted by the 14th Session of Thellagtie Ovfeterice on Private international Law ate appikable to the 

parties: 

Sectien 8. If a parent of the child lives in a fbreign Country or has significant'conuttitments 
in a foreign. country; 

The parties may agree, and the Court shall include :in the Order for custody of the 
aid, that 016 United States is the country Of habitual  residence ofthe rind for the 

:pUrpOse of applying the terms of the Ha,gue Convention as set fbrthin SubSeetion 7. 

(b) 	Upniotion of the parties, the CM& may orger the pment to pot a bond Utile 
Court determines that the parents pose 04 irrunloont risk of wrongfully removing or 
Concealing the child outside the country of habitual residence. The bond must he in an 
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610401# e00.41411404 40:gift* amiky 4cko 1.10 woo pts-atiottoi tgiti 
Pi$.*P:i1PWItlit, tisk etivircargfally rernivingor. 0.9.006afiliOhere .4114, . 
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KIRK ROSS HARRISON, 

Plaintiff, 
vs. 

VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, 

Defendant. 

CLERK OF THE COURT 

E-SERVED 
JUN 1 6 2014 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

CASE NO.: D-1 I-443611-D 

DEPT NO.: Q 

FAMILY DIVISION 

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the I 3TH day of June, 2014, the Honorable Judge Duckworth 

entered an Order From Hearing, a copy of which is attached hereto. 

Dated this  .6  day of June, 2014. 

RADFORD I. SMITH, CHARTERED 

4 	AL A • At• 

FORD I. SMITH, ESQ. I 
• _a 414'11 

vada Bar No. 002791 	118 
64 N. Pecos Road, Suite 700 
Henderson, Nevada 89074 
Attorney for Defendant 



An cmfiloyee of rtAb' tthJSMITH, C HARTERED 

13 

14 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE.  

I hereby certify that I am an employee of RADFORD J. SMITH., CHARTERED rthe Firm"). I 
3 

4 
am over the age of 18 and not a party to the within action. I. am "readily familiar" with the Fites 

practice of collection and processing correspondence for mng. Under the . Firm'a praotice, mail. is to .  be: 

deposited with the U.S. Postal Service on the same day as stated below, with postage thereon fully 

7 prepaid. 

8 	

I served the foregoing document described as "NOTICE. OF .ENTRY Ol ORDER!'..on 
9 

TO 
day of June, 2014 to all intere.sted parties as follows: 

11 
	tz BY MAIL: Pursuant To NRCP 5(b), I placed a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope 

addressed as follows; 
12. 

BY FACSIMILE: Pursuant-  to EDCR 126, I transmitted a. copy of the foregoing document this 
date via telecopier to the facsimile 11.111AbOr shaft. below; 

M BY ELECTRONIC MAIL: Pursuant to .EDCR 7.26, I tilmsmitted a copy of the foregoing 
15 	document this date via electronic mail to the electronic mail address shown below; 

0 BY CERTIFIED MAIL: rplaced a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope, return moeipt 
requesizd, addressedas follows; 

Tom J. Standish, Esq. 
Standish Law Group 
1635 Village Center Circle, Suite 180 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134 
qs@sta.n.dislitaw:com. 

• Attorney for .Plaintiff .  

EciWatti L. Kainen, Esq. 
Kainen Law Group 
10091 Park Run Dr., #1 10 
.Las Vegas,. Nevada 0145 

ainenlawgroup.com  
Attorney. for Plaintiff 
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Electronically Filed 
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GARY R. .11.4:VERMAN, ESQ.. 
SILVERMAN, DECARIA, 'CATTLEMAN 

Bar No. 000460 
6140 Kama Street Suite.200: 
Reno, Nevaat t9519 
Teleptrono: .  fro 322-3223 
Facsimile:. (775) 322-5649 
slivennan@ailverman-decaria.cora 

itomoofeeDtiodant 

mama. COURT 

C.LARK, COUNTY, NEVADA 

KIRK ROSS HARRISON, 

Plaintiff; 
CASE 	D.41-443fil 
DEfiT 	.Q 

7 

).0 

12 

1 3 

19,  

VIVIAN MARIE LEE HARRISON, 

Derigidiart.  

P.AMItY DrVISTON 
20 

DATE OF' HEARING: December I S., 2013 
TIME OF' HEARING: 11:00 a.111, 

I. 	Thia matter, having coming on for hearing twrigintlirs MO.tfed for ludiolatbetennination.of the 

I.Teakage DfarAtion a.nfl Plaintiff a Mogan to Alter, Amend *  COrrect. an Clarify ludgMent and fet 

Defendanes: Countermotton: fir A.ttOrrfey'S Pets and Defendant's Contermotion to Clarify Orders on. the 



18th day of December, 2013; Plaintiff, Kirk Harrison, being present and represented by Thomas Standish, 
2 Esq., of Standish Law Group and by Edward L. Kainen, Esq., of the Kainen Law Group; and Defendant, 

Vivian Harrison, being present and represented by Radford J. Smith, Esq., of Radford J. Smith, 4 
Chartered, and by Gary Silverman, Esq., of Silverman, Decaria & Kattleman; the Court, having heard the 

6 arguments of counsel, having reviewed the pleadings and papers on file in this matter, and being fully 

7 advised in the premises, and good cause appearing therefore, makes the following findings and orders: 
8 

I. 	In regards to TEENAGE DISCRETION; the parties had resolved parent/child 

issues and a Stipulation was entered on July I 1, 2012.     Section 6 of that agreement 

addresses the issue of lEINAGE DISCRETION and in review of that section, the Court does not 

12 view that language as giving the minor child authority to make decisions or to change custody. 

13 The parties agreed to the language and part of that included implementation of a counselor and 

parenting coordinator. The process to implement those has been delayed and is to be 

implemented forthwith. Court views the language as that, the counselor (Dr. Ali has been 

17 selected) would he involved in the TEENAGE DISCRETION process, as would the parenting 

18 coordinator. The purpose for such would be to avoid the Court's intervention, though those 

processes would not supplant this Court's authority and the parties may still petition the Court 

to address any issues they may have. 

22 	2. 	The request to suspend, remove or otherwise modify the TEENAGE 

23 DISCRETION provision is DENIED. To be clear, the minor child(Brooke) does not control and 

24 the Court expects the counselor to be involved in this process. The purpose of TEENAGE 

DISCRETION is not to remove blocks of time from a party and if a party is being removed for a 

period of time (aside from vacations), then the Court would be concerned. TENAGE 

DISCRETION should be iraplenlented from time-to-time and there should not be any issues 

19 
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25 

26 

27 

28 
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20 

should Brooke wish to make a modification for a few hours and the Court would expect 

communication in this regard. Again, the counselor and the parenting coordinator are to be 

engaged in this process. 

3. 	Per STIPULATION, accounts ending 8278 and 2521 are Plaintiff's sole and separate 

6 property. 

4. 	With regard to accounts ending 8682, 1275 and 2713; to the extent that these accounts 

were Plaintiff's prior to the marriage, then they are his sole and separate property. It is the Defendant's 

burden to show that any community property funds were deposited or placed into those accounts which 

would create a community property interest in those accounts. Otherwise, it is dear to the Court that 

12 those three accounts are the Plaintiff's sole and separate property and the Decree of Divorce shall be 
13 corrected to reflect such. Court views this issue as an issue that did not need to be brought before the 
14 

Court. " 
15 

5. 	The Decree of Divorce is to be corrected to reflect that The Measo Associates is held in 16 

17 both parties name. 

18 	6. 	With regard to the MB list; to the extent items were not included in the list prepared by 
19 Joyce Newman, absent an agreement between the parties, those items are to be divided by way of an A/D 

list (which was the intent of the Court's Order). 
21 

22 	
7. 	With regard to the provision regarding reimbursement; the Court views this is a mutual 

23 provision. To the extent there is a dispute as to any items that should be reimbursed, the items may be 

24 submitted to the Court on a separate list with an explanation and the Court would make the determination 
25 

as to whether or not it needs to be reimbursed. It is the Court's understanding that this process with 
26 

27 
Melissa Attanasio and Cliff Beadle has not been completed yet. The accounting by Ms. Attanasio and 

28 Mr. Beadle is to be completed by January 31,2014. The Court expects an exchange of information and 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

documents which are lacking. Again, this provision is mutual and the items are limited to what was in 

the Temporary Order and to the extent there is a reimbursable expense, there must be some backup to 

demonstrate that the expense was covered by the Temporary Orders. 

S. 	The matter is set for a two hour Evidentiary Hearing on January 22, 2014 at 1:30 p.m. 

regarding the monies placed into Tahnee's account for the purpose of her education (after the initiation of 

this litigation, but prior to the Joint Preliminary Injunction). To be clear, the Court shall not be seeking to 

take money away from Talmee. The issue shall be whether or not there needs to be a reimbursement for 

one-half of those monies that were paid to create this account. The Court must determine whether or not 

there was an agreement that these funds were to be used solely for medical school education purposes or 

not. At this time, the Court views this as an omitted asset as Plaintiff's name was also on the account. 

9. Discovery is open as to Tahnee's account and how it was created and the account history. 

10. The Parties are to provide their proposed exhibits to the Court Clerk by the close of 
15 

business on January 17, 2014. 

II. The Court shall allow out of state witnesses to testify by way of video (Skype or 

Facetime), so long as the Court is able to see the individual and have them sworn in. The Court would 

expect to hear from Ms. Attanasio and Mr. Beadle. 

12. 	With regard to any Ranch items which may have belonged to the Plaintiffs father, the 

Court views those items as the Plaintiff's sole and separate property. The Court shall review the prove- 

n up hearing in this regard as Plaintiff is indicating that all the property located at the Ranch was to be 

awarded to him. The Court shall address this issue at the Evidentiary Hearing after it has reviewed the 

record. To be clear, this issue shall not be a part of the hearing. 

Mandato?), Provfsions: The following statutory notices relating to custody/visitation of the minor 

children are applicable to the parties herein: 
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Pursuant to NRS 125C.200, the parties, and each of them, are hereby placed on notice that if 

either party intends to move their residence to a place outside the State of Nevada, and take the minor 
3 

child with them, they must, as soon as possible, and before the planned move, attempt to obtain the 4 

5 written consent of the other party to move the minor children from the State. If the other party refuses to 

6 give such consent, the moving party shall, before they leave the State with the children, petition the Court 

7 for permission to move with the children. The failure of a party to comply with the provision ofthis 

section may be considered as a factor if a change of custody is requested by the other party. This 

provision does not apply/to vacations outside the State of Nevada planned by either party. 

The parties, and each of them, shall be bound by the provisions of NRS 125.510(6) which state, in 

pertinent part: 

PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ORDER: THE ABDUCTION, CONCEALMENT OR 
DETENTION OF A CHILD IN VIOLATION OF THis ORDER IS PUNISHABLE AS A 
CATEGORY D FELONY AS PROVIDED IN NRS 193.130. NRS 200.359 provides that 
every person having a limited right of custody to a child or any parent having no right of 
custody to the child who willfully detains, conceals or removes the child from a parent, 
guardian or other person having lawful custody or a right of visitation of the child in 
violation of an order of this court, or removes the child from the jurisdiction of the court 
without the consent of either the court or all persons who have the right to custody or 
visitation is subject to being punished by a category D felony as provided in NRS 193.130. 

Pursuant to NRS 125510(7) and (8), the terms of the Hague Convention of October 25, 1980, 

adopted by the 14th Session of The Hague Conference on Private International Law are applicable to the 

parties: 

Section 8. If a parent of the child lives in a foreign country or has significant eomatitments 
in a foreign country: 

(a) The parties may agree, and the Court shall include in the Order for custody of the 
child, that the United States is the country of habitual residence of the child for the 
purpose of applying the terms of the Hague Convention as set forth in Subsection 7. 

(b) Upon motion of the parties, the Court may order the parent to post a bond if the 
Court determines that the parents pose an imminent risk of wrongfully removing or 
concealing the child outside the country of habitual residence. The bond must be in an 
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RADFORD &WM., CHARTERED 
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it •64 N. PecOs Road, Suite 700. 
Tietidemn, Islay-Ada 89074 

49- I 4tiortiOsfirDe,fendatit 
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14 

antPunt Actin:mined bye Court atO may be used only tom for the coat Qf locating the child and  retiwnjng  p to /*habitual tide 	fththiidJsongt1yrpnioved flpin or .c4neealed outside, the gountry othabitn41 residence. The faettliat, a -parent hag aigniVp.,nnt ecnunitraenft in. a foreion country r.19.!4 notot:cate,a pregumptionthatthe parent Pwes: innaineat.tiok of wixIngfully removingor concealing the: 

The State of Nevada in the United States of America is the habitual residence ofthe puties' 
6 children. 

IT' IS SO  

Thfitti. 	day of  ON 1 1 2014  2014. 

Appri5v.e4a0aPcipn 484Corgent 

KA1N/3N LAW GROURRIIC 

EDWARD KAINENt  ESQ. 
Nevada: a*Bar Nc. 005029 
1009 1Irk Run DkiVD, tuite..1 .10 
LasXega; Nevada .89145 
'Moneys "iv.  Plaintiff 


